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Dear Shareholders,

I am glad to present to you the Annual Report for 
the Financial Year 2023-24. The year was another 
landmark year for your Bank as we continued to forge 
ahead in terms of business growth and surpass the 
business level of ` 82,000 crore. The business of 
your Bank increased from ` 75,558.89 crore as on 
31st March, 2023 to ̀  82,024.77 crore as on 31st March 
2024. Deposits increased from ` 44,501.76 crore as 
on 31st March, 2023 to ` 49,457.31 as on 31st March, 
2024. Advances increased from ` 31,057.13 crore 
as on 31st March, 2023 to ` 32,567.46 crore as on 
31st March, 2024.

The interest rate environment largely remained stable 
during the year as the Reserve Bank of India continued 
to maintain status quo on rates while maintaining 
the growth-inflation dynamics in the economy. 
Amid such scenario, your Bank has exhibited sound 
performance in terms of both the topline growth as 
well as the bottomline.

The notable feature of the performance this year is 
the remarkable growth in net profit. The net profit 

of your Bank increased from ` 351.70 crore as on  
31st March, 2023 to ` 502.99 crore as on 31st March, 
2024 - a rise of ` 151.29 crore in absolute terms 
i.e. a rise of 43.02%. This is despite setting aside of 
an additional corpus of ` 125 crore in the form of 
Additional Floating Provision against advances as 
a prudent measure. Creation of such an Additional 
Floating Provision is a unique initiative in the  
Co-operative Banking Segment. Had this floating 
provision against advances not been undertaken, 
your Bank’s net profit would have been around ` 628 
crore !!!

The impressive profitability of your Bank has been 
supported by an improved Net Interest Income. 
Consequently, Return on Assets (RoA) has increased 
significantly from 0.68% as on 31st March, 2023 to 
0.91% as on 31st March, 2024. The ratio would have 
been still higher if the Bank had decided not to set 
aside the Additional Floating Provision against 
advances.

During the year under review, thus, your Bank has 
not only achieved new business heights by crossing 
` 82,000 crore levels but has also strengthened its 
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balance sheet through the creation of the Additional 
Floating Provision, which will serve as a buffer for the 
future as we continue to march ahead with confidence 
and firm steps.

To support this level of growth, your Bank has worked 
diligently over the past few years and improved on 
key financial parameters viz. asset quality and capital 
adequacy. This is the second year in a row that your 
Bank has posted zero net NPAs. The gross NPAs to 
Net advances have also reduced from ` 1,172.90 
crore as on 31st March, 2023 to ` 937.49 crore as on 
31st March, 2024. In ratio terms, the Gross NPAs have 
reduced from 3.78% as on 31st March, 2023 to 2.88% 
as on 31st March, 2024. The Gross NPAs at 2.88% as 
on 31st March, 2024 are the lowest in the history of 
the Bank.

In another first, the own funds of your Bank crossed 
` 5,000 crore this year. The own funds of your Bank 
have increased from ̀  4,758.99 crore as on 31st March, 
2023 to ` 5,118.87 crore as on 31st March, 2024.

The Capital to Risk Weighted Assets ratio (CRAR) 
stands improved from 16.01% as on 31st March, 2023 
to a healthier 17.28% as on 31st March, 2024. This is 
much higher than the RBI requirement of 13%. The 
Tier 1 capital ratio has also increased from 10.51% as 
on 31st March, 2023 to 11.03% as on 31st March, 2024, 
reflecting the strength of the core capital.

In order to spur the business of the Bank going 
forward, during the year under review, your Bank has 
undertaken two key strategic initiatives viz. setting up 
of Consumer & Commercial Banking Group (CCBG) 
and the Digital Lending Project.

Presently, the Bank’s total exposure of advances upto 
` 1 crore is 35.23% of the Bank’s total advances, which 
we need to increase to atleast 50%. It is precisely for 
this reason that the Bank initiated the set-up of CCBG, 
which has been assigned the mandate of increasing 

the Bank’s portfolio of advances upto ` 1 crore. The 
CCBG will function as an independent unit and will be 
adequately equipped with skillsets for disbursement, 
documentation, post disbursement follow-up, 
monitoring and recovery. Your Bank has appointed 
Shri Priyam Alok, Chief Business Officer, who will be 
heading this unit. Shri Alok has vast experience in 
a leading Small Finance Bank and will be heading a 
team of experienced professionals. CCBG is expected 
to be rolled out by the end of the second quarter of  
FY 2024-25. CCBG will work with a focussed approach 
on the small and medium-sized enterprises and 
will be a crucial aspect of our strategy as we march 
towards the ` 1,00,000 crore mark.

Over the past decade, the banking industry has 
witnessed a sea change in its operations from the 
‘brick and mortar’ structure to ’digital apps’. Your 
Bank has always been in tune with the changing 
preferences of its customers as the Bank evolved 
from branch banking to ATMs, credit card-based 
payments, net banking and mobile-based apps. To 
further adapt to the latest digital innovations and 
evolving customer behaviour, your Bank has initiated 
the digital lending project.

For the said digital initiative, your Bank has selected 
Ernst & Young (E&Y) as the Technology and 
Consultancy Partner. E&Y is a market leader in end-
to-end digital transformations for banks and NBFCs. 
With their vast experience in this segment, your Bank 
has assigned the firm the mandate of charting the 

Your Bank is building extreme focus on 
Compliance, Audit, Risk Management 
(CAR) and Information Security, Information 
Technology, Digital Banking (SID) which 
is most necessary for the next phase  
of growth.
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course of the Bank’s digital transformation. E&Y will 
thus be instrumental in journey design, designing 
digital native credit policies, building modular 
platform, strategy for business adoption, defining 
collection strategy for the Bank as well as compliance 
with the cyber and regulatory requirements. Once 
the Digital Project takes off successfully, your 
Bank’s customers will be able to fulfill their credit 
requirements through the digital process. This will 
also ensure substantial reduction in Turn-around-
Time (TAT).

The Digital Project is also expected to be rolled 
out by the end of second quarter of FY 2024-25. It 
will supplement the efforts of the newly formed  
CCBG as well as our existing branches in garnering 
business. We assure you that your Bank has 
and always will continue to adapt to new-age 
technologies. We firmly believe in remaining ahead 
of the technological curve.

At your Bank, we have christened the technological 
initiatives as SID

SID herein refers to

S – Information Security

I – Information Technology

D – Digital Banking

We are aware that IT strategy needs to be closely 
aligned with the business strategy. With strides in 
technology, it is important to pay sufficient attention 
while procuring/implementing any new devices/
solutions. At your Bank, therefore, the triad of IT, Digital 
Banking and IT Security, though independent units, 
work collaboratively so as to prevent vulnerabilities. 
As a Bank, we ensure that though the digital world 

extends comfort and convenience to our customers, 
it does not compromise on security.

Similarly on the operational front, we have ensured 
that we pay strict attention to the Assurance Function, 
which extends much beyond the mere adherence to 
regulatory requirements. In order to have a robust 
Assurance Function, we have put in place the CAR 
initiative.

CAR herein refers to

C - Compliance

A - Audit

R - Risk Management

The CAR initiative is a three-pronged initiative 
manned by the Chief Compliance Officer, Head of 
Internal Audit and the Chief Risk Officer of the Bank 
who keep a constant and firm check against potential 
threats and vulnerabilities and act as a formidable 
shield safeguarding the Bank. The CAR and SID 
initiatives will bring extreme focus to strengthen 
these important Departments, which will be most 
necessary for the next phase of the growth of your 
Bank.

Internally within the organisation also, we have made 
a lot of changes over the past few years in tune with 
the changing times. To supplement the business 
structure based on a ‘brick and mortar’ approach, we 
had put in place a network of Business Development 
Officers (BDOs) and Branch Sales Officers (BSOs). 
Going forward, now we are in the process of 
implementing the digital lending project which will 
cater to the requirements of the new age clientele 
who prefer to avail of banking services at the ‘click of 
a button’.
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To imbibe the changing nuances of banking within the 
human resources, to create a performance-centric 
culture and to encourage the staff at all levels, the 
Bank has introduced various innovative HR measures 
viz. introduction of Variable Pay Program, institution 
of ‘Star Awards’ for Management as well as Non-
Management staff, formation of ‘Specialist Cadre’ 
and education and skill development measures 
through ‘Mission Vijeta’.

On the customer service front, we have left no stone 
unturned to give customers the highest level of 
customer service and satisfaction. The ‘Celebration 
of Trust’ program introduced by your Bank last year 
continued this year as well. During various informal 
meets, gatherings and musical events organised by 
the Bank throughout the year, your Bank continues 

to seek a constant dialogue with customers. Their 
feedback helps us in constantly improving the 
product offerings and services, thereby forging 
ahead hand-in-hand with customers, in line with the  
Co-operative spirit.

Your Bank has thus not only grown over the years 
in terms of size and transformed into a strong and 
sturdy Bank, but also continues to keep on innovating 
and reinventing itself to be a future-ready Bank.

Best Regards,

Gautam E. Thakur
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38083.49

Deposits  (` in Crore)

2021 2022 2023 20242020

40855.30

42870.53
44501.76

49457.31

10723.94

CASA Deposits (` in Crore)

2021 2022 2023 20242020

12497.76

13583.58
13977.07

14852.64

25338.64

Advances (` in Crore)

2021 2022 2023 20242020

26241.70

28702.49

31057.13

32567.46

63422.13

Total Business (` in Crore)

2021 2022 2023 20242020

67097.00

71573.02

75558.89

82024.77

KEY 
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
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1.56

Net NPAs (in %)

2021 2022 2023 20242020

1.04

0.65

ZERO ZERO

14.75

CRAR (in %)

2021 2022 2023 20242020

14.26
13.94

16.01

17.28

250.79

Net Profit (` in Crore)

2021 2022 2023 20242020

270.24 275.02

351.70

502.99

3522.04

Own Funds (` in Crore)

2021 2022 2023 20242020

3937.34

4199.39

4758.99

5118.87

0.58

ROA (in %)

2021 2022 2023 20242020

0.58 0.56

0.68

0.91

4.93
Gross NPAs (in %)

2021 2022 2023 20242020

4.58

3.86 3.78

2.88

44700.57

Working Funds (` in Crore)

2021 2022 2023 20242020

47669.83

50922.94

53539.02

58581.22
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NOTICE  OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
NOTICE: 106TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

Notice is hereby given that the 106th Annual General Meeting of the Bank will be held on Saturday,  
27th July, 2024 at 4.00 p.m. at Pracharya B.N. Vaidya Sabhagrah, Raja Shivaji Vidyasankul, Hindu Colony, Dadar (East),  
Mumbai – 400 014   to transact the following business concerning the Bank:-

AGENDA 

1. To consider and approve the Annual Accounts which consist of the Report of the Board of Directors, the 
Report of the Statutory Auditors, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended  
31st March, 2024.

2. To appropriate Net Profit and declare Dividend on Equity Shares and Dividend on Perpetual Non Cumulative 
Preference Shares (PNCPS) as recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

3. To approve 

 a. Amendments to Bank’s Bye-law Nos. 4, 55A, 58, 61, 64A and

 b. Addition of New Bye-law Nos. 6(E)(i), 24A, 75 

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25 and to authorize the Board of Directors to 
fix their remuneration. The Board of Directors recommends M/s Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered Accountants, 
304/308/309, Udyog Mandir No. 1,7-C, Bhagoji Keer Marg, Mahim, Mumbai – 400 016 & M/s P.G. Bhagwat LLP, 
Chartered Accountants, Suite 102, Orchard, Dr. Pai Marg, Baner, Pune – 411 045, for appointment as Statutory 
Auditors. 

5. To grant Leave of Absence to the members of the Bank who have not attended this 106th Annual General 
Meeting. 

By Order of the Board of Directors. 

sd/- 
Arti Patil 

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
Mumbai, June 28, 2024 

Note: 

•	 The	Annual	Report	of	the	Bank	consisting	of	the	Report	of	the	Board	of	Directors,	the	Report	of	the	Statutory	
Auditors, the Balance Sheet and the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2024 is annexed with 
this Notice.

•	 If	there	is	no	quorum	for	the	Meeting	at	the	appointed	time,	in	terms	of	Bye-law	No.	48,	the	Meeting	shall	stand	
adjourned to 5.00 p.m. on the same day and the Agenda of the Meeting shall be transacted at the same venue 
irrespective of the Rule of Quorum. 
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•	 Dividend,	when	declared,	will	be	paid	on	or	after	16th	August,	2024	to	those	shareholders	whose	shares	are	
fully	paid	as	on	31st	March,	2024	and	whose	names	are	on	the	record	of	the	Bank	as	on	10th	June,	2024.	

•	 If	any	member	desires	to	have	information	in	connection	with	the	Accounts,	he/she	is	requested	to	address	
a	 letter	 to	 the	Managing	 Director	 &	 Chief	 Executive	 Officer	 of	 the	 Bank,	 to	 reach	 her	 office	 at	 Saraswat		
Co-operative	Bank	Ltd.,	Ekanath	Thakur	Bhavan,	Plot	No.	953,	Appasaheb	Marathe	Marg,	Prabhadevi,	Mumbai	
-	400	025,	not	later	than	20th	July,	2024,	so	that	the	required	information	may	be	made	available	at	the	Annual	
General	Meeting.	

•	 Members	are	requested	to	bring	valid	photo	identity	proof	at	the	time	of	attending	Annual	General	Meeting	for	
security	purpose.	

TO SERVE YOU BETTER: 

1.	 Shareholders	 are	 requested	 to	 intimate	 change	 in	 address,	 if	 any,	 to	 the	 Share	 Department	 along	 with	
a	 copy	 of	 proof	 of	 new	 residence	 at	 Ekanath	 Thakur	 Bhavan,	 Appasaheb	 Marathe	 Marg,	 Prabhadevi,		
Mumbai	–	400	025	or	by	e-mail	to	shareholders@saraswatbank.com	for	updating	the	Bank’s	records.	

2.	 Shareholders	 are	 requested	 to	 avail	 of	 nomination	 facility	 by	 submitting	 prescribed	Nomination	 Form,	 as	
required	under	Section	36	of	the	Multi-State	Co-operative	Societies	Act,	2002	and	Bye-law	No.	19	of	the	Bank.

3.	 Shareholders	having	Current	/	Savings	Bank	/	Cash	Credit	accounts	with	the	Bank	and	desirous	of	crediting	
their	dividends	to	their	accounts	are	once	again	requested	to	record	their	standing	instructions	with	the	Share	
Department.

4. The Annual Report is available on the Bank’s website www.saraswatbank.com. Members, desirous of having 
a printed copy, are requested to collect the same from the nearest branch/Zonal Office or from the Registered 
Office of the Bank. 

---------Unclaimed Dividend---------

Notice is hereby given that Dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2021 (99th Dividend) if not drawn on or before 
31st August 2024, will be forfeited by the Bank and credited to Reserve Fund in terms of Bye-law No.68A.
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
(` in crore)

Particulars For the Year Ended
 31-03-24 31-03-23 % change
Total Income        4,443.17          3,967.44 11.99
Less:Total Expenditure        3,656.74          3,079.96 18.73
Operating Profit            786.43             887.48 -11.39
Less: Provisions (net)                     -               365.14 -
Add: Reversal of Provisions earlier made (net)              40.22                      -   -
Less: Floating Provision for Advances            125.00                      -   -
Profit Before Tax and Exceptional Items            701.65             522.34 34.33
Less:Exceptional Items                     -                  32.50 -
Profit Before Tax and After Exceptional Items            701.65             489.84 43.24
Less: Income Tax            198.66             138.14 43.81
Profit after Tax carried to Balance Sheet            502.99             351.70 43.02
 At the Year End
Own Funds        5,118.87          4,758.99 7.56
Share Capital -  (Refer Note below)                                                                                                                                   335.00             345.00 -2.90
Reserves and Surplus        4,783.87          4,413.99 8.38

Deposits      49,457.31        44,501.76 11.14
Current        3,531.50          3,237.14 9.09
Savings      11,321.14        10,739.93 5.41
Term      34,604.67        30,524.69 13.37

Advances      32,567.46        31,057.13 4.86
Secured      32,222.89        30,599.37 5.31
Unsecured            344.57             457.76 -24.73
Total Business      82,024.77        75,558.89 8.56

Priority Sector (average)      22,006.98        19,511.10 12.79
% to Adjusted Net Bank Credit (ANBC)    
Priority 62.85% 70.19%  
of which (a) Micro 7.90% 7.99%  
of which (b) Weaker 11.69% 11.62%  

 
Working Capital      58,581.22        53,539.02 9.42

Investments      17,788.50        15,840.84 12.30

Borrowings and Refinance        1,826.72          2,211.67 -17.41

Net NPAs (%) 0.00 0.00
Provision Coverage Ratio (%) 98.34 98.98

Capital Adequacy (%) 17.28 16.01

Number of Members
Regular (Shareholders holding 50 shares & above)        2,69,147          2,58,926 
Nominal        1,28,645          1,31,659 

Number of Branches                 302                   289 
Number of Employees              4,545                4,650 

Business per Employee (` in crore) 17.87 16.11
Net Profit per Employee (` in lac) 11.07 7.56
Return on Average Assets (%) 0.91 0.68

CD RATIO (%) 65.85 69.79
NIM (%) 2.97 3.10
Cost to Income Ratio (%) 58.89 54.13

Note :    
March 2024 - In accordance with the RBI permission received for exercising call option for redemption of Perpetual  
Non - Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS), an amount of ` 33.75 crore maturing upto 31.03.2024 is not considered for 
calculation of Own Funds. Hence, there is a reduction in the Share Capital over March 2023. 
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Dear Members,

Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting the 
106th Annual Report on the business and operations 
of the Bank together with the Audited Accounts for 
the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024.

1. THE GLOBAL ECONOMY AND INDIA

 The global economy presented a mixed picture 
during the financial year 2023-24, displaying more 
than expected resilience in both the advanced 
as well as emerging market economies. The 
geopolitical conflicts of the Ukraine war, conflict 
between Hamas and Israel and other deterrents 
like disruptions in the Red Sea imparted 
uncertainty to the growth outlook. 

 Headline inflation softened considerably across 
most economies driven by the decline in food and 
energy prices. Central Banks, however, remained 
cautious against premature easing of Policy in 
their fight against inflation. As inflation started 
decelerating, Central Banks attempted to deliver 
a soft landing by delaying the lowering of interest 
rates. Public debt remained elevated in most 
countries including advanced economies, leading 
to concerns on macro-economic stability. 

 Global growth slowed down from 3.5% in calendar 
year 2022 to 3.2% in 2023 and is expected to slow 
down to a certain extent in FY 2024. The risks are, 
however, broadly balanced. 

 The US economy remained relatively strong 
during the year with improved spending by 
Americans giving an unexpected boost to the 
economy. Consumer confidence continued to 
remain strong. 

 The Eurozone economy barely grew over the 
calendar year 2023, exhibiting a prolonged phase 
of weakness. In fact, the Eurozone economy 
narrowly escaped recession in the latter part 
of 2023. Germany posted contraction; the 

French economy remained steady while Spain 
outperformed forecasts. The UK also posted its 
lowest GDP numbers. 

 Among the Asian countries, China posted tepid 
GDP growth amid the ongoing property crisis, 
sluggish consumer and business confidence. The 
Japanese economy also contracted at the end 
of the year, impacted by slowdown in consumer 
spending and sticky inflation.

 Amidst the global headwinds, the Indian economy 
demonstrated resilience and in fact outpaced 
most forecasts. The financial year 2023-24 was 
characterized by a largely stable interest rate 
environment. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) 
consistently maintained a status quo in the policy 
rates during the year, thus steering a balanced 
course of controlling inflation while fostering 
economic growth.

 Indian Economy

 The growth in Gross Domestic Product (GDP) for 
the financial year 2023-24 stood at 8.2%, marking 
the third successive year of 7% plus growth. The 
key driver for the GDP growth was the strong 
manufacturing sector growth at 9.9%. The 
growth in the industrial sector remained robust 
with growth in steel, cement and automobile 
manufacturing sectors. Agricultural activity 
slowed down at 1.4%, with unfavorable weather 
conditions, lower reservoir levels, delayed sowing 
and sub-par production of the kharif crop. Service 
sector remained resilient at 7.6%, on the back 
of strong domestic demand and stable global 
prospects. 

 Overall, India retained its position as the fastest 
growing economy in the world and emerged as a 
bright spot on the global map. 

 Key Macro-Economic Indicators

 On the macro-economic front, the headline 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation fell by 
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more than 2%, off its highs of 7.44% in July 2023 
as a result of cheaper fuel and a correction in 
commodity prices. CPI inflation averaged around 
5.4% during FY 2023-24, lower than the average 
of 6.7% during the preceding year. The volatility 
in the inflation trajectory was primarily due to 
food price shocks, as the core inflation remained 
relatively stable. Inflation has moderated 
significantly and is now approaching 4%. The 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has a tolerance band 
of 4% (+/- 2%) for inflation.

 RBI has over the past several years prioritized 
inflation over growth. It therefore embarked on 
the path of monetary tightening and undertook 
a cumulative rate hike of 250 bps in the Policy 
Repo Rate during 2022-23 as it unwound the 
pandemic era stimulus and sought to curb  
inflation. 

 During the year under review, RBI maintained 
a neutral Policy stance in order to ensure that 
the inflation numbers remain benign and are 
not impacted by supply chain disruptions on 
the geopolitical front and by recurring food 
price shocks. By deploying an appropriate  mix 
of instruments viz. introduction of Incremental 
Cash Reserve Ratio (ICRR), withdrawal of 2,000 
rupee currency notes,  appropriate quantum 
and frequency of variable rate repos and reverse 
repos, RBI fine-tuned and modulated the banking 
system liquidity. 

 The fiscal deficit for FY 2023-24 was contained 
at 5.6% versus expectation of 5.9% while 
target for the next financial year was set 
sharply lower at 5.1%. The Government thus 
appears firmly entrenched on the broader path 
of reaching a fiscal deficit level of 4.5% by  
FY 2025-26.

 The Current Account Deficit (CAD) moderated to 
around 0.7% of GDP in FY 2024 vis-à-vis 2% in 
FY 2023, on the back of lower oil prices, narrower 
merchandise trade deficit, higher services exports 
and strong remittances.

 Foreign Portfolio Investment (FPI) inflows saw a 
significant turnaround during the year, with net 
inflows of around USD 41.6 billion as against net 
outflow in the preceding 2 years. The country’s 
foreign exchange reserves also reached an  
all-time high of USD 645.6 billion by end-March 
2024. 

 With comfortable reserves, the Indian Rupee 
remained relatively stable and traded in a 
range bound manner during the year. In fact, 
it remained among the least volatile Emerging 
Market Economy (EME) currencies and closed 
for the year at INR 83.35 to a US Dollar as on  
31st March, 2024. 

 The bond yields trended lower during the year, 
demonstrating relative stability as compared 
to the volatile debt markets of other advanced 
economies, including the US. The lower than 
anticipated market borrowing in the Budget and 
pause on Policy hike by RBI at the start of the 
year led to the initial rally in the bond markets. 
Further, inclusion in the global bond indices led to 
a significant increase in inflows, thus pushing the 
yields lower, especially at the longer end of the 
curve. Overall, the bond yields moderated during 
the year with the 10-year G-sec yield closing for 
the year at 7.06%, 25 bps lower than the preceding 
year. 

 Equities saw a broad-based rally during 
FY 2023-24 with strong economic growth 
forecasts, robust foreign inflows as well as a 
strong participation by retail domestic investors. 
The stock markets ended the year on a firm note 
as the Sensex closed at 73,651 as on 31st March, 
2024 after touching a high of 74,245 during the 
year. The Nifty closed at 22,326 as on 31st March, 
2024, after touching a high of 22,526 during the 
year.

 Overall Assessment

 Overall, the Indian economy’s growth rate stayed 
far ahead of other developed and developing 
economies. India achieved the distinction of being 
the fastest growing economy in the world. On 
the macro-economic front, the headline inflation 
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declined steadily during the year. Inflation 
numbers stayed anchored around RBI’s inflation 
target range. RBI however continued to be vigilant 
on the upside risks to inflation due to factors like 
hardening crude oil prices and global supply chain  
bottlenecks. 

 The India Meteorological Department (IMD) 
has forecast an above-normal rainfall which is 
positive for the agricultural and rural segment. 
Food inflation might remain elevated owing to 
supply side issues though core inflation may 
bottom out soon. On the fiscal side, the higher-
than-expected dividend transfer by RBI has 
given the Government enough space to maintain 
fiscal discipline further and may result in lower 
Government borrowing.

 If geopolitical tensions abate going forward and 
US interest rates slow down as we move towards 
the end of the year, RBI may also initiate the easing 
of interest rates. Another positive is in the form of 
inclusion of Indian bonds in the J P Morgan bond 
indices and expected inflows on account of the 
same. The inflows in debt markets, if sizeable, 
will give further fillip to the lower interest rate 
scenario. Potential increase in crude oil prices 
because of the geopolitical tensions may be a 
dampener. 

 Overall, with strong macro-economic factors 
and continued reforms by the new Government 
at the Centre, the domestic growth momentum 
is expected to remain strong during the year. 
As per the latest estimates, the International 
Monetary Fund (IMF) has forecast India’s GDP 
growth at 6.8% for FY 2024-25 on the back of 
strong domestic demand and a rising working-
age population. In its latest Monetary Policy 
review, RBI has estimated the real GDP growth for 
FY 2024-25 at 7.2%. International rating agency 
Standard & Poor has revised India’s rating outlook 
to positive, while maintaining a stable rating. In 
fact, it is expected that with continued economic 
reforms and fiscal policies, the rating may be 
upgraded within a span of 18-24 months. 

2. MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN THE BANKING 
AND FINANCIAL SECTOR IN INDIA 

 During the year, the Government of India and 
the Reserve Bank of India continued with 
developmental measures/policies to support 
the financial sector. Some of the measures 
undertaken are listed below: 

	  RBI mandated increase in minimum amount 
for offering by non-callable term deposits 
by banks from ` 15 lakh to ` 1 crore. This is 
applicable to domestic deposits as well as 
NRE/NRO deposits.

	  RBI directed that transparency/proper 
communication to borrowers has to be 
ensured at time of sanctioning of advances 
through measures like issuance of Key Fact 
Statement including details of Agreement 
and all-in-costs, disclosures about impact 
of resetting of interest rates on the loan, 
information about foreclosure of loans/
switching of loans from floating to fixed and 
related fees/charges, other penal charges in 
loan accounts, etc.

	  RBI prohibited banks and NBFCs from 
investing in any scheme of Alternative 
Investment Funds (AIFs) having investment 
in companies that have taken loans from the 
concerned lenders in past 12 months.

	  Regulated entities are mandated to publish 
on their website information on debtors 
whose assets have been possessed by them 
under the SARFAESI Act, 2002.

	  RBI asked banks to adopt a risk-based 
approach for periodic updation of KYC. RBI 
also tightened the Customer Due Diligence 
norms, particularly in potentially high-risk 
cases.

	  RBI mandated higher capital requirement for 
unsecured personal loans and credit card 
exposures for banks and NBFCs. 

	  RBI undertook several measures for security 
and ease of digital transactions, which are as 
below:
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	 	 •	 Permitting	 holders	 of	 e-rupees	 to	
scan QR codes of the Unified Payment 
Interface (UPI) network and make retail 
transactions.

	 	 •	 Enhancement	 of	 UPI	 transaction	 limits	
from ` 1 lakh to ` 5 lakh, in case of 
payments to hospitals and educational 
institutions.

	 	 •	 Raising	of	upper	limit	of	offline	payment	
transactions under UPI Lite from ` 200/- 
to ̀  500/-, with view to promoting the use 
of UPI Lite wallet in areas with weak or no 
internet connectivity.

	 	 •	 UPI	 interoperability	 features	 by	 many	
commercial banks on their Digital Rupee 
application, as part of the RBI CBDC pilot 
project.

	 	 •	 Permitting	 Issuance	 of	 RuPay	 prepaid	
forex cards for Indians travelling abroad.

	  Large Government entities like PFC, REC, 
IRFC, etc. were brought under RBI’s Prompt 
Corrective Action (PCA) framework, so as to 
bring about timely remedial measures in case 
of deterioration in financial health.

	  Regulations for All India Financial Institutions 
(AIFIs) viz EXIM, NABARD, NHB, SIDBI and 
NABARD were tightened. The additional 
norms include inclusion under Basel III 
framework and revised exposure/investment 
norms.

	  The regulator imposed a series of penalties 
and regulatory action on some leading 
fintech/payment banks for persistent  
non-compliance. 

 Other Developmental Measures include

  Introduction of comprehensive guidelines for 
Information Technology (IT) governance for 
banks and NBFCs. 

  Launch of Centralized Information 
Management system (CIMs). 

  Launch of UDGAM i.e. Unclaimed Deposits 
Gateway to Access Information - a centralized 
web portal in order to enable users to identify 
their unclaimed deposits/accounts across 
multiple banks. 

  Measures for financial markets viz. shorter 
settlement cycles in stock markets, new 
dispute resolution mechanism for investors 
and intermediaries, revamping of the format 
of Scheme Information Documents and ease 
of process by SEBI for claiming unclaimed 
funds.

  Increase in compensation claim with 
Insurance Ombudsman from ` 30 lakh to ` 50 
lakh.

3. MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN THE URBAN  
CO-OPERATIVE BANKING SECTOR

 Setting up of NUCFDC - In a major development 
during the year, the National Urban Co-operative 
Finance and Development Corporation Limited 
(NUCFDC) - an umbrella organisation for Urban 
Co-operative Banks (UCBs) was established. 
NUCFDC is a self-regulatory organisation for the 
UCB sector. The role of NUCFDC will be crucial 
in strengthening the sector, particularly smaller 
UCBs in the area of technology upscaling and 
capacity building. Your Bank has contributed a 
sum of ` 15 crore towards its capital, as its social 
obligation.

 Launch of the National Co-operative Database - 
The National Co-operative Database, a web-based 
digital dashboard was set up by the Government 
of India for the modernisation of the Co-operative 
sector. The objective of the database is to provide 
a single point of access to authentic and updated 
data of all type of co-operative entities, especially 
smaller co-operative banks, primary co-operative 
societies and National/State Federations. 

 Doubling of limit on gold loans - RBI raised the 
limit for gold loans by UCBs from ` 2 lakh to 
` 4	 lakh,	 subject	 to	 fulfilment	 of	 certain	 other	
regulatory norms.
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 Increase in criteria of bulk deposits - RBI enhanced 
the bulk deposit limit for Scheduled UCBs in  
Tier 3 & 4 category from ‘` 15 lakh and above’ to 
‘` 1 crore and above’. The enhanced bulk deposit 
limit is thus applicable for UCBs with deposits of 
more than ` 1,000 crore.

4. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF YOUR BANK 
DURING FY 2023-24 

 The details of the various business parameters 
during FY 2023-24 are given below: 

	 •	 The	 total	 business	 of	 your	 Bank	 increased	
from ` 75,558.89 crore as on 31st March, 2023 
to ` 82,024.77 crore as on 31st March, 2024 
i.e. a rise of ̀  6,465.88 crore in absolute terms 
and a rise of 8.56%.

Graph No. 1:
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	 •	 Deposits	increased	from	` 44,501.76 crore as 
on 31st March, 2023 to ` 49,457.31 crore as 
on 31st March, 2024, a rise of ` 4,955.55 crore 
in absolute terms i.e. a rise of 11.14%. 

	 •	 The	 CASA	 deposits	 increased	 from	 
` 13,977.07 crore as on 31st March, 2023 to  
` 14,852.64 crore as on 31st March, 2024, a 
rise of ` 875.57 crore in absolute terms i.e. a 
rise of 6.26%.

	 •	 Advances	 increased	 from	 ` 31,057.13 crore 
as on 31st March, 2023 to ` 32,567.46 crore 
as on 31st March, 2024 i.e. a rise of ` 1,510.33 

crore in absolute terms, thus registering a 
growth of 4.86%. 

	 •	 The	wholesale	advances	business	increased	
from ` 14,887.14 crore as on 31st March 2023 
to ̀  15,515.36 crore as on 31st March, 2024 i.e. 
a growth of 4.22%. Further, the retail advances 
business comprising retail schematic loans 
(including tangible loans) and commercial 
loans upto `10 crore increased from  
` 16,169.99 crore as on 31st March, 2023 to  
` 17,052.10 crore as on 31st March, 2024 i.e. 
a rise of 5.46%.

	 •	 RBI	has	been	emphasizing	that	primary	UCBs	
should achieve atleast 50% of the advances 
exposure in the segment upto ` 1 crore. As 
on 31st March, 2024, the Bank’s loan portfolio 
of exposure upto ` 1 crore stands at 35.23%. 
In order to have a total focus on this aspect, 
your Bank decided to establish a new vertical, 
viz. Consumer and Commercial Banking 
Group (CCBG), which will be instrumental in 
garnering the advances business of ticket 
size upto ` 1 crore. 

	 •	 The	 lower	 growth	 in	 wholesale	 banking	
business as well as retail banking business is 
because of the conscious decision taken by 
the Bank to consolidate the credit portfolio 
and maintain strong Asset Quality. As a result, 
the Credit Deposit (CD) ratio of the Bank thus 
stands at 65.85% as on 31st March, 2024. 

	 •	 The	 Gross	 NPAs	 of	 your	 Bank	 reduced	
from ` 1,172.90 crore as on 31st March, 
2023 to ` 937.49 crore as on 31st March, 
2024. In percentage terms, the Gross NPA 
to Net advances ratio reduced from 3.78% 
as on 31st March, 2023 to 2.88% as on 31st  
March, 2024.

	 •	 Your	 Bank	 continued	 to	 fully	 provide	 for	
the NPAs, in order to maintain net NPAs  
at 0%. 

	 •	 With	more	focus	on	the	advances	of	less	than	
` 1 crore, the Bank as a prudent measure set 
aside an additional corpus of ` 125 crore in 
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the form of Additional Floating Provision 
against advances, over and above the 
required provision for the gross NPAs. This 
will serve as a cushion to mitigate against any 
future credit risk. The said floating provision 
is over and above the ad hoc provisioning and 
shall be utilised only for contingencies under 
extraordinary circumstances for making 
specific provisions in impaired advances in 
future, with the prior permission of RBI. 

	 •	 Thus,	even	after	considering	ad	hoc	provision	
and the floating provision against advances, 
the net profit of your Bank increased from 
` 351.70 crore as on 31st March, 2023 to 
`  502.99	crore	as	on	31st March, 2024 - a rise 
of ` 151.29 crore in absolute terms i.e. a rise 
of 43.02%. Had this floating provision against 
advances not been undertaken, your Bank’s 
net profit would have been at around ` 628 
crore!

Graph No. 2:
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	 	•	 The	own	funds	of	your	Bank	have	increased	
from ` 4,758.99 crore as on 31st March, 2023 
to ` 5,118.87 crore as on 31st March, 2024, i.e. 
a rise of ` 359.88 crore in absolute terms, a 
rise of 7.56% and crossing a historic mark of 
` 5,000 crore!

	 •	 The	 financial	 ratios	 of	 your	 Bank	 have	 also	
seen significant improvement during the year 
under review, as seen below:

   The Capital to Risk Weighted Assets ratio 
(CRAR) stands improved from 16.01% as 
on 31st March, 2023 to a healthier 17.28% 
as on 31st March, 2024, as against the RBI 
requirement of 13%.

	 	  The Return on Assets (ROA) improved 
from 0.68% as on 31st March, 2023 to 
0.91% as on 31st March, 2024.

	 	  The Provision Coverage Ratio as on  
31st March, 2024 stood at 98.34% i.e. 
nearly 100%.

	 •	 As	 seen	 from	 the	above,	 the	Bank	has	 thus	
made a conscious effort to focus on the dual 
objective of improving profitability on one 
hand, and on the other hand strengthening 
the key financial ratios of the Bank viz. NPAs, 
CRAR, PCR, etc. 

5. NEW INITIATIVES BY THE BANK DURING THE 
YEAR 

 During the year under review, the Bank undertook 
two key new initiatives viz. setting up of 
Consumer & Commercial Banking Group (CCBG) 
and the Digital Lending Project which will spur 
the business of the Bank in the coming years. 

 Setting up of Consumer & Commercial Banking 
Group (CCBG): 

 In order to have a focussed approach on the small 
and medium-sized enterprises, your Bank set up 
a new small finance vertical called Consumer & 
Commercial Banking Group (CCBG) with a Chief 
Business Officer, Shri Priyam Alok heading the 
unit. Shri Alok has vast experience in a leading 
Small Finance Bank and will be heading a team 
of experienced professionals. The CCBG will be 
managing the entire life cycle of small finance 
lending products from inception to launch of 
the products. The CCBG will function as an 
independent unit and will be adequately equipped 
with skillsets for disbursement, documentation, 
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post disbursement follow-up, monitoring, and 
recovery. 

 The key objective of CCBG will be to increase 
the Bank’s portfolio of advances upto ` 1 crore 
to atleast 50% of the Bank’s total advances. 
The CCBG is thus being set up under a  
well-thought-out business model, with a strategic 
objective and will be instrumental in contributing 
to the profitability of the Bank in coming  
years.

 The CCBG Unit, once operationalised, is expected 
to deliver positive results. 

 Digital Lending Project: 

 Your Bank has kept its commitment of developing 
a robust “Digital Architecture” which will 
encompass strategic collaborations with tech 
providers to offer a seamless, fully automated, 
regulatory-compliant digital lending platform.

 Our digital approach has led to the development 
of necessary capacities required to increase 
efficiencies in this lending process. Throughout 
the years, our Bank has focussed on customer-
centricity, and this has continued to be the focal 
point while designing the architecture for the 
lending process. Data privacy, robust security 
measures together with easy to navigate solutions 
have been the key factors while designing the 
architecture of the digital platform.

 Simplicity is another key feature wherein our 
customers can avail of loans in a matter of 
few minutes by leveraging on API integrations, 
account aggregator framework, e-signatures and 
direct disbursements to bank accounts. Policy 
run Business Rule Engines (BRE) will enhance the 
credit assessment and help in building a healthy 
portfolio.

 Going one step further, for your convenience, 
Bank has also engaged a tech provider to provide 
clients with digital reminders such as SMS, 
WhatsApp, email and IVR for instalments.

 In this financial year, our customers would be 
able to embark on digital journeys of products 
such as Personal loans, Auto loans, Two-
wheeler loans and MSME loans. For the said 
digital initiative, your Bank has selected Ernst & 
Young (E&Y) as the Technology and Consultancy 
Partner. E&Y is a market leader on end-to-end 
digital transformations for banks and NBFCs. 
They have vast experience in design for building 
programs in India, defining strategy and roadmap 
for digital business growth, building digital 
product propositions across secured/unsecured 
products, partnerships and consulting experience 
of managing digital transformation. E&Y has 
an impressive clientele of PSU banks including 
State Bank of India as well as major leading 
private sector banks. They have received industry 
recognition and accolades for being the No. 1 
IT consultant for financial services, innovation 
consulting services and AI services.

 For the Bank’s digital lending project, E&Y will be 
playing a key role in journey design, designing 
digital native credit policies, modular platform 
build, strategy for business adoption, defining 
collection strategy as well as compliance with 
the cyber and regulatory requirements. Once 
this Digital Project takes off successfully, our 
Bank’s customers will be able to fulfill their credit 
requirements through the digital process.

 Our quest for technological advancement doesn’t 
stop here and we are exploring the adaptability 
of this technology to the liability i.e. deposit side 
also. We assure you that your Bank is in sync with 
the changing times and will try to adapt to new 
age technologies as much as possible to deliver 
enhanced banking experiences.

6. SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

 (i) Retail Banking

  Retail Advances:

  Under retail advances, your Bank offers 
Schematic loans as well as Retail Business 
loans up to ` 10 crore for small entrepreneurs 
and start-ups.
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  The disbursals under the retail schematic 
segment increased from ` 3,097 crore 
during FY 2022-23 to ` 3,238 crore during 
the year FY 2023-24. This rise in disbursals 
is mainly on account of increase in Vehicle 
loan by ` 290 crore over FY 2022-23. The 
growth in Vastu Siddhi loans was static 
on account of cap on CRE exposure. 
Under Retail Commercial loan segment, 
the disbursement stands at ` 1,036 crore  
this year.

  The retail advances have increased from 
` 16,169.99	crore	 as	on	31st March, 2023 to  
` 17,052.10 crore as on 31st March, 2024, a 
rise of 5.46%. Within the retail schematic 
loans, the growth stood at around 7.64%. 

(Table no. 1) ( ` in crore) 

Advances 31-03-
2024

31-03-
2023

Rise in 
absolute 

terms

Rise in % 
terms

Retail 
Schematic

11,255.50 10,456.75 798.75 7.64%

Commercial 
upto ` 10 crore 

3,738.56 3,886.62 -148.06 -3.81%

Retail 
Tangible/staff 
loans

2,058.04 1,826.62 231.42 12.67%

 Total 17,052.10 16,169.99 882.11 5.46%

  Retail Deposits: 

  During FY 2023-24, 1,61,934 new CASA 
accounts were opened, of which 1,45,320 
are Savings Bank accounts and 16,614 
are Current accounts. There have been 
improvements in terms of opening of quality 
CASA accounts as compared to earlier year. 
The newly-opened accounts helped improve 
the average CASA balance per account. There 
is increase in CASA balances from ̀  13,977.07	
crore as on 31st March, 2023 to ` 14,852.64	
crore as on 31st March, 2024 i.e., an increase 
of ` 875.57 crore in absolute terms. The 
CASA percentage to overall deposits  
is 30.03%. 

 Position of CASA Deposits

(Table no. 2)  ( ` in crore) 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Savings deposits 11,321.14 10,739.93

Current deposits 3,531.50 3,237.14

CASA Amount 14,852.64 13,977.07

Total Deposits 49,457.31 44,501.76

Increase in CASA 875.57 393.49

  Business Development through Business 
Development Officers (BDOs) and Branch 
Sales Officers (BSOs): 

  Over the past few years, your Bank has 
introduced the concept of Business 
Development Officers (BDOs) and Branch 
Sales Officers (BSOs) to have a focussed 
approach on garnering business. The Bank 
today has a dynamic and enthusiastic team 
of more than 80 plus BDOs who are equipped 
with the latest infrastructure in terms of 
technology viz. Tablets, product knowledge 
and customer interaction training. At the 
individual branch level, BSOs continue to 
cater to banking needs of walk-in customers 
and additional business requirements of the 
existing customers.

  During FY 2023-24, the BDO team garnered a 
total business of ̀  1,060 crore, which includes 
advances worth ` 725 crore, deposits worth 
` 325 crore and third-party business of  
` 10 crore as on 31st March, 2024. The BSO 
team also contributed by way of advances 
of ` 278.04 crore, deposits worth ` 501.77 
crore including 16,065 CASA accounts and  
third-party business of ` 12.03 crore. 
Together, they contributed to around 19% of 
Bank’s advances portfolio for FY 2023-24.

  Other Products

  Your Bank’s Third-Party Product offerings 
cater to the overall financial requirements 
of the customers. The Third-Party offerings 
include insurance, mutual funds, demat and 
credit cards. 
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  Insurance - The Bank is in tie-up with various 
insurance partners for offering life insurance, 
general insurance and health insurance. 
During the year, your Bank additionally 
entered into a partnership with LIC of India, 
under which the Bank will offer the insurance 
products of LIC of India to customers. The 
customers of the Bank will now thus have the 
opportunity of taking insurance protection 
from LIC through the Bank itself. 

  The Bank also offers Government insurance 
schemes under the Pradhan Mantri Bima 
Yojana viz. Pradhan Mantri Suraksha Bima 
Yojana (PMSBY), Pradhan Mantri Jeevan 
Jyoti Bima Yojana (PMJJBY), etc. During the 
year 2023-24, your Bank has earned revenue 
of ` 51.72 crore from sale of Third-Party 
Insurance Products with a 45.69% growth as 
given below: 

Table No. 3:  ( ` in crore)

Insurance Business progress:

 

 

Premium Mobilised Revenue Generated

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

Life 
Insurance 

132.17 138.90 43.75 30.10

General 
Insurance 

20.90 22.49 4.21 2.52

Health 
Insurance

19.30 20.71 3.75 2.87

Other 
Insurance

0.29 0.29 0.01 0.01

Total 172.66 182.39 51.72 35.50

  Mutual Funds - Your Bank undertakes mutual 
fund distribution with HDFC Mutual Fund, 
LIC Mutual Fund, HSBC Mutual Fund, Nippon 
India Mutual Fund, Aditya Birla Mutual Fund, 
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund and SBI Mutual  
Fund.

  During FY 2023-24, Bank achieved gross 
business of ` 144.23 crore from the mutual 
fund segment and total AUM stands at 
` 567.61	 crore	 with	 earned	 income	 of	 
` 2.90 crore.

  Credit Cards - Your Bank issues RuPay 
Platinum cards in collaboration with National 
Payments Corporation of India (NPCI). As on 
31st March, 2024, Bank has a card base of 
more than 74,000 cards with an exposure of 
` 50.02	crore.	

  Income recorded by Credit Card Department 
is as under:

Table No. 4:       (` in crore)

Particulars F.Y. 2023-24  F.Y. 2022-23  

Interest Income    9.43 6.82

Interchange Income    2.78 2.57

Other Income   3.06 2.61

Gross Income  15.27 12.00

  Demat – During the year under review, 
1,626 new demat accounts were opened at 
your Bank. Your Bank also supported IPOs 
through ASBA for 284 equity issues. Bank 
has received/processed more than 1,50,000 
IPO applications during the year. The total 
revenue earned from Demat services during 
the year was ` 4.49 crore. Total of 2,459 
trading accounts have been opened during 
FY 2023-24.

  Priority Sector Advances:

  Your Bank has fulfilled the priority sector 
targets and sub-targets as prescribed by the 
Reserve Bank of India. The priority sector 
achievement vis-à-vis the targets for FY 
2023-24 is given below:

Table No. 5:

Target Achievement
Priority Sector    60.00% 62.85%
Micro Enterprise 7.50% 7.90%
Weaker Sector 11.50% 11.69%

  Priority sector targets and sub-targets, as 
above, were achieved cumulatively through 
the priority sector advances as also by 
acquiring Priority Sector Lending Certificates 
(PSLCs). 
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  Business Loans and Govt Schemes:

  Your Bank offers tailor-made schemes like 
Unnati along with Government subsidised 
schemes like Chief Minister’s Employment 
Generation Program (CMEGP), Prime 
Minister’s Employment Generation Program 
(PMEGP), Credit Guarantee Trust for Micro 
and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE) etc. Under 
CGTMSE, we have guaranteed more than 250 
enterprises in the financial year.

  During the year under review, your Bank 
also implemented the Pradhan Mantri 
Formalization of Micro Food Processing 
Enterprises (PMFME) scheme - a centrally 
sponsored credit-linked subsidy programme 
for micro level food entrepreneurs.

  Customer Relations & Experience (CRE)

  Your Bank has in place the Customer 
Relations and Experience (CRE) Department 
which is dedicated to delivering exceptional 
service and building lasting relationships with 
our valued customers. The CRE Department 
undertook several initiatives during the year 
to forge stronger bonds with the customers.

  Key initiatives taken during the year include:

   Handling and resolving customer 
complaints.

   Reaching out to more than 1,28,000 
customers through its outsourced 
Contact Centre team. This helped in 
garnering 9,215 business leads under 
various products for the Bank. Around 
1.36 lakh incoming calls/requests/
queries were answered through the 
Contact Centre team and all these queries 
were resolved on priority basis. 

   Engaging with customers across 
different segments through initiatives 
like ‘Welcome Calling’ to newly 
onboarded customers, birthday wishes 
to minor customers turning major and 
re-engaging with customers having 
inoperative accounts. 

   Efforts for revival of accounts under the 
Depositor Education and Awareness 
(DEAF) scheme, under which your Bank 
was able to revive 2,554 accounts 
amounting to ` 11.62 crore. 

   Organising of several ‘Celebration of 
Trust’ events for customers across 
Maharashtra and Goa region. Under 
the said events, musical entertainment 
shows were organised for our esteemed 
clientele. Customers were also sensitised 
on banking issues viz. cyber frauds, 
importance of nomination, maintaining 
good credit score, completion of locker 
formalities, etc. during such events. 

 (ii) Wholesale Banking

  During FY 2023-24, fund-based limits 
of about ` 3,700 crore were sanctioned 
and disbursements of ` 2,943 crore took 
place. We accorded sanctions to about 
68 new credit relationships amounting to  
fund-based limits of ` 1,310 crore in the 
Wholesale Banking segment during the year. 
Ambit of Credit Administration Department 
(CAD) was widened and outstation centres 
at Nagpur, Nashik and Kolhapur were brought 
under CAD during the year. Total Wholesale 
advances increased from ` 14,887.14 crore 
as on 31st March, 2023 to ` 15,515.36 crore 
as on 31st March, 2024, i.e. a growth of 4.22%. 

  The Wholesale advances are well diversified 
across industries such as Textiles, Hospitality, 
Construction, Drugs and Pharmaceuticals, 
Engineering, etc. The slippages in the 
Wholesale Banking portfolio were contained 
and the Gross NPAs in the Wholesale 
Banking segment reduced from ̀  606 crore to  
` 355 crore during the year.

 (iii) Forex Business

  Your Bank has RBI license for foreign exchange 
business since 1979. The Bank caters to 
the foreign exchange requirements of its 
customers through well-established nine 
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Forex Centres. Trade finance requirements 
of the customers of SMEs and retail foreign 
exchange requirements of customers of 
branches are handled through these Forex 
Centres. The Bank offers all the major foreign 
exchange products to its customers.

  Bank has recorded foreign exchange 
merchant turnover of ̀  33,847.70 crore during 
FY 2023-24. Export finance outstanding 
as on 31st March, 2024 was at the level of 
` 1,385.99	crore.

  Your Bank has NOSTRO accounts in ten 
major currencies with leading international 
banks and correspondent relations with a 
number of reputed banks across the globe.

  Your Bank also handles foreign exchange 
business of customers of select co-operative 
banks which do not have RBI license to deal 
in foreign exchange, under line of credit 
sanctioned to them. During the year under 
review, lines of credit of ` 50.50 crore for 
foreign exchange business were continued to 
six co-operative banks.

 (iv) Treasury Operations

  Your Bank has in place a dedicated 
Treasury Department, which undertakes 
fulfillment of the regulatory obligations of 
maintenance of Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) 
and the Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR). The 
Treasury Department plays a vital role in 
managing the investment portfolio of the 
Bank and undertakes other activities like 
trading	 in	 Government	 securities/ permitted	
bonds, deployment of surplus funds and  
day-to-day funds management of the Bank. It 
extends support to the various branches and 
departments for their liquidity requirements, 
including foreign exchange requirements for 
retail clients. 

  During the year under review, the Treasury 
Department continued to contribute towards 
the profitability of the Bank by way of trading 

profits as well as through effective emphasis 
on increasing interest income through 
investments in Government securities, 
corporate bonds as well as short-term 
instruments.

7. HUMAN RESOURCES 

 The HR Department of your Bank continues to 
deliver in its role as the catalyst for aligning its 
“Human Resources” function to the achievement 
of business goals and offering quality customer 
service. Recruitment of employees, extensive 
training and development, devising new HR 
policies and processes, devising egalitarian pay 
packages, motivation and retention of skilled 
employees through job rotation, job enrichment 
and empowerment, open communication, 
employee counselling are the various activities 
undertaken by the HR Department on a regular 
basis. 

 Some of the major initiatives taken by the HR 
Department during the year are as under:

 (i) Wage Revision Agreements with the Officers’ 
Association and the Employees’ Union:

  Your Bank has signed Memorandum of 
Agreement and Memorandum of Settlement 
dated 11th September, 2023 with the Officers’ 
Association and the Employees’ Union.

  The Management believes that it is necessary 
to link remuneration with performance and 
those exhibiting outstanding performance 
should be recognised and rewarded. With this 
aim in mind, the Management reviewed some 
of the existing employee benefits such as 
leave provisions, loan facilities, allowances, 
etc. in relation to industry standards and 
modified them suitably so as to bring 
about parity with industry. To inculcate the 
Performance-based Reward and Recognition 
culture in the Bank, Variable Pay initiative 
was introduced and effectively rolled out. 

  Your Bank takes due care of employees by 
providing them with adequate staff welfare 
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measures. At the same time, expectation of 
excellent performance is spelt out clearly.

 (ii) Recruitment:

  During the year under review, your Bank 
recruited 584 employees, of which 2 were 
in the Executive cadre, 102 were in the 
Management cadre and 480 were in the  
Non-Management cadre. The candidates 
selected for various positions in the 
Executive/Management cadre have prior 
work experience in the various domains 
of banking viz. Small Finance business, IT, 
HR, Legal, Credit, Forex etc., thus bringing 
with them specific skill sets and relevant 
experience, strategy towards specific roles or 
goals. 

  During the year, 689 employees ceased to 
be in the service of the Bank due to various 
reasons like retirement, Voluntary Retirement 
Scheme, resignation, death, dismissal and 
termination. Of the same, under the Voluntary 
Retirement Scheme “SBVRS 2023”, 133 staff 
members (out of total 151 VRS applications 
accepted) were relieved during FY 2023-24, 
after reviewing their applications and overall 
performance. 

Table no. 6 :

Summary of Employees Recruited/Exited during the 
F.Y. 2023-24

Number of Employees as on 31.03.2023 4,650
Number of Employees recruited during the year 
2023-24

584

Sub-Total 5,234
Number of Employees resigned during the year 
2023-24

484

Number of Employees retired during the year 2023-
24*

72

Number of Employees taken VRS during the year 
2023-24

133

Less : Total number of Employees who exited 
during the  year 2023-24

689

Number of Employees as on 31.03.2024 4,545
Net Addition/Reduction during the year 2023-24 -105

*- includes exits due to death, dismissals, etc 

 (iii) Promotions:

  In order to provide opportunities for growth 
and to create future leaders, your Bank 
promoted 373 staff members to various 
positions in the Executive and Management 
cadres during the year.

  In the Executive cadre, 7 officials were 
promoted to various positions including 6 
Chief General Managers and 1 Assistant 
General Manager in view of their proven 
competence, and important assignments/
portfolios as per the business requirements 
were assigned to them in their new roles.

  In the Management Cadre, 366 staff members 
were promoted to the next higher cadre viz. 
7 Chief Managers, 11 Senior Managers, 121 
Managers and 227 Deputy Managers. These 
promotions were conducted based on the 
eligibility criteria and basis of selection 
decided by the Bank. 

 (iv) Upgradation of employees from Grade B to 
Grade A: 

  During the year under review, 167 staff 
members who had completed five or more 
years of service in Grade B pay scale were 
absorbed in Grade A pay scale. 

 (v) Variable Pay Programme:

  During FY 2022-23, the Variable Pay 
Programme was introduced by your Bank. 
The review of the overall performance of the 
Variable Pay Programme was undertaken. 
Accordingly, in order to bring more clarity 
and transparency in rewarding the staff 
members, a Board Level Committee was 
formed to revisit the parameters for Variable 
Pay to Management and Non-Management 
Staff in Branch Operations and Departments. 
Accordingly, after several discussions and 
deliberations with representatives from the 
Union & Association, the Committee finalised 
the parameters for Variable Pay to Operations 
Staff, Branch Managers, Zonal Managers, 
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Branch Second-in-Line, Zonal Second-
in-Line and Department Staff for the year  
2023-24. 

 (vi) Formation of Specialist Cadre:

  Your Bank has a tradition of maintaining 
highly professional and progressive 
standards and attaches utmost importance 
to the management and development of its 
human resources. Keeping the same in mind, 
a “Specialist Cadre” has been created and 
the existing Management/Non-Management 
staff members will be shifted/ transferred in 
this “Specialist Cadre” with their consent. The 
said staff members will be given exhaustive 
training and will be groomed for taking up 
higher responsibilities and leadership roles in 
the future.

 (vii)  Learning and Development (L&D):

  Your Bank has a dedicated and well-equipped 
Staff Learning Centre (SLC) at Vashi, Navi 
Mumbai which conducts training programs for 
all cadres of employees, including induction 
training for new recruits. The training 
programs focus on development of banking 
skills and inculcation of professional attitude. 
During the year, the SLC conducted 117  
in-house training programs for employees. 
During the year, the SLC established a fully 
equipped computer laboratory for hands-on 
training programs on CBS, Commercial Credit  
Processing, etc.

  Your Bank also deputed 493 employees 
for 66 training programs conducted by the 
quality external training institutions viz. 
NIBM, FEDAI, IDRBT, RBI-CAB, RBI – College 
of Supervisors, etc. for a variety of topics 
viz. FEMA guidelines, cyber security, treasury 
management, leadership, etc.

  Under the programme “Mission Vijeta”- a 
Bank-wide Education and Skill Development 
Initiative, your Bank deputed 8 Executives 
for “Strategy Implementation Program” 

conducted by the reputed Indian Institute 
of Management, Ahmedabad. The Bank 
has identified 54 Management staff under 
succession planning, who are also being 
groomed under Mission Vijeta. Regular 
programmes are held under the same for these 
staff for expanding their banking knowledge 
as well as their emotional well-being. The 
select staff were also sent for a 360-degree 
assessment workshop based on Dr. Stephen 
Covey’s best-selling business book, The 7 
Habits of Highly Effective People, which was 
truly enriching. All such programmes are 
being personally curated and supervised by 
the Chairman of your Bank. 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 Your Bank has a robust and independent risk 
management framework which effectively 
addresses both financial and non-financial 
risks. The framework is ably managed by the 
Chief Risk Officer of the Bank, who monitors 
the integrated risks at the Bank level. Your Bank 
has an Integrated Risk management framework 
in place, to evaluate and manage the different 
types of risks involved. The comprehensive 
Risk Management of your Bank is overseen 
by the Risk Management Committee (RMC) 
of the Board. The Committee plays a crucial 
role in guiding the development of policies 
and their relevance with respect to Bank’s risk  
tolerance. 

 Your Bank is exposed to various risks that are 
an inherent part of any banking business. The 
major risks are credit, market/liquidity, fraud and 
operational risks. 

 Credit Risk Management:

 Credit Risk is the risk or potential risk that may 
occur due to failure of borrower/counterparty 
to meet the obligations on agreed terms and 
conditions of financial contract. Your Bank has 
a comprehensive Credit Risk Management Policy 
in place approved by the Board, which covers 
all type of lending activities, asset classes, 
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business segments and puts in place specific 
limits and controls viz. exposure norms, sectoral 
caps, credit rating migration study, etc., thereby 
monitoring and maintaining credit exposure 
within the Bank’s risk appetite.

 Your Bank has also framed and designed the 
Credit Security Management Policy to encourage 
consistent, sound and prudent practices related 
to accepting, protecting, monitoring of securities 
and liquidation practices in use, across various 
units of the Bank.

 Market Risk/Liquidity Risk Management:

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may not 
be able to meet its financial obligations on due 
date. The Bank has a well-defined Asset Liability 
Management Policy that outlines the framework 
for liquidity and interest rate risk management. 
We have implemented a robust mechanism to 
monitor cash flow mismatches under normal and 
stressed conditions. Your Bank also monitors 
critical liquidity ratios including Liquidity 
Coverage Ratio (LCR).

 Your Bank has in place the Asset Liability 
Management Committee (ALCO) which meets at 
monthly intervals. This Committee takes a view 
on the interest rate and liquidity gap position 
of the Bank against the backdrop of the then 
prevailing trend in the economy. 

 The market risk capital charge of your Bank 
is computed using the Standardised Duration 
Method at regular intervals. The ALM & market 
risk capital charge computation has been 
automated through software package. Your Bank 
has also revamped its contingency funding plan 
for mitigating the unusual risk events.

 Operational Risk Management:

 Operational risk arises from inadequate or failed 
internal processes, people and systems or from 
external events. Your Bank has a Board-approved 
Operational Risk Management Policy, which 
outlines the governance structure and processes 
for managing operational risks. Your Bank also 

has set up a robust Reputation Risk Management 
Policy to identify, monitor and manage reputation 
risk.

 The Operational Risk Management Committee 
(ORMC) guides and oversees the functioning, 
implementation, and maintenance of operational 
risk management activities of Bank, with special 
focus on:

	 •	 Identification	 and	 assessment	 of	 risks	
across the Bank through the Risk and Control  
Self-Assessment (RCSA)

	 •	 Loss	events	data	

	 •	 Monitoring	of	risk	through	Key	Risk	Indicators	
(KRI) 

 Your Bank also computes operational risk capital 
charge based on Basic Indicator Approach (BIA). 

 Your Bank has set up a Business Level Risk 
Committee that is guided by Operational Risk 
Management Policy, responsible for identification 
and managing risk through well laid-out 
procedures.

 Material Outsourcing Risk Management: 

 Material Outsourcing Risk is the risk that may 
lead to breach in security/confidentiality, or 
non-compliance with legal and regulatory 
requirements due to failure of Material 
Outsourcing Arrangements. Your Bank has a 
Board-approved Material Outsourcing Risk 
Management Policy in place that covers crucial 
aspects of regulatory guidelines viz. Setting 
up Risk Management framework, Adherence 
to compliance and regulatory norms, Defining 
onboarding procedures, Review mechanism, 
Monitoring & Maintaining Outsourced Activity, 
etc.

 The Material Outsourcing Risk Management 
Team of your Bank monitors adherence of the 
Material Outsourcing Risk Management Policy 
and engages in identifying gaps in outsourcing 
arrangements on an ongoing basis.
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 Your Bank thus has policies and procedures to 
systematically measure, assess, monitor, and 
manage risks across all its portfolios. The Risk 
Management Team of your Bank endeavours to 
adopt the best practices of Risk Management to 
counter the dynamic economic scenario.

9. INTERNAL AUDIT

 Your Bank’s Internal Audit Department (IAD) 
continues to function as an effective tool of 
control and compliance by undertaking regular 
audits of operations at branches and departments 
as well as assessing systems, processes and 
efficiency of controls at the Bank level. Your 
Bank has fortified the audit machinery at IAD 
with professionals having sufficient qualification, 
experience and exposure. IAD has successfully 
implemented and achieved reasonable maturity 
in implementation of Risk Based Internal Audit 
mandated by RBI and put in place a detailed 
risk assessment evaluation process. Your Bank 
has a robust Audit charter and Risk-based Audit 
Policy outlining the audit purpose, roles, stature, 
authority and responsibilities of the IAD. 

 IAD undertakes various types of audit as below:

 1. Concurrent Audit:

  Your Bank has a regular and well-defined 
process of concurrent audits for all the 
Branches and important functions such 
as treasury, demat, forex and credit card in 
line with the extant regulatory guidelines. 
Reputed Chartered Accountant firms carry 
out these Concurrent Audits.

 2. Branch and Department Internal Audit:

  The IAD in-house team carries out 
independent checks based on automated 
account samples from advances, deposits 
and other operational areas at branches as 
well as departments. The risk-based audit 
approach allows internal auditors to respond 
to organizational risks on a more timely basis 
and provide suitable insights to management. 

 3. Credit Portfolio Audit (CPA):

  The IAD in-house team of your Bank 
undertakes Credit Portfolio Audit of 
Commercial loans with exposure of  
` 5 crore and above, at regular intervals for 
both existing borrowers and new borrowers. 
Risk-based approach is also followed in this 
audit and borrowers are audited based on 
risk profiling of the borrower. 

 4. Internal Control Assessment (Process Audit):

  Under the Internal Control Assessment or 
Process Audit, IAD ensures that overall 
business of your Bank is conducted in 
adherence to the guidelines issued by RBI/
other regulatory bodies, various statutory 
provisions, internal guidelines, standards and 
codes by evaluating the products/processes 
and system. IAD also conducts various 
thematic audits, which include in-depth 
examination of a particular area/product. 

 5. Information System (IS) Audit:

  IAD conducts Information System (IS) 
Audit, the broad coverage of which includes 
testing of general controls related to key IT 
Applications/critical processes, review of Core 
Banking processes and cyber security. Due 
emphasis is placed on adequacy of internal 
controls, business criticality, regulatory 
requirements, amount/value of transactions 
processed, extent of dependence on IT 
system, confidentiality requirements, major 
shift/changes carried out and availability of 
reports/returns/information generated from 
systems. Your Bank has appointed CERT-IN 
empanelled Audit Firms for IS audit, which is 
further monitored by the in-house IAD team.

  IAD periodically apprises the Audit 
Committee of the Board (ACB), the Board and 
the Senior Management on various gaps and 
irregularities observed during various internal 
audits. 
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  All audits at Bank’s branches/departments, 
both internal/external are being conducted 
through audit tool which has inbuilt checklist 
to ensure coverage of all areas. Data 
analytics is also being used as an audit tool 
to improve audit quality and to ensure 100% 
data coverage. The automation of various 
processes at IAD has helped to deliver 
high-quality audit services, strengthen the 
processes throughout the Bank, reduce the 
audit time required and bring uniformity in 
audit perspective.

10. COMPLIANCE

 The Bank has established a dedicated Compliance 
vertical headed by the Chief Compliance Officer 
to ensure focussed approach on regulatory 
compliances. Towards this objective, the Bank 
has adopted a three-tiered structure with Single 
Point of Contact (SPOCs) at various branches, 
departments and zones who will be responsible 
for ensuring compliances in their respective 
spheres. This has resulted in gradual evolving of 
the compliance function in the Bank. 

 Your Bank has reiterated on several occasions 
the importance of compliance, as an integral 
part of the assurance function as envisaged by 
the regulator. With a view to further sharpen the 
efficacy of the compliance function, the Bank has 
levied enhanced emphasis on setting the tone 
from the top for propagating the compliance 
culture in the Bank. The Bank follows a  
zero-tolerance policy for non-compliance of 
regulatory guidelines and directions. It also 
proactively benchmarks its activities to some of 
the best practices followed by its peers in the 
sector in the regulatory sphere.

 The AML KYC Cell which is a part of the compliance 
function ensures adherence to the AML KYC 
norms prescribed by the regulators at the time 
of onboarding of new customers, risk profiling 
of the existing customer database, transaction 
monitoring, as also ensuring that your Bank is 
not used by miscreants for Money Laundering 

and Terrorist Financing related activities. The Cell 
also ensures timely submission of the reporting 
stipulated by the FIU-IND. 

 The Bank is aware of the need to further 
augment the compliance function and has 
therefore initiated measures to acquire state of 
the art technology from the leaders in the BFSI 
Fintech Sector which will further enhance the 
effectiveness of the compliance function aiding 
in the Bank’s quest to be one of the best regulated 
entities in the sector.

11. VIGILANCE

 Your Bank has a robust Vigilance Department 
which undertakes vigilance activities in a proactive 
and pre-emptive manner. The Department 
undertakes incognito branch visits to verify 
adherence to the Reserve Bank of India guidelines 
as well as the Bank’s internal rules, regulations, 
and guidelines. It undertakes scrutiny of various 
types of transactions, especially any unusual 
transactions to detect suspicious/fraudulent 
nature of transactions. Such transactions as 
well as incidences of lapses/staff negligence 
are analysed and awareness is created amongst 
the staff, so that such events do not recur. The 
Department educates and spreads awareness 
amongst staff members by issuing circulars/
uploads on the ‘Employee Portal’, circulating the 
modus operandi of various types of frauds that 
have occurred in your Bank as also the banking 
industry along with the precautions to be taken to 
thwart recurrence of similar instances of frauds.

 Your Vigilance Department thus undertakes 
detective vigilance, punitive vigilance and 
corrective vigilance and reports the findings and 
the status of follow-up of such findings to the 
Board and the Top Management of the Bank. Other 
major activities at Vigilance Department include 
timely reporting of fraud cases and counterfeit 
notes detected at branches to RBI. This year, 
your Bank has also commenced reporting of  
payment-related frauds to RBI through their 
Electronic Data Submission Portal. 
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 Recently, the role of Vigilance, with the exception 
of staff related matters, has been taken over 
by Fraud Risk Management Cell (FRMC) of the 
Bank, in line with the regulatory requirement and 
industry standards. The FRMC is the focal point 
for collating and handling all incidents identified 
viz. fraud or suspected fraud and based on the 
incidents analyzing the vulnerabilities, improving 
the controls, monitoring functions and developing 
suitable means to prevent frauds.

12. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY & DIGITAL 
BANKING

 Your Bank has always been at the forefront of 
adopting cutting-edge technologies to provide 
a seamless customer experience. On the 
technology front, the Bank has implemented 
multiple initiatives including augmenting core 
infrastructure, deploying high-end next generation 
firewalls, SD WAN (Software Define Wide Area 
Networking) and building redundancies to ensure 
faster transaction processing, enhanced security 
and better uptime and availability.

 Your Bank understands the importance of 
digitization and offers a wide bouquet of digital 
products. Some of the digital products offered by 
the Bank are WhatsApp Banking, Mobile Banking, 
Retail Internet Banking, Corporate Internet 
Banking, UPI, NETC, BBPS and Gift Cards. The 
digital transactions of your Bank stood at 90% of 
total transactions for year ending March 2024. 

 The Bank has introduced the following 
functionalities on digital channels during the year 
under review: 

	 •	 UPI Lite - UPI Lite is an on-device wallet 
meant for carrying out small-value payments 
under ` 500/- without entering the UPI PIN. 
It has been devised by National Payments 
Corporation of India (NPCI) to ease small-
ticket payments in a quick and secure 
manner. We are the 1st among co-operative 
banks to enable this feature. 

	 •	 UPI International - UPI International is a new 
feature that enables you to make QR code 
payments using your bank account to select 
merchants abroad.

	 •	 eMandate facility - This provides a simple and 
seamless process for mandate registration 
and helps overcome the time consumed in 
the physical mandate process. eMandate 
services have reduced processing time and 
made recurring payments more streamlined 
and efficient. Your Bank is now live in Debit 
Card mode both as a Sponsor and Destination 
Bank. 

	 •	 Re-KYC for retail customers - The link for 
re-KYC is available on the Bank’s website 
in the Digital Banking Section and helps 
the customers to update their KYC without 
visiting the branch.

	 •	 Online Dispute Redressal (ODR) - The link is 
available on Bank’s website and customers 
can raise online disputes for digital channel 
transactions without visiting the branch.

	 •	 NCMC RuPay cards - Bank has issued 
National Common Mobility Card (NCMC),  
contactless RuPay card. This card envisages 
the development of a cashless fare payment 
mechanism, which will work across all the 
public transport systems in the country such 
as metros, buses, cabs etc. 

	 •	 Annual Account Statement on WhatsApp 
Banking - Customers can obtain annual 
account statement via Whatsapp for the 
previous two financial years.

	 •	 Positive Pay in Internet Banking - This 
provides customer safety in cheque 
payments and reduces instances of fraud 
due to tampering of cheque leaves.

13. INFORMATION SECURITY 

 The role of Information Security in banking is 
crucial considering that it is a Second Layer 
of Defence right after Information Technology. 
During the year under review, ISD has undertaken 
several initiatives to strengthen the Bank’s 
Information Security which includes Source 
Code Review, Cyber Risk Assessment, Technical 
Risk Assessment & Risk Assessment of 
Digital Products and Services. Additionally, 
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ISO27001 ISMS Certification was taken up 
for implementation for the Bank’s Depository  
Cell.

 ISD also undertook betterment and enhancement 
within the existing processes such as Security 
Assessments, RED Teaming Exercises, Real 
Time Threat Monitoring SOC, Data Loss 
Prevention, Identity & Access Management, 
Mobile Device Management, Email Monitoring, 
Awareness, etc., to ensure adoption of  
“Security-By-Design”, “Security-in-Practice” 
and “Security-in-Culture” in true spirit. Fair 
participation was demonstrated during Cyber 
Drills. Spear-Phishing Simulations were 
conducted in multiple phases for awareness 
among the staff members. Multiple additional 
security assessments were performed by  
technically-qualified employees to further 
strengthen the infrastructure, application, devices 
and enhance the preparedness of information 
and cyber security solutions. 

 The efforts undertaken by Information Security 
Department to drive various security-savvy 
initiatives at the Bank have been recognised, 
appreciated & rewarded at many podiums. ISD 
received awards in different categories from 
various institutions viz. Computer Society of India 
(CSI) for Outstanding CISO in Cyber Security and 
for Outstanding Security Team in Co-operative 
Banks, Business World’s BW Security World 
Conclave and Excellence Awards 2023, and many 
more.

 Your Bank shall continue its rigorous and 
uncompromised journey of Information Security 
and shall take every single step to Protect, 
Detect and Defend Bank’s sensitive information 
in collaboration with other stakeholders by 
equally focusing onto Process, Technology and  
People.

14. BRANCH EXPANSION 

 The total branch strength of the Bank stood at 
289 as on 31st March, 2023. 

 During the year under review, the Bank opened 
13 new branches which include Bhayandar 
(E), Govandi, Titwala, New Panvel Sector 5, 
Punawale, Colaba, Jogeshwari (E)-HFS, Ghansoli,  
Dombivli (E) MIDC, Ravet, Moshi,  
Malad (E), Keshav Nagar (Pune). With the opening 
of these new branches, the total count of branches 
as on 31st March, 2024 stands at 302.

 By crossing 300 branches, we have achieved a 
significant milestone in our rich history. Moshi 
branch bears the distinction of being our 300th 
branch.

15. ADVERTISING, ALLIANCES AND CORPORATE 
COMMUNICATIONS 

 Your Bank is committed to maintaining 
and strengthening its brand value while 
simultaneously focusing on product promotion 
and development. It has a dedicated in-house 
Marketing and Communications team that 
leverages multiple channels such as print, radio, 
television, outdoor and digital media to attain the 
above objectives.

 Being an in-house team, it has a deeper 
understanding of the Bank’s products/services, 
leading to campaigns that bring about desired 
outcome and optimum visibility, while garnering 
required business.

 The marketing team carried out a 360-degree 
brand campaign across various media like Print, 
Digital, Outdoor, TV, social media and website. 
Also, other products promoted during the year 
over different media included Car Loan, Education 
Loan, Home Loan, Loan Against Property, Doctor 
Delite and Fixed Deposits.

 Your Bank successfully leveraged the television 
medium to promote its multiple products 
showcased in a single advertisement, thus 
saving on heavy budgets. Your Bank also used 
the outdoor media quite judiciously this year for 
various campaigns by selecting and shortlisting 
target locations over specific period basis 
business objective and customer utility.
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16. SPECIAL CREDIT MONITORING CELL (SCMC)

 Special Credit Monitoring Cell (SCMC) of your 
Bank is instrumental in monitoring of commercial 
borrower accounts which are under stress.

 These stressed accounts or ‘Special Mention 
Accounts’ (SMA) as they are called are reviewed 
at SCMC at regular intervals and an appropriate 
corrective action plan is formulated. Nursing of 
such stressed accounts is done in coordination 
with the operating units for ensuring upgradation 
of such borrowers within a reasonable timeframe.

 Position of SMA accounts year-on-year basis is 
as under: -

Table No. 7: (` in crore)

Exposure as on
31.03.2024

Exposure as on
31.03.2023

SMA-2 486 207

SMA-1 521 788

Total 1,007 995

 With timely corrective action plans and close 
monitoring, the critical overdues in these accounts 
have been recovered. It is observed that borrowers 
in industries such as Hospitality, Shipping, Other 
Services etc and those businesses belonging to 
first generation entrepreneurs which suffered 
in the aftermath of the pandemic are gradually 
reviving.

17. MOVEMENT OF NPAs

 Non-Performing Assets:

 Over the past few years, the Bank has successfully 
brought down the gross NPA levels through 
concerted efforts such as monitoring of advances 
and robust recovery actions. During the year 
under review, the various initiatives undertaken 
by the Bank for recovery of NPAs, viz. specific 
verticals for Wholesale, Retail Segment and 
Prudentially Written-off accounts, appointment 
of external agencies for debt-collection, vehicle 

re-possession, vehicle yard facility, asset-tracing 
and asset sale, to name a few, have yielded good 
results.

 Resultantly, your Bank posted an all-time high 
recovery of ` 517.52 crore from different sources 
as below: 

  Recovery of ` 325.92 crore in Gross NPAs 
from earlier years

  Recovery amounting to ` 87.36 crore from 
newly-classified NPAs during the year

  Recovery in interest amounting to ` 11.54 
crore 

  Recovery of ` 18.55 crore in prudentially 
written-off NPAs

  Recovery of ` 20.06 crore made from the 
assets assigned by the Bank to Phoenix ARC

  To further bring down the gross NPA levels, 
during the year your Bank decided to 
undertake sale of pool of Non-Performing 
Assets (NPAs), in line with Reserve Bank 
of India (RBI) guidelines. A total pool 
comprising various NPA accounts including 
the written-off portfolio having book value 
of ` 390.38 crore was assigned to M/s Asset 
Reconstruction Company of India Ltd. (ARCIL) 
at a total consideration of ` 54.09 crore on 
100% upfront cash basis. For the purpose 
of conducting ARC transaction, BOB Capital 
Markets Ltd. was appointed as process 
advisers to conduct the entire process as 
per the rules, regulations & guidelines laid 
down by the respective authorities from 
time to time. The sale not only brought down 
the NPAs but also paved the way for future 
growth capital. 

 Hence, despite addition of New NPAs of ` 294.33 
crore, the total Gross NPAs of your Bank reduced 
considerably by ` 235.41 crore, from ` 1,172.90 
crore as on 31st March, 2023 to ` 937.49 crore as 
on 31st March, 2024.

 The ratio of Gross NPAs to Gross Advances 
reduced from 3.78% in the FY 2022-23 to 2.88% 
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in the FY 2023-24. The Net NPA ratio continued to 
be maintained at ZERO%, as in the preceding year.

 Movement of NPAs and Provisions during the 
year were as under:

 (Table no. 8) (` in crore)

PARTICULARS AMOUNT

ADVANCES

 As on 31st March, 2024 32,567.46

GROSS NPA

 As on 31st March, 2023 1,172.90

 (-) Reduction during the year. 325.92

	 (-) 	Prudentially	 written-off	
during the year

31.39

 (-) Assigned to ARCIL 172.43

 (+) Additions during the year. 294.33

As on 31st March, 2024 937.49

PROVISIONS

 As on 31st March, 2023 1,160.92

 As on 31st March, 2024 921.91

NET NPAs

 31st March, 2023 0.00%

 31st March, 2024 0.00%

PROVISION COVERAGE RATIO

 31st March, 2023 98.98%

 31st March, 2024 98.34%

 Provision Coverage Ratio:

	 Your	 Bank	 follows	 a	 prudent	 policy	 for	 making	
provisions on NPAs as per regulatory IRAC 
norms. While strictly adhering to the regulatory 
norms, your Bank also makes additional 
provision, over and above the required amounts. 
This year, this additional provision is to the tune  
of	` 335.55 crore, making it a Zero Net NPA Bank.

	 Provision	Coverage	Ratio	(PCR),	which	indicates	
the	ratio	of	provisions	made	by	the	Bank	against	
NPAs, as on 31.03.2024 is at 98.34 % i.e. nearly 
100%,	which	indicates	that	the	entire	Gross	NPAs	
are	fully	provided	for.

18. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (CRAR)

	 The	 capital	 adequacy	 position	 of	 the	 Bank	 for	 
FY 2023-24 vis-a-vis the preceding year is as 
below:

(Table no. 9) (` in crore)

Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

Capital-Tier I   

a.  Share Capital (a) * 334.23 344.23

b.  Reserves and Surplus   

 Statutory Reserve 1,146.82 1,058.55

  Other Reserves 1,509.14 1,350.70

  Revaluation Reserves 292.76 310.71

		 Profit	and	Loss	Account 399.16 264.45

 Sub-Total (b) 3,347.88 2,984.41

	 Gross	Tier	I	Capital	(a+b) 3,682.11 3,328.64

	 Less:	Intangible	assets	&	
losses

268.03 304.89

Net Tier I Capital (A) 3,414.08 3,023.75

Capital-Tier II   

General	Provisions 287.59 176.05

Investment Fluctuation 
Reserve

450.35 400.35

Subordinated Debts 1,198.31 1,003.91

Tier II Capital (B) 1,936.25 1,580.31

Total Capital Funds (A+B) 5,350.33 4,604.06

Risk Assets   

i.  Funded Risk Assets 27,751.15 26,214.30

ii.		 Non-funded	Risk	Assets	 810.26 851.64

iii.		 Risk	Weighted	Assets	for	
market risk 

2,398.51 1,696.66

Total Risk Weighted Assets 
(i+ii+iii)

30,959.92 28,762.60

Capital Adequacy Ratio % 17.28 16.01

* Reduction in Share Capital over March 2023 is mainly on account 
of	 PNCPS	 amount	 of	 ` 33.75 crore maturing upto 31.03.2024 
not	 considered	 for	 calculation	 of	 Capital	 Adequacy	 Ratio	 as	 on	
31.03.2024.
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19. APPROPRIATIONS

 Your Bank proposes the following appropriations 
from the Net Profit for FY 2023-24.

(Table no. 10) (` in lakh)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

Transfer to Reserve Fund 
(25%)

 12,574.63  8,792.39 

Contingency Reserve (10%)  5,029.86  3,516.96 

Provision for Education Fund 
of N.C.U.I.(1%)

 502.98  351.69 

Co-operative Rehabilitation, 
Reconstruction and 
Development Fund 

 100.00  - 

Dividend on PNCPS @10.50%  571.67  571.67 

Dividend on equity shares 
@ 17.50% (previous year @ 
15% )

 5,222.50  4,116.35 

Provision for Ex-gratia to 
employees

 3,340.00  3,410.00 

Members’ Welfare Fund  200.00  50.00 

Provision for Staff Welfare  10.00  10.00 

Provision for Public, 
Charitable & Co-operative 
Purposes (1%)

 502.98  351.69 

Investment Fluctuation 
Reserve

 5,000.00  5,000.00 

Special Reserve  2,240.50  2,947.50 

General Reserve  15,000.00  6,450.00 

Balance to be c/f to the next 
year

 71.42  68.03 

Total  50,366.54  35,636.28 

 Dividend on Equity Shares 

 Your Board of Directors recommends a Dividend 
of 17.50% for the year ended 31st March, 2024 on 
Equity Shares, as against 15% for the preceding 
year.

 Dividend on Perpetual Non–Cumulative 
Preference Shares 

 Your Board of Directors recommends a Dividend 
of 10.50% for the year ended 31st March, 2024 on 
Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares, 
similar as the preceding year.

 Members’ Welfare Fund 

 Your Board of Directors recommends contribution 
of ` 200 lakh towards Members’ Welfare Fund. 
After this accretion, the total amount in this 
fund will be ` 1,591.64 lakh. During the year, 954 
members availed reimbursement of expenses 
towards medical treatment and medical  
check-up. Nine awards were granted to 
meritorious children of members. 

 Ex-gratia to Employees 

 We propose that an Ex-gratia payment of upto  
` 33.40 crore be granted to our employees for the 
financial year ending 31st March, 2024, to be paid 
as per conditions of the Wage Agreement. 

 Provision for Public Charitable and Co-operative 
Purposes

 As permitted under RBI Circular No. UBD. (PCB)/ 
BPD/Cir/43 dated 11th April, 2005, your Board 
recommends an appropriation of 1% of the net 
profit i.e. ` 502.98 lakh for public, charitable and 
co-operative purposes. 

 Special Reserve

 In accordance with Section 36(1)(viii) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961, Urban Co-operative Banks 
are entitled to a deduction in respect of profits 
earned from eligible business i.e. profits earned 
from loans and advances granted to industries, 
infrastructure, agriculture and housing. Twenty 
per cent of such profits transferred to a Special 
Reserve are eligible for deduction from taxable 
income. Your Board, therefore, recommends an 
amount of ` 2,240.50 lakh to be appropriated out 
of profits derived from the said eligible business 
towards Special Reserve.

20. AMENDMENT TO BANK’S BYE-LAWS

 The Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 
(the MSCS Act) and its Rules (the MSCS Rules) 
were amended by enactment of The Multi-State 
Co-operative Societies (Amendment) Act, 2023 
and The Multi-State Co-operative Societies 
Amendment Rules which came into force with 
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effect from 3rd August, 2023 and 4th August, 2023 
respectively {MSCS (Amendment) Act & Rules, 
2023}. Further, vide circular dated 16th October, 
2023, the Ministry of Co-operation instructed all 
the Multi-State Co-operative Societies to amend 
their existing bye-laws in accordance with the 
MSCS (Amendment) Act & Rules, 2023. Hence, 
it is proposed to amend some of our existing  
bye-laws and add some new bye-laws.

 The proposed amendments/additions of new 
bye-laws during the year are: 

 Amendment to Bye-law No. 4

 Section 10 and Section 14 of the MSCS Act 
pertain to contents of the bye-laws of Multi-State  
Co-operative Societies including the address. 
These sections are amended to include 
incorporation of electronic mail (e-mail) address 
of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies in the 
bye-laws to ensure faster and efficient channel of 
communication with the Multi-State Co-operative 
Societies and to ensure ease of doing business. 

 Hence, it is proposed to amend existing Bye-law 
no.4 by adding the e-mail address of the Bank.

 Addition of new Bye-law No.6 (E )( i)

 As per amended Section 28 of the MSCS Act, 
a member shall not exercise his rights unless 
he has made payment in respect of all dues to 
the Society including the payment in respect of 
membership or availed minimum level of products 
or services as may be specified in the bye-laws. 

 Further, as existing bye-laws do not define 
minimum level of products and services, it is 
proposed to add Bye-law no. 6 (E) (i) to define 
minimum level of products and services to be 
availed by the member of the Society, 

 i.e. Minimum Level of Products and Services to 
be availed by the member shall be as follows:

 (a)  Maintained with the Bank during the previous 
financial year: - 

  i.  Savings Account with average daily 
balance of ` 2,000/- or;

  ii. Current Account with average daily 
balance of ` 5,000/- or;

 (b) Maintained Fixed Deposit of minimum 
`  10,000/-	or;

 (c) Taken loan of any type for an amount of at 
least ` 1,00,000/-.

 Addition of new Bye-law No.24A

 Section 29 of the MSCS Act provides for 
disqualification of a member:-

 i) if his business is in conflict or competitive 
with the business of such Multi-State  
Co-operative Society or;

 ii) he fails to use the minimum level of products 
or services as specified in the bye-laws for 
two consecutive years or;

 iii) he has not attended three consecutive 
general meetings of the Multi-State  
Co-operative Society and such absence has 
not been condoned by the members in the 
general meeting or;

 iv) he has made any default in payment of 
any amount to be paid to the Multi-State  
Co-operative Society. 

 Our bye-laws are silent on the conditions which 
will lead to disqualification of a member of Multi-
State Co-operative Society. Hence, it is proposed 
to add new Bye-law no.24 A to incorporate 
above-mentioned conditions which will lead to 
disqualification of a member.

 Amendment to Bye-law No. 55A

 Newly incorporated Section 45 J (1) of the MSCS 
Act provides that a person shall be eligible to be 
elected as a member of the Board or office bearer 
of a Multi-State Co-operative Society, only if he 
is an active member of the general body of that 
Society.

 Existing Bye-law No. 55A provides for 
qualifications for candidates contesting for 
directorship but does not provide for active 
membership as one of the criteria for eligibility. 
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Hence, it is proposed to amend Bye-law no.55A 
and incorporate the above provision to bring it 
in line with the provisions of newly incorporated 
Section 45 J (1) of the MSCS Act.

 Amendment to Bye-law No. 58

 Newly incorporated Section 45 (J) (5) of the MSCS 
Act provides that the term of office of elected 
members of the Board and its office bearers 
shall be five years from the date of election and 
the term of office bearers shall be co-terminus 
with the term of the Board: Provided that the 
Board may fill casual vacancies upto one-third 
of number of elected Directors on the Board by 
nomination out of the same class of members in 
respect of which the casual vacancy has arisen, 
if the term of office of the Board is less than half 
of its original term: Provided further that in case 
the number of such casual vacancies in the same 
term of the Board exceeds one-third of number of 
elected Directors, such vacancies shall be filled 
by elections.

 As per our Bye-law no.58, if any casual vacancy 
occurs in the Board, it may be filled up by the 
continuing members thereof and any person so 
chosen shall retain office so long as the vacating 
member would have retained the same if no 
vacancy had occurred. Hence, it is proposed to 
replace Bye-law no.58 to bring it in line with the 
newly incorporated Section 45 J (5) of the MSCS 
Act.

 Amendment to Bye-law No. 61

 Section 50 of the MSCS Act has been amended 
and the quorum for a meeting of the Board of 
Directors of a Multi-State Co-operative Society 
is stipulated as one-third of its total number of 
elected Directors.

 As per our Bye-law no. 61, the quorum for meetings 
of the Board of Directors is five members. Hence, 
it is proposed to amend Bye-law no.61 to bring it 
in line with the amendment to Section 50 of the 
MSCS Act.

 Amendment to Bye-law No. 64A

 Section 53 of the MSCS Act is amended 
to empower the Board to constitute an 
Executive Committee and other committees, or  
sub-committees as may be specified in the  
bye-laws of the Multi-State Co-operative 
Societies provided that the Board shall constitute 
an Audit and Ethics Committee and a Committee 
on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace. 

 Prior to the amendment, the number of 
committees were restricted to three by the MSCS 
Act. But after the amendment, the restriction of 
maximum three committees is removed and 
the Board is empowered to constitute Executive 
Committee and other committees as per the 
bye-laws subject to compulsorily constituting an 
Audit and Ethics Committee and a Committee on 
Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace. 

 Existing Bye-law no.64 A states that the Board 
may constitute an Executive Committee and 
other committees or sub-committees provided 
that other than the Executive Committee, other 
committees shall not exceed three. Hence, it is 
proposed to amend Bye-law 64 A to bring it in line 
with amended Section 53 of the MSCS Act.

 Addition of new Bye-law No.75

 Section 106 of the MSCS Act has been 
substituted with new provision which provides 
for appointment of a Co-operative Information 
Officer who shall furnish information to the 
members about the affairs and management 
of the Society on an application from member 
and payment of fees and such information shall 
be confined to the information falling under the 
disclosure norms specified by the Society in its 
bye-laws.

 Hence, it is proposed to add a new Bye-law 
no.75 to make provision for appointment of 
Co-operative Information Officer, who shall on 
receipt of application provide information to its 
members about the affairs and management of 
the Society and such information shall be as per 
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Reserve Bank’s Master Direction on Financial 
Statements - Presentation and Disclosures, 
provided that the Society shall not reveal the 
information relating to any customer or member 
as per Society’s obligation to maintain secrecy 
under the provisions of law.

 The exact text of amendment of all above  
bye-laws is given on Page no. 116 to  
Page no. 119 of this Annual Report.

21. AWARDS

 Awards serve as a token of appreciation and 
provide recognition and motivation to the 
employees for the painstaking efforts taken.

 During the year under review, your Bank was 
selected as the winner of the esteemed CXO 
Security Innovation Award 2024 in the category 
of ‘Advanced Cybersecurity Framework’.

 Your Bank also received the Gold award 
for Modern Technologies-led Innovation 
Infrastructure Augmentation under the Infosys 
Innovation Awards 2024.

 During the year under review, your Bank won 
the Data Excellence Award in the category of 
Consumer Bureau from CRIF. CRIF High Mark 
Credit Information Services is an RBI-approved 
credit bureau in India. 

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

 As a part of its social commitment, your Bank 
donates a part of its profits each year to public 
and charitable institutions pursuing worthy 
causes in social and humanitarian activities. 

 During the year under review, your Bank continued 
with its CSR activities and contributed to the 
cause of healthcare in India. Healthcare in India 
faces many challenges today, the main being 
accessibility, cost and quality. Additionally, there 
is rapidly growing burden of chronic disease in 
India, especially cancer. 

 Tata Memorial Hospital (TMH) at Mumbai is 
synonymous with cancer care and faces the 
largest influx of patients from all over India. The 

Hospital is doing outstanding work in the field 
of cancer and needs to be supported in its noble 
work. It has established 9 new cancer hospitals 
across India and is set to add 6 more. At Tata 
Memorial Hospital, 60% of registered patients 
receive free/highly subsidized treatment. 

 During the year under review, the Hospital was 
in need of funds for the procurement of surgical 
equipment for its Gastrointestinal District 
Management Group. Your Bank therefore, made 
a sizeable donation of ` 2,51,00,000/- (Rupees 
Two Crore Fifty One Lakh only) to Tata Memorial 
Hospital for the procurement of the following 
surgical equipment: 

 1) Advanced 4k Laparoscopic System 

 2) HandX - a semi-robotic device for 
laparoscopic and robotic surgery 

 Your Bank also donated ` 50,00,000/- (Rupees 
Fifty Lakh only) to BYL Nair Hospital in furtherance 
of its Corporate Social Responsibility. The donated 
funds will be utilized by the Hospital for the most 
needy patients based on their socioeconomic 
assessment, urgency and treatment process 
by the Medical Social Work Department, which 
works as a vital bridge between Donors and  
Receivers. 

 Your Bank also donated ` 30,00,000/- (Rupees 
Thirty Lakh only) to the District Women & Child 
Hospital, Kudal, Dist. Sindhudurg. The 100-bed 
Hospital operates under the aegis of Jilha Shalya 
Chikitsak, Sindhudurg. The Hospital which is 
under the administrative control of the Public 
Health Department of Maharashtra Government 
fills a major gap in healthcare in Kudal Taluka, 
Sindhudurg. 

 Your Bank in the preceding year, had undertaken 
donation under the initiative ‘Rang de Majhi 
Shaala’ organized by Girgaumkar Prathisthan. 
During the year under review, your Bank donated 
` 20 lakh under this initiative for the renovation 
and painting work of more than 50 schools in 
Maharashtra. 
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 Your Bank thus continued to donate substantially 
to the healthcare and education sector under its 
Corporate Social Responsibility during the year 
under review.

 Under the Runanubandh initiative of the Bank, 
donations amounting to ` 20.63 lakh were given 
to 157 institutions during the FY 2023-24.

23. OTHER DEVELOPMENTS 

  Your Bank emerged in the Top category in 
Moneylife Foundation’s publication “Report 
on Reasonableness of Service Charges by 
Banks in India”. The said report was published 
by Moneylife Foundation, in collaboration 
with the Indian Institute of Technology (IIT), 
Mumbai, based on a study on bank charges in 
India. Shri Mundra, Former Deputy Governor 
of RBI presided over the publication of the 
said report. 

  The leading Marathi daily, Loksatta had 
organized the publication of Annual Report 
of The District Development Index of 
Maharashtra. The District Development 
Index project will be very useful to the 
State Government for planning and Policy 
decisions. Your Bank was the main sponsor 
for this event and remained a part of the 
project from the conceptual stage to the final 
report.  

  The World Bank and the IMF, in collaboration 
with the Ministry of Finance and RBI is 
conducting the Financial Sector Assessment 
Program (FSAP) for India in 2024 to analyse 
the stability and soundness of the country’s 
financial sector and its contribution to growth 
and development. As a part of their India visit, 
a team from the World Bank visited your Bank 
to find out about the co-operative sector and 
the MSME lending practices and challenges. 
The World Bank Team was represented by 
Ms. Natalie Nicolaou, Sr. Financial Sector 
Specialist and Mr. Venkat Sreedhara, 
Financial Sector Specialist. The World Bank 
officials and your Bank officials discussed 

at length various issues viz. challenges in 
MSME lending, MSME credit portfolio trends 
and performance, MSME credit appraisal, 
digital lending, etc. 

24. IDEAL SHAREHOLDER

 It has been your Bank’s tradition of bestowing 
the honour of ‘Ideal Shareholder’ i.e. Adarsh 
Sabhasad on a select shareholder every year. 
During the year under review, your Bank bestowed 
this prestigious honour on Dr. Satish Waman 
Wagh, Founder & Chairman, Supriya Lifesciences 
Ltd. 

 Dr. Satish Wagh was born in Mumbai on  
29th December, 1955. With degrees in Chemistry 
and Economics, Dr. Wagh had the courage and 
conviction to follow his dreams and soon in 1987, 
he founded Supriya Lifesciences Ltd. Visionary 
& determined, he shaped the organization 
into a world class enterprise. Today, Supriya 
Lifesciences Ltd. has a well-established presence 
in manufacturing of Active Pharmaceutical 
Ingredients (API). With a global presence in 
more than 150 countries, Supriya Lifesciences 
Ltd. has touched new pinnacles and has put 
India on the world map in the pharmaceutical  
sector. 

 Dr. Wagh’s illustrious career spans over  
thirty-six years and he has been bestowed with 
numerous awards and accolades. As Chairman 
of CHEMEXCIL, he has helped the industry 
and its exports grow exponentially. He is an 
inspiration to several young entrepreneurs as he 
continues to motivate and share his experience 
with leading business schools as Guest 
Lecturer. A philanthropist and humanitarian, he 
established the ‘Satish Wagh Foundation’ and 
its CSR initiatives focus heavily on Education, 
Health, Socio-Economic Initiatives and  
Environment.

 Saraswat Bank is proud to be associated with  
Dr. Satish Wagh, his family and Supriya 
Lifesciences Ltd., over the past thirty-six years. 
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25. COMPOSITION OF YOUR BANK’S BOARD

 The composition of the Board of your Bank 
is governed by the Multi-State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002 and the bye-laws of the Bank. 
As on 31st March 2024, there are 18 Directors on 
the Board in addition to the Managing Director. 
The Board includes eminent persons with 
professional expertise and experience in banking, 
finance and other fields. There is no change 
in the composition of the Bank’s Board during  
FY 2023-24. However, the changes subsequent 
to 31st March, 2024 till the date of this Report are 
listed below. 

 During the year under report, twenty-five Board 
meetings were held.

 Changes in the composition of the Board

 Shri Madhu Mangesh Karnik, Senior Director 
resigned from the Board of Directors of the 
Bank and the resignation was accepted by the 
Board on 14th April,2024. The Board is grateful to  
Shri Madhu Mangesh Karnik for his valuable 
contribution to the Bank during his tenure as 
Director of the Bank. Shri Karnik has been 
subsequently appointed as the Cultural Advisor 
of the Bank with effect from 1st May 2024. Shri 
Karnik has a long association with the Bank 
and has written the books ‘Amrut Saraswat’ and 
‘Shatabdi Saraswat’ for the Bank. 

 The Bank has co-opted Shri Laxman R. Samant 
on the Board of the Bank on 14th April, 2024. 
Shri Laxman Samant (B.Sc – Chemistry from 
Mumbai University, MMS with Certification in 
IT & Cyber Security) is a career banker who has 
served Saraswat Bank for more than thirty-four 
years. He has worked across various functions 
and has rich insights in the areas of Treasury, 
Risk Management, Accounts, Wholesale Credit, 
Branch Operations, Planning, etc. He retired from 
the services of Saraswat Bank as Joint Managing 
Director on 30th June, 2022. Shri Samant is 
now a Member of the Audit Accounts and NPA 
Management Committee of the Board and of the 
Risk Management Committee of the Board.

 With these changes in the composition of the 
Board, there are presently 18 Directors on the 
Board in addition to the Managing Director. Your 
Bank has one Chartered Accountant and seven 
Bankers as its Directors.

 Board of Management (BoM) 

 The Bank also has in place a Board of Management 
(BoM) comprising persons with specialised 
knowledge and practical expertise in banking to 
facilitate professional management and focussed 
attention to the banking activities. There is no 
change in the composition of the Bank’s Board of 
Management (BoM) during FY 2023-24.

 During the year under review, twenty-five 
meetings of the Board of Management were held.

 Re-constitution of the Board of Management 
(BoM)

 Shri M. V. Tanksale, member of the Board of 
Management of the Bank resigned from the 
Board of Management due to personal reasons 
on 8th April, 2024.

 The BoM was subsequently re-constituted, 
which included two existing Board members, two 
existing external members and two additional 
external members viz. Shri Himadri S. Chatterjee 
and Shri Sanjay D. Naik. All the external members 
are accomplished persons from the banking/ 
finance and other related fields. 

 Details of the additional external BoM members 
are given below: 

 Shri Himadri S. Chatterjee holds a Masters in 
Physics from University of Delhi, Axis Executive 
Leadership Program (Duke University Corporate 
Education), CAFRAL Advanced Leadership 
Program, Governance and Stakeholder 
Management Program and Certification Program 
in IT & Cyber Security for Board Members.

 He is a career banker who has served Axis Bank 
and State Bank of India in various capacities 
for the last thirty-five plus years. His last-held 
position was President and Head of Operations in 
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Axis Bank. He has driven large transformational 
projects to improve productivity and processes 
across the Bank in both retail and corporate 
segments and has also driven and built 
businesses across CASA products, Corporate and 
Retail foreign exchange and Third-Party sales.

 Shri Sanjay D. Naik (B.Sc from Mumbai University, 
CAIIB, MBA – Banking & Finance) is a career 
banker who served State Bank of India in various 
capacities and retired as Deputy Managing 
Director (International Banking) after thirty-
six years of service. He has attended Executive 
Program in Leadership (Stanford University) and 
Certification Program in IT & Cyber Security for 
Board Members (Institute for Development and 
Research in Banking Technology).

 He has worked across various key business 
areas such as Retail Banking, Corporate Credit, 
International Banking, Trade Finance. As Deputy 
Managing Director (International Banking) of 
State Bank of India, he was heading boards of 
four banks set up by SBI in UK, California, Canada 
and Mauritius.

 With the changes in the composition of the 
Board of Management since April 2024, the BoM 
constitutes two existing Board members and 
four external reputed persons from the banking 
fraternity. 

 The current list of BoM members is as below:

Internal 
Members(from Board 
of Directors)

External Expert 
Members 

•	 Shri	S.	K.	Banerji •	 Shri	A.	S.	Mokashi
 Chairman of 

the Board of 
Management ( BoM)

•	 Dr.	V.	Y.	Tarale

•	 Shri	S.	S.	Shirodkar •	 Shri	H.	S.	
Chatterjee

•	 Shri	S.	D.	Naik

 Loans to Directors 

 No Director has borrowed any money from 
your Bank except against their fixed deposits 

as permitted by RBI. This is a healthy tradition 
in your Bank and has also been enshrined in  
Bye-law No. 55 and Bye-law No. 63 (c) many 
years ago.

 Working of Committees 

 The Board has constituted Committees, which 
include Directors, to take informed decisions in 
the best interests of the Bank. As on 31st March, 
2024, eight Committees of the Board were in 
place viz.: 

	 •	 Executive	and	HRD	Committee	

	 •	 Audit,	 Accounts	 and	 NPA	 Management	
Committee 

	 •	 Risk	Management	Committee	

	 •	 Information	 Technology	 (IT)	 Strategy	
Committee 

	 •	 Special	Committee	for	Monitoring	and	Review	
of Frauds

	 •	 Credit	Committee	

	 •	 Nomination	 and	 Remuneration	 Committee	
(NRC)

	 •	 Prevention	 of	 Sexual	 Harassment	 at	
Workplace (POSH) Committee

 The various Committees and the scope of 
functions are as follows: 

 Executive and HRD Committee: 

 The Executive and HRD Committee looks 
into HR and training issues, formulation and 
implementation of action plans for sustaining/
improving the quality of the Bank’s human 
resources and welfare measures for employees 
at all levels. It is also involved in decision-making 
on all operational matters, except sanction of 
loans/advances. It further decides upon branch 
expansion, acquisition of premises on purchase or 
lease for branches/offices, approves expenditure 
and costs in relation thereto and also considers 
any other matter which requires urgent attention. 
During the year under review, eleven meetings of 
the Committee were held. 
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 Shri S. K. Banerji is the Chairman of the Executive 
and HRD Committee of the Board. 

 Audit, Accounts and NPA Management 
Committee:

 This Committee provides direction, oversees 
the total audit function of your Bank, follows 
up statutory/external/concurrent audit and 
ensures strict adherence to RBI’s guidelines and 
directives from time to time. It deliberates on the 
progress of recoveries of overdues and NPAs, and 
decides on issuing of securitization notices and 
possessions of properties charged to your Bank 
to expedite recoveries. Fifteen meetings of the 
Committee were held during the year. 

 Shri S.K. Sakhalkar is the Chairman of the Audit, 
Accounts and NPA Management Committee of 
the Board.

 Risk Management Committee:

 The Risk Management Committee is a Committee 
that has, as its sole and exclusive function, 
responsibility for the overview of the risk 
management policies and practices of the Bank’s 
operations and mitigation of prevailing risks 
in line with the risk appetite of the Bank. Seven 
meetings of the Committee were held during the 
year. 

 Shri S. V. Saudagar is the Chairman of the Risk 
Management Committee of the Board.

 Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee:

 The Information Technology (IT) Strategy 
Committee is a Committee to approve IT strategy 
and policies and to ensure that an effective IT 
organisational structure and strategic planning 
process is in place. Key focus areas of IT 
Governance include strategic alignment, value 
delivery, risk management, resource management 
and performance management. During the 
financial year under review, five meetings of the 
Committee were held.

 Shri S. S. Shirodkar is the Chairman of the 
Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee 
of the Board. 

 Special Committee for Monitoring and Review of 
Frauds:

 The Special Committee for Monitoring and 
Review of Frauds as the name suggests, is a 
Committee to monitor high value frauds involving 
amounts exceeding ` 100 lakh, that may occur 
in your Bank. The said Committee meets as per 
exigencies. During the financial year under review, 
three meetings of the Committee were held.

 Shri Gautam E. Thakur is the Chairman of the 
Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring 
and Review of Frauds.

 Credit Committee: 

 The Credit Committee is a Committee for 
considering credit proposals viz. new/additional/
renewal/review of credit limits and/or request 
proposals of borrowers with individual credit 
exposures above ` 30 crore and group credit 
exposures above ̀  60 crore. During the year under 
review, twenty-five meetings of the Committee 
were held. 

 Shri N. G. Pai is the Chairman of the Credit 
Committee of the Board.

 Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC):

 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee is 
a Committee formed at the Bank to undertake 
the process of appointment/re-appointment/
termination and remuneration of Managing 
Director/Whole Time Director and all officials in 
the ‘Executive’ cadre of the Bank, from the rank of 
Assistant General Manager upto the rank of Joint 
Managing Director, Consultants and Advisors. 
The scope of NRC covers the entire employee life 
cycle of the ‘Executive’ and includes but is not 
limited to appointment, re-appointment, transfer, 
performance assessment, remuneration, rewards 
and recognition, succession planning, exit/
termination of any official in the Executive cadre 
whether on permanent/contract or advisory 
basis. The Committee met on four occasions 
during the year.
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 Shri K. D. Umrootkar is the Chairman of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the 
Board.

 Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace 
(POSH) Committee:

 During the year under review, the Prevention 
of Sexual Harassment at Workplace (POSH) 
Committee was formed in accordance with the 
Section 53 of MSCS Act, 2023. No meetings of the 
Committee were held during the year, as no such 
incidents occurred/no complaints were received 
during the year under review. 

 Dr. (Mrs.) Anuradha P. Samant is the Chairperson 
of the Committee for Prevention of Sexual 
Harassment at Workplace.

26. MEMBERSHIP

 2,69,147 members of your Bank individually hold 
fifty and above fully-paid shares. The number of 
nominal members of the Bank stood at 1,28,645 
as on 31st March, 2024.

27. APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

 In line with the RBI Circular No. RBI/2021-
22/25 Ref No. DoS.CO.ARG/ SEC.01/08.91.001/ 
2021-22 dated 27th April, 2021 on broad 
requirements for appointment of Statutory 
Auditors for UCBs, your Bank has in place joint 
statutory audit by two audit firms.

 Your Board of Directors recommends the 
appointment of M/s Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered 
Accountants, 304/308/309, Udyog Mandir  
No. 1,7-C, Bhagoji Keer Marg, Mahim, Mumbai 
– 400 016 & M/s P.G. Bhagwat LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, Suite 102, Orchard, Dr. Pai Marg, 
Baner, Pune – 411 045 as the joint Statutory 
Auditors of the Bank for the FY 2024-25.

28. DISCLOSURES

 As per the disclosure norms stipulated by RBI, we 
hereby declare that insurance premium to Deposit 

Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation 
(DICGC) has been paid upto 31st March, 2024 and 
there are no arrears payable to DICGC.

29. OBITUARY

 We deeply mourn the passing away of some of the 
shareholders, former employees and employees 
of your Bank during the year under report.

30. GRATITUDE

 Your Board wishes to place on record the 
appreciation of the support which the Board of 
Directors and the Bank have received from all the 
shareholders and other stakeholders, including 
depositors, borrowers as also employees and 
thanks them profusely for the confidence and 
trust that they have reposed in the Board and 
your Bank. Your Board would also like to place 
on record the deep sense of gratitude to the 
authorities of the Reserve Bank of India, the Office 
of the Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies 
- New Delhi, the Office of the Commissioner for 
Co-operation and Registrar of Co-operative 
Societies, Maharashtra State, Pune, bankers, 
legal advisors and auditors for their valuable 
guidance, support and co-operation. The Board 
is also grateful to the Registrars of Co-operative 
Societies of the States of Karnataka, Goa, Gujarat, 
Madhya Pradesh and Delhi. 

 Your Board wishes to assure all shareholders 
that it will continue to strive towards attaining 
new heights in coming years through continued 
commitment and sustained efforts.

 For and on behalf of the Board,

Gautam E. Thakur
Chairman

Mumbai: 28th June, 2024.
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106J³ee Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeuee®ee iees<eJeeje - 
ceeveveer³e meYeemeo, 

Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ®ee 106 Jee 
Jeee|<ekeÀ DenJeeue meeoj keÀjleevee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueuee Deevebo 
nesle Deens.

1.  peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLee Je Yeejle

 Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ceO³es efmLej J³eepeojecegUs, 
Deee|LekeÀ efJekeÀemeeuee ®eeuevee Je ceneieeF&Jej efve³eb$eCe, 
¿ee oesvener IeìkeÀebceO³es meblegueve jeKeC³eele Yeejleer³e 
efjPeJe& yeBkesÀuee ³eMe Deeues. lemes®e peeieeflekeÀ heìueeJej 
efJekeÀefmele lemes®e efJekeÀmeveMeerue DeLe&J³eJemLeeb®es ef®e$e ns 
mebefceÞe mJe©hee®es jeefnues. Yet-jepekeÀer³e mebIe<e&, ³eg¬esÀve 
³eg×, nceeme-Fm$eeF&ue mebIe<e& DeeefCe ueeue mecegêeleerue 
(Red Sea) J³eeheejer JeenlegkeÀerleerue De[LeUs 
Fl³eeoer IeìveebcegUs peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLes®eer ieleer  
ceboeJeueer.

 DeVeOeev³e Je Gpee& #es$eeleerue eEkeÀceleerle IemejCe Peeu³eecegUs 
peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLeebceOeerue ceneieeF& ojele Gleej 
heene³euee efceUeuee. hejbleg, ceneieeF&-ojeleerue IemejCeerJej 
Depetvener IeÆ hekeÀ[ yemeefJeC³eemeeþer DeveskeÀ osMeeb®³ee 
ceO³eJeleea yeBkeÀebveer meeJeOe YetefcekeÀe DebieerkeÀejle J³eepeoj 
keÀheele ueebyeCeerJej ìekeÀC³ee®es OeesjCe mJeerkeÀejues. 
peeieeflekeÀ mlejeJej cee$e he´iele DeLe&J³eJemLeebmenerle 
yengleskeÀ osMeebceO³es meeJe&peefvekeÀ keÀpee¥®es (Public Debt) 

he´ceeCe Jee{u³eecegUs DeLe&J³eJemLesceO³es keÀener DebMeer 
DeeqmLejlee efvecee&Ce Peeueer.

 peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLee ner ke@ÀueW[j Je<e& 2022 ®³ee 
3.5 ìkeÌkesÀ Jee{er®³ee leguevesle ke@ÀueW[j Je<e& 2023 ceO³es 
3.2 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebhe³e¥le®e Jee{ueer. Je<e& 2024 ceO³es ne Jesie 
Depetvener ceboeJeC³ee®eer MekeÌ³elee Deens. hejbleg; peeieeflekeÀ 
DeLe&J³eJemLesuee DemeCeejs OeeskesÀ yeN³ee®e DebMeer efve³eb$eCeele 
Deeues Deensle.

 ke@ÀueW[j Je<e& 2023 ceO³es DecesefjkeÀve DeLe&J³eJemLee 
Flej DeLe&J³eJemLeeb®³ee leguevesle cepeyetle jenerueer. 
DecesefjkeÀve ie´enkeÀeb®ee efJeéeeme ieleke@ÀueW[j Je<ee&le 
GlmeenJeOe&keÀ jeneruee Je ie´enkeÀeshe³eesieer Jemletb®³ee 
Kejsoerlener l³ee Deveg<ebieeves Jee{ Peeueer. heefjCeeceleë 
DecesefjkeÀve DeLe&J³eJemLesuee Devehesef#eleefjl³ee GYeejer  
efceUeueer.

 ³egjesPeesve®eer DeLe&J³eJemLee ke@ÀueW[j Je<e& 2023 ceO³es 
mebefceÞe jeefnueer. He´Àevme®eer DeLe&J³eJemLee eqmLej jeefnueer 
lej pece&veer®eer DeLe&J³eJemLee ceboeJeueer. ³egvee³eìs[ 
eEkeÀie[ce®³ee DeLe&J³eJemLes®eer keÀeceefiejerner HeÀejMeer 
meceeOeevekeÀejkeÀ veJnleer. DeeefMe³eeF& osMeebceO³es ®eerve®eer 
DeLe&J³eJemLee keÀceer he´ceeCeele Jee{ueer. Demee®e keÀue 
peheeve®³ee DeLe&J³eJemLeslener efometve Deeuee.

 DeMee ³ee peeieeflekeÀ mebefceÞe heefjeqmLeleerlener Yeejleer³e 
DeLe&J³eJemLesves cee$e ueJeef®ekeÀlee oMe&Jele meJe& Deboepe 
ceeies meejle ®eebieueer keÀeceefiejer kesÀueer.

 Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ceOeerue Yeejleer³e 
DeLe&J³eJemLeeë 

 Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesves meueie eflemeN³ee Je<eea 7 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebntve DeefOekeÀ Jee{er®ee oj jeKele, Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 
2023-24 ceO³es 8.2 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer Jee{ veeWoefJeueer. 
ner Jee{ he´ecegK³eeves Glheeove, DeewÐeesefiekeÀ #es$eeleerue 
Heesueeo, efmeceWì Je Dee@ìesceesyeeF&ue ³ee #es$eeb®³ee cepeyetle 
keÀeceefiejercegUs Peeueer. DeewÐeesefiekeÀ #es$e 9.9 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer 
Jee{ues. ke=À<eer #es$ee®eer Jee{ ner he´efleketÀue nJeeceeve, 
peuemeeþîeeb®eer KeeueeJeuesueer heeleUer, efJeuebyeeves Peeuesu³ee 
hesjC³ee Je Kejerhe efhekeÀeb®³ee Glheeoveele Peeuesueer Ieì, 
³ee heeée&YetceerJej 1.4 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebhe³e¥le®e ce³ee&efole jenerueer. 
lej mesJee-#es$eeves osMeebleie&le ceeieCeer Je eqmLej peeieeflekeÀ 
heefjeqmLeleer®³ee peesjeJej 7.6 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer ®eebieueer Jee{ 
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veeWoefJeueer. heefjCeeceleë Yeejleeves peieeleerue meJee&le Jesieeves 
Jee{Ceejer DeLe&J³eJemLee cnCetve Deeheues mLeeve peeieeflekeÀ 
vekeÀeMeeJej keÀe³ece jeKeues.

 efJeÊeer³e yeepeej efJeMues<eCeë

 ie´enkeÀ eEkeÀcele efveoxMeebkeÀ (Consumer Price 
Index - CPI) ne ceeieerue keÀener keÀeUele FbOevee®³ee 
ojeleerue keÀheele DeeefCe Jemleg Je mesJeeb®³ee eEkeÀceleerleerue 
IemejCeercegUs 2 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebntve DeefOekeÀ he´ceeCeele Keeueer 
Deeuee. peguew 2023 ceO³es lees 7.44 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebhe³e¥le 
heesnes®euee neslee. iele Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&le l³ee®eer mejemejer 
ner 6.7 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer nesleer. lej Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-
24 ceO³es ceneieeF& oj ne mejemejer 5.4 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀe 
jeefnuee. ceneieeF& oj ne Deelee ue#eCeer³eefjl³ee keÀceer 
Peeuee Demetve Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves efveOee&efjle kesÀuesu³ee 
4 ìkeÌkesÀ (+/- 2 ìkeÌkesÀ) keÀ#es®³ee peJeU heesnes®euee 
Deens.

 Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ceO³es, ceneieeF& oj efve³eb$eCeele 
jneC³eekeÀefjlee Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves heleOeesjCeeÜejs 
efJeefJeOe Ghee³e³eespevee Debceueele DeeCeu³ee. DenJeeueJe<ee&le, 
Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves DeLe&J³eJemLee Jee{erhes#ee 
ceneieeF& oj jesKeC³ee®es OeesjCe DeJeuebefyeues. ceneieeF& 
oj efve³eb$eCeele jneC³eekeÀefjlee Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves 
DeveskeÀ Ghee³e Debceueele DeeCeues. pemes keÀer ̀  2,000®³ee 
veesìe ®eueveeletve yeeo keÀjCes, keÀener keÀeUekeÀefjlee jesKe 
jeKeerJelee he´ceeCeele (Cash Reserve Ratio - 
CRR) Jee{ lemes®e JnsefjSyeue jsì jshees (Variable 
Rate Repo- VRR) Je efjJnme& jshees®³ee ceeO³eceeletve 
lejuelesJej ®eehe Fl³eeoer.

 Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 keÀefjlee efJeÊeer³e letì (Fiscal 
Deficit) ner efveOee&efjle kesÀuesu³ee 5.9 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebhes#ee keÀceer 
jeKeC³eele cnCepes®e 5.6 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer DeeìeskeÌ³eele 
þsJeC³eele mejkeÀejuee ³eMe Deeues. heg{erue Deee|LekeÀ 
Je<ee&keÀefjlee efJeÊeer³e legìer®es ue#³e ns 5.1 ìkeÌkesÀ Demes 

megef®ele keÀjC³eele Deeues Demegve les ieeþC³ee®ee mejkeÀej®ee 
þece efveOee&j Deens.

 ®eeuet Keel³eeleerue letì (Current Account Deficit 
- CAD) Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-2024 ceO³es mekeÀue 
jeä^er³e Glheeovee®³ee (GDP) 0.7 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebhe³e¥le 
efmeceerle jenerueer, peer ieleJe<eea 2 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer nesleer. 
®eeuet Keel³eeleerue letìerleerue megOeejCee ner cegK³elJes keÀªve 
efve³eb$eCeele Demeuesueer J³eeheejer letì Je mesJee#es$eeleerue 
efve³ee&leerceOeerue Jee{ercegUs Peeueer.

 ieleJe<ee&le efJeosMeer iegbleJeCegkeÀer®³ee ceeO³eceeletve (Foreign 
Portfolio Investment - FPI) 41.6 Deype 
DecesefjkeÀve [e@uej®eer iegbleJeCegkeÀ Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesle 
Peeueer. Yeejlee®ee hejkeÀer³e ®euevemeeþener cee®e&, 2024 
DeKesjerme 645.6 Deype DecesefjkeÀve [e@uejJej heesnes®euee. 
Yeejleer³e ©he³eener DenJeeueJe<eea yeN³ee®e he´ceeCeele eqmLej 
jentve 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer DecesefjkeÀve [e@uej®³ee 
leguevesle ` 83.35 FlekeÀe jeneruee.

 Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ceO³es mejkeÀejer keÀpe&jesK³eeb®es 
J³eepeoj ns DecesefjkesÀmenerle Flej efJekeÀefmele osMeebceOeerue 
DeeqmLej J³eepeojeb®³ee leguevesle eqmLej jenerues. Je<ee&®³ee 
he´ejbYeer®e DeLe&mebkeÀuheele yeepeejeletve Dehes#eshes#ee keÀceer 
keÀpee&T jkeÌkeÀce IesC³ee®es megleesJee®e Je Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& 
yeBkesÀves J³eepeojJee{eruee efouesuee efJejece, ¿eecegUs 
jesKesyeepeejele keÀener DebMeer lespeer efometve Deeueer. 
leodveblej, Yeejleer³e keÀpe& jesK³eeb®ee peeieeflekeÀ jesKes 
efveoxMeebkeÀeleerue efve³eesefpele meceeJesMeecegUs nesCeeN³ee mebYeeJ³e 
iegbleJeCegkeÀerceOeerue Jee{er®³ee Dehes#esves jesK³eeb®³ee eEkeÀceleerle 
Jee{ nesTve Deee|LekeÀ Je<e&-DeKesjerme 10 Je<ex cegoleer®³ee 
keÀpe&jesK³eeb®ee J³eepeoj ne 7.31 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve 7.06 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej Deeuee.

 Yeejleer³e MesDej yeepeej ne meg¢{ DeLe&J³eJemLee Je 
osMeebleie&le iegbleJeCegkeÀoejeb®ee meelel³ehetCe& Jee{lee menYeeie, 
¿ee®³ee heeée&YetceerJej J³eehekeÀ lespeermen Je<e&DeKesjerme 
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73,651 (Sensex) Je 22,326 (Nifty) ³ee 
heeleUerJej heesnes®euee. Je<e&Yejele Sensex 74,245 
lej Nifty 22,526 ³ee G®®eebkeÀer heeleUeruee mheMe& 
keÀªve Deeues.

 meJe¥keÀ<e cetu³eceeheveë

 ceboer®³ee Devegceevee®³ee heeée&YetceerJej Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 
2023-24 ceO³es peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLee 3 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer 
Jee{ueer. DecesefjkeÀve DeLe&J³eJemLee ner lesLeerue mejkeÀejves 
Ke®ee&le kesÀuesueer Jee{, ®eebieues Jesleveceeve Je Glheeoveeb®eer 
Jee{leer ceeieCeer, ¿eecegUs cepeyetle jenerueer. lemes®e 
³egjesPeesveceO³es G®®e J³eepeoj lemes®e ie´enkeÀeb®eer keÀceer 
¬eÀ³eMeÊeÀer, ¿ee®³ee heefjCeeceer DeLe&J³eJemLes®eer Jee{ 
ner DebMeleë keÀceer®e jeefnueer. efoJemeWefoJeme Jee{Ceejer  
Yet-jepekeÀer³e Deefveeq½elelee, js[ meer Üejs nesCeeN³ee 
J³eeheej-JeenlegkeÀerleerue De[LeUs Je l³eecegUs Glheeoveeb®³ee 
hegjJeþe-meeKeUerleerue J³el³e³e, ¿eecegUs heefjeqmLeleer 
Depetve efyekeÀì Peeueer. ceneieeF& oje®³ee Dehes#eshes#ee keÀceer 
IemejCeercegUs he´cegKe ceO³eJeleea yeBkeÀebveer heleOeesjCee®eer 
efoMee keÀþesj þsJele J³eepeoj keÀheeleer®es OeesjCe Deefveeq½ele 
keÀeUehe³e¥le ueebyeCeerJej ìekeÀues.

 ³ee heefjeqmLeleerlener Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLes®eer veeWo ner 
peieeleerue meJee&le Jesieeves Jee{Ceejer DeLe&J³eJemLee DeMeer 
keÀe³ece jeefnueer Je Flej DeLe&J³eJemLeeb®³ee leguevesle efleves 
8.2 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer Jee{ veeWoefJeueer. Deee|LekeÀ DeeIee[erJej, 
ceneieeF&-ojele Je<e&Yej meelel³eeves Ieì nesTve lees 
Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ue#³ee®³ee Deemeheeme®e 
jeneruee. ³ee heeée&YetceerJej, keÀ®®³ee lesuee®³ee eEkeÀceleerleerue 
Jee{ DeeefCe peeieeflekeÀ hegjJeþe meeKeUerleerue De[LeUs 
¿ee keÀejCeebcegUs Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves meeJeOe heefJe$ee 
IesC³ee®es OeesjCe þjefJeues.

 ³esl³ee keÀeUelener, DeLe&J³eJemLee Jee{er®ee Jesie ®eebieuee 
jenerue. Yeejleer³e nJeeceeve efJeYeeieeves ³eeJe<eea ®eebieu³ee 
heeJemee®ee Deboepe Jele&efJeuee Deens. ke=À<eer Je ie´eceerCe #es$eeuee 

l³eecegUs ueeYe nesC³ee®eer MekeÌ³elee Deens. DeVeOeev³ee®ee 
ceneieeF& oj ne hegjJeþîeeceOeerue De[LeÈ³eebcegUs ®e{e jent 
MekeÀlees. hejbleg, cetU ceneieeF& oj (Core Inflation) 
ne keÀceer®e jenerue. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves Dehes#eshes#ee 
peemle ueeYeebMe nmleeblejCe mejkeÀejuee kesÀu³eecegUs 
efJeÊeer³e letì ner efve³eb$eCeele jenerue Je mejkeÀej®eer 
yeepeejeletve keÀpe&jesK³eebÜejs GYeejC³eele ³esCeejer  
keÀpe&-jkeÌkeÀcener keÀceer jenerue.

 SketÀCe®e, cepeyetle Deee|LekeÀ efvekeÀ<e Je keWÀêeleerue 
veJeerve mejkeÀej®³ee meelel³ehetCe& Deee|LekeÀ megOeejCee 
jeyeefJeC³ee®³ee ©hejs<escegUs DeLe&J³eJemLes®eer ieleer ner keÀe³ece 
jenerue DeMeer Dehes#ee Deens. Deeblejjeä^er³e veeCes efveOeer 
(International Monetary Fund) ®³ee vegkeÀl³ee®e 
Deeuesu³ee Deboepeevegmeej Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2024-25 ceO³es 
Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLee 6.8 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{sue, Demes 
Devegceeve Deens. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀvesner heleOeesjCe 
Dee{eJ³eele DeLe&J³eJemLee 7.2 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{sue Demee 
Deboepe Jele&Jeuee Deens. Deeblejjeä^er³e jWìeRie Spevmeer, 
mìB[[& DeB[ hegDejvesner Yeejlee®ee jsìeRie ¢äerkeÀesve 
(Outlook) mekeÀejelcekeÀ oMe&Jetve Yeejlee®eer jsìeRie ÞesCeer 
`eqmLej' DeMeer keÀe³ece þsJeueer Deens. eEkeÀyengvee, veJeerve 
Deee|LekeÀ megOeejCee Je efJeÊeer³e OeesjCeeb®³ee heeée&YetceerJej 
heg{erue 18 les 24 ceefnv³eele Yeejlee®³ee jsìeRie ÞesCeerle 
megOeejCee nesF&ue DeMeer Dehes#ee Deens.

2. Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ceOeerue Deeheu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀe³e&efme×er®eer þUkeÀ JewefMeäîes

   yeBkesÀ®ee SketÀCe J³eJemee³e efo. 31 cee®e&, 2023 ®³ee 
` 75,558.89 keÀesìeRJeªve ` 6,465.88 
keÀesìeRveer cnCepes 8.56 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve efo. 31 
cee®e&, 2024 jespeer ` 82,024.77 keÀesìeRJej 
heesnes®euee.

  yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe þsJeer efo. 31 cee®e&, 2023 ®³ee 
` 44,501.76 keÀesìeRJeªve ` 4,955.55 
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keÀesìeRveer cnCepes®e 11.14 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve 
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer ` 49,457.31 
keÀesìeRJej heesnes®eu³ee.

  yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀemee (CASA) þsJeer efo. 31 cee®e&, 
2023 ®³ee `  13,977.07 keÀesìeRJeªve 
`   875.57 keÀesìeRveer cnCepes®e 6.26 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer 
`  14,852.64 keÀesìeRJej heesnes®eu³ee.

	  yeBkesÀ®ee SketÀCe keÀpe& J³eJemee³e efo. 31 cee®e&, 
2023 ®³ee `  31,057.13 keÀesìeRJeªve 
`   1,510.33 keÀesìeRveer cnCepes®e 4.86 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer 
`  32,567.46 keÀesìeRJej heesnes®euee.

  yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe keÀpe&-J³eJemee³eehewkeÀer J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ 
(Wholesale) keÀpe&-J³eJemee³e ne  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2023 ®³ee ` 14,887.14 
keÀesìeRJeªve 4.22 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve efo. 31 cee®e&, 
2024 jespeer ̀  15,515.36 keÀesìeRJej heesnes®euee 
lej efkeÀjkeÀesU (Retail) keÀpe&-J³eJemee³e ne  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2023 ®³ee ` 16,169.99 
keÀesìeRJeªve 5.46 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer ` 17,052.10 
keÀesìeRJej heesnes®euee.

  Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efveoxMeebvegmeej veeiejer 
menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebveer l³eeb®³ee SketÀCe keÀpe&-
J³eJemee³eehewkeÀer 50 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀe keÀpe&-J³eJemee³e 
ne ` 1 keÀesìeRhe³e¥le®³ee keÀpe& Keel³eebceO³es kesÀuee 
heeefnpes. efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 he³e¥le yeBkesÀ®ee 
`  1 keÀesìeRhe³e¥le®³ee keÀpe& Keel³eeleerue J³eJemee³e 
ne yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe keÀpe&-J³eJemee³ee®³ee 35.23 
ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀe Deens. ³ee efvekeÀ<eeJej mebhetCe& ue#e 
keWÀefêle keÀjC³eemeeþer Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves `kebÀP³egcej 
DeB[ keÀcee|Me³eue yeBeEkeÀie ie´ghe' (Consumer 

and Commercial Banking Group - 
CCBG) ne veJeerve efJeYeeie mLeeheve keÀjC³ee®ee 
efveCe&³e Iesleuee Deens. ne efJeYeeie ` 1 keÀesìeRhes#ee 
keÀceer keÀpe& Keel³eeb®ee J³eJemee³e efceUefJeC³eemeeþer 
cenÊJehetCe& keÀeceefiejer keÀjsue.

  J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ Je efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe& J³eJemee³eele keÀceer 
Peeuesueer Jee{ ner yeBkesÀves keÀpe&-J³eJemee³e SkeÀef$ele 
keÀjC³ee®³ee peeCeerJehetJe&keÀ Iesleuesu³ee efveCe&³eecegUs 
Deens. ³eecegUs, keÀpee¥®es þsJeeRMeer Demeuesues he´ceeCe 
(Credit Deposit Ratio) ns efo. 31 cee®e&, 
2024 jespeer 65.85 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ nesles.

  yeBkesÀ®eer {esyeU Deveglheeoerle keÀpex efo. 31 cee®e&, 
2023 ®³ee ` 1,172.90 keÀesìeRJeªve  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer ` 937.49 keÀesìer 
FlekeÀer keÀceer Peeueer. ³eecegUs, {esyeU Deveglheeoerle 
keÀpee¥®es SketÀCe keÀpe&-J³eJemee³eeMeer Demeuesues he´ceeCe 
ns efo. 31 cee®e&, 2023 ®³ee 3.78 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve 
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer 2.88 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej 
heesnes®eues.

  yeBkesÀves Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥meeþer mebhetCe& lejleto 
keÀªve efveJJeU Deveglheeefole keÀpee&®es he´ceeCe 
DenJeeueJe<eeaner Metv³e ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ jeKeues.

  yeBkesÀves ` 1 keÀesìeRhes#ee keÀceer jkeÀces®³ee keÀpe&-
J³eJemee³eeJej ue#e keWÀêerle keÀjleevee®e DeeJeM³ekeÀ 
lejletoeRhes#ee DeefOekeÀ DeMeer ` 125 keÀesìeR®³ee 
DeefleefjÊeÀ HeÌueesìeRie (Floating) efveOeer®eer 
lejleto keÀjC³ee®ee otjoMeea efveCe&³e Iesleuee Deens. 
YeefJe<³eeleerue keÀpe&-J³eJemee³eeleerue peesKeerce 
efve³eb$eCeekeÀjerlee ³ee®ee Ghe³eesie nesF&ue. ner 
HeÌueesìeRie efveOeer®eer lejleto Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& 
yeBkesÀves veceto kesÀuesu³ee DeefveJee³e& lejletoeRhes#eener 
DeefOekeÀ Deens. YeefJe<³eele DemeeOeejCe HeefjefmLeleer 
GodYeJeu³eeme ner HeÌueesìeRie efveOeer®eer lejleto 
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Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥®³ee lejletoeRkeÀjerlee Yeejleer³e 
efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee Devegceleerves Jeehejueer peeF&ue.

  Jej veceto kesÀuesu³ee DeefleefjÊeÀ lejletoer Je HeÌueesìeRie 
efveOeer®eer lejleto efJe®eejele Iesleu³eeJej, Deeheu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®ee efveJJeU veHeÀe efo. 31 cee®e&, 2023 ®³ee 
` 351.70 keÀesìeRJeªve ` 151.29 keÀesìeRveer 
cnCepes®e 43.02 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve efo. 31 
cee®e&, 2024 jespeer ` 502.99 keÀesìeRJej 
heesnes®euee. ner HeÌueesìeRie efveOeer®eer lejleto pej 
kesÀueer vemeleer lej Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee efveJJeU 
veHeÀe ne ` 628 keÀesìer FlekeÀe Peeuee  
Demelee.

  yeBkesÀ®³ee mJeefveefOele (Own Funds)  
` 359.88 keÀesìeR®eer cnCepes®e 7.56 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer Jee{ nesTve lees efo. 31 cee®e&, 
2023 ®³ee ` 4,758.99 keÀesìeRJeªve  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer `  5,118.87 
keÀesìeRJej heesnes®euee. 

  yeBkesÀ®es Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&hlelee he´ceeCe (CRAR)  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2023 ®³ee 16.01 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve 
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer 17.28 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej 
heesnes®eues. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efve³eceevegmeej 
Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&hlelee he´ceeCe ns 13 ìkeÌkesÀ DemeCes 
yebOevekeÀejkeÀ Deens. 

  ceeueceÊesJejerue hejleeJ³ee®es he´ceeCe (Return on 
Assets - RoA) efo. 31 cee®e&, 2023 ®³ee 
0.68 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer 
0.91 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej heesnes®eues.

  yeBkesÀ®es he´eseqJnpeve keÀJnjspe he´ceeCe (Provision 
Coverage Ratio) efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 
jespeer 98.34 ìkeÌkesÀ cnCepes®e peJeUheeme 100 
ìkeÌkesÀ Deens.

  DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesÀves Deeheu³ee veHeÌ³eeceO³es 
Jee{ keÀjleevee®e meJe& Deee|LekeÀ efvekeÀ<e meg¢{ 
keÀjC³eeJejner Yej efouee Je DeMee he´keÀejs ognsjer 
GÎerä meeO³e kesÀues.

3. efJeYeeieJeej keÀeceefiejer

 (i) efjìsue yeBeEkeÀieë 

   efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpexë

   efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe& J³eJemee³eeDebleie&le Deeheueer 
yeBkeÀ efJeefJeOe keÀpe&-³eespevee (Schematic 
Loans) DeeefCe ueIeg Je veJe-GÐeceeRmeeþer 
` 10 keÀesìeRhe³e¥le®eer J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpex 
efJelejerle keÀjles.

   yeBkesÀ®ee efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&-J³eJemee³e 
ne Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2022-23 ®³ee 
`  3,097 keÀesìeR®³ee leguevesle Deee|LekeÀ Je<e&  
2023-24 ceO³es ` 3,238 keÀesìeRJej 
heesnes®euee. keÀpe&-efJelejCeeleerue Jee{ ner 
he´ecegK³eeves Jeenve keÀpe& ³eespeveebceOeerue 
Deens. Jeenve-keÀpex ner ieleJe<ee&hes#ee ` 290 
keÀesìeRveer Jee{ueer. DenJeeueJe<eea efkeÀjkeÀesU 
J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpe&-J³eJemee³eeDebleie&le 
`  1,036 keÀesìeR®es keÀpe&-efJelejCe Peeues.

   DenJeeueJe<eea yeBkesÀ®ee SketÀCe efkeÀjkeÀesU 
keÀpe&-J³eJemee³e 5.46 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2023 ®³ee ̀  16,169.99 
keÀesìeRJeªve efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer 
17,052.10 keÀesìeRJej heesnes®euee. efJeefJeOe 
efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe& ³eespeveeb®³ee (Schematic 
Loan) efJelejCeele 7.64 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{  
Peeueer.

  	 efkeÀjkeÀesU þsJeerë

   Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ceO³es 
1,61,934 veJeerve keÀemee (CASA) Keeleer 
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GIe[C³eele Deeueer. ³eeceO³es 1,45,320 
ye®ele Keeleer lej 16,614 ®eeuet Keeleer 
Deensle. keÀemee þsJeer efo. 31 cee®e&, 2023 
®³ee ` 13,977.07 keÀesìeRJeªve 
`  875.57 keÀesìeRveer Jee{tve efo. 31 cee®e&, 
2024 jespeer ` 14,852.64 keÀesìeRJej 
heesnes®eu³ee. SketÀCe þsJeeR®³ee leguevesle keÀemee 
þsJeeR®es he´ceeCe 30.03 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ  
Deens.

   efyePevesme [sJnueheceWì Dee@efHeÀmeme& 
(Business Developement 
Officers - BDO) Je ye´eb®e mesume  
Dee@efHeÀmeme& (Branch Sales 
Officers - BSO):

   iesu³ee keÀener Je<ee¥ceO³es Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves 
J³eJemee³e Jee{erJej ue#e keWÀêerle keÀªve 
yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeefJeOe ³eespeveeb®³ee ³eesi³e 
efJeheCeveemeeþer Je J³eJemee³eeme ®eeuevee 
osC³eemeeþer `efyePevesme [sJnueheceWì  
Dee@efHeÀmeme&' Je `ye´eb®e mesume Dee@HeÀermeme&' ³ee 
mebkeÀuhevee jeyeefJeu³ee. efyePevesme [sJnueheceWì 
Dee@efHeÀmeme&vee yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeefJeOe ³eespeveeb®eer 
ceeefnleer Je ie´enkeÀ mebJeeoe®es he´efMe#eCe osC³eele 
Deeues Deens. lemes®e ì@yuesì (Tablet) 
meejKes Del³eeOegefvekeÀ GhekeÀjCener l³eebvee 
osC³eele Deeues Deens. Del³eeOegefvekeÀ 
leb$e%eevee®³ee DeeOeejs Deepe yeBkesÀceO³es 
80 ntve DeefOekeÀ `efyePevesme [sJnueheceWì  
Dee@efHeÀmeme&' Glke=Àä ie´enkeÀ mesJee osle 
Deensle Je yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJemee³eJee{erme neleYeej 
ueeJele Deensle. lemes®e, efJeefJeOe MeeKeebceO³es 
`ye´eb®e mesume Dee@efHeÀmeme&' veJeesefole ie´enkeÀebvee 
(Walk-in-customers) Je efJeÐeceeve 

ie´enkeÀebvee yeBeEkeÀie mesJee he´oeve keÀjerle  
Deensle.

   Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ceO³es BDO 
ìerceves SketÀCe ` 1,060 keÀesìeR®ee J³eJemee³e 
yeBkesÀme efceUJetve efouee. ³eeceO³es `  725 
keÀesìeR®ee keÀpe&-J³eJemee³e, `  325 
keÀesìeR®³ee þsJeer Je ` 10 keÀesìeR®ee Flej 
DeemLeeheveeb®³ee Glheeove efJe¬eÀer®ee (Third 
Party Business) meceeJesMe Deens. 
BSO ìercevesmeg×e ` 278.04 keÀesìeR®ee 
keÀpe&-J³eJemee³e, 16,065 veJeerve keÀemee 
Keel³eebmen ` 501.77 keÀesìeR®³ee þsJeer Je 
` 12.03 keÀesìeR®ee Flej DeemLeeheveeb®³ee 
Glheeove efJe¬eÀer®ee J³eJemee³e yeBkesÀme he´ehle 
keÀªve efouee. Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 
ceO³es ¿ee oesvener efìcmeveer efceUtve yeBkesÀ®³ee 
keÀpe&-J³eJemee³eele 19 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®es ³eesieoeve 
efoues. 

   Flej DeemLeeheveeb®³ee Glheeoveeb®es 
efJeheCeve (Third Party Business)ë

  	 efJecee ³eespeveeë 

   Deeheueer yeBkeÀ efJeefJeOe efJecee kebÀhev³eeb®³ee 
menkeÀe³ee&ves peerJeve efJecee, meeceev³e efJecee 
Je Deejesi³e efJecee ³eespeveeb®es efJeheCeve keÀjles. 
DenJeeueJe<eea Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves ueeF&HeÀ 
FvMegjvme keÀe@heexjsMeve Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³ee (LIC 
of India) meesyelener l³eeb®³ee efJecee ³eespevee 
Deeheu³ee ie´enkeÀebvee efJelejerle keÀjC³eekeÀjerlee 
keÀjej kesÀuee Deens. l³eecegUs Deeheu³ee 
yeBkesÀletve®e LIC ®³ee efJecee ³eespevee IesC³ee®eer 
mebOeer ie´enkeÀebvee GheueyOe keÀªve osC³eele 
Deeuesueer Deens. ³ee J³eefleefjÊeÀ, Deeheueer 
yeBkeÀ he´Oeeveceb$eer megj#ee yeercee ³eespevee 
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(PMSBY), he´Oeeveceb$eer peerJevep³eesleer 
yeercee ³eespevee (PMJJBY), Fl³eeoer 
mejkeÀejer efJecee ³eespeveener efJelejerle 
keÀjles. Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ceO³es, 
Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves Flej DeemLeeheveeb®³ee efJecee 
J³eJemee³eeletve ieleJe<eea®³ee `  35.50 
keÀesìeRJeªve 45.69 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer Jee{ 
keÀjle `  51.72 keÀesìeR®es GlheVe 
efceUefJeues. lemesle efJecee J³eJemee³eeletve yeBkesÀves  
` 172.66 keÀesìeR®ee efJecee nhlee pecee 
kesÀuee.

   c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[ë

   Deeheueer yeBkeÀ S®e[erSHeÀmeer c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[, 
SueDee³emeer c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[, S®eSmeyeermeer 
c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[, efvehhee@ve Fbef[³ee c³eg®³egDeue 
HebÀ[, Deeefol³e efyeuee& c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[, 
Dee³emeerDee³emeerDee³e he´g[seqvMe³eue c³eg®³egDeue 
HebÀ[ Je SmeyeerDee³e c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[ ³ee 
DeemLeeheveeb®³ee c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[ ³eespeveeb®es 
efJeheCeve keÀjles. DenJeeueJe<eea SketÀCe 
`  144.23 keÀesìeR®ee c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[ 
J³eJemee³e Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves kesÀuee, lej ³ee 
c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[e®eer SketÀCe S³egSce (AUM) 
` 567.61 keÀesìer FlekeÀer nesleer. ³ee 
J³eJemee³eeletve DenJeeueJe<eea Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀuee 
` 2.90 keÀesìeR®es GlheVe efceUeues.

   ¬esÀ[erì keÀe[&ë

   Deeheueer yeBkeÀ ve@Meveue hesceWì keÀe@heexjsMeve 
Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³ee®³ee menkeÀe³ee&ves ©hes  
hue@efìvece keÀe[& efJelejerle keÀjles.  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 he³e¥le yeBkesÀves 
74,000 ¬esÀef[ì keÀe[&med efJelejerle kesÀueer 
Demetve l³eeceOeerue SketÀCe J³eJenej ̀  50.02 

keÀesìer FlekesÀ nesles. ³ee J³eJemee³eeletve yeBkesÀme 
ceeieerue Je<eea ` 12.00 keÀesìeR®es lej 
DenJeeueJe<eea `  15.27 keÀesìeR®es GlheVe  
efceUeues.

   ef[ce@ìë

    Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ceO³es Deeheu³ee 
yeBkesÀle 1,626 veJeerve ef[ce@ì Keeleer 
GIe[C³eele Deeueer. lemes®e yeBkesÀves 
ASBA ®³ee ceeO³eceeletve 284 meceYeeie 
efJeef¬eÀ®es (Equity) J³eJenej kesÀues lemes®e 
1,50,000 Dee³eheerDees (IPO) Depe& 
neleeUC³eele Deeues. ef[ce@ì J³eJenejebceOetve 
DenJeeueJe<eea ` 4.49 keÀesìeR®es GlheVe 
yeBkesÀme he´ehle Peeues. Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-
24 ceO³es 2,459 veJeerve ì^seE[ie Keeleer 
GIe[C³eele Deeueer.

	 	   he´eOeev³e #es$e (Priority Sector) 
keÀpe&-J³eJemee³eë

    Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efveoxMeevegmeej 
Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 keÀjerlee he´eOeev³e 
#es$eemeeþer þjJetve efouesues meJe& efvekeÀ<e 
Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves hetCe& kesÀues Deensle. Keeueerue 
lekeÌl³eele Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®es efvekeÀ<e Je 
yeBkesÀves kesÀuesuee keÀpe&-J³eJemee³e oMe&efJeuee 
Deens.

leÊeÀe ¬eÀ. 1

efvekeÀ<e keÀpe&-J³eJemee³e

he´eOeev³e #es$e 60.00% 62.85%

cee³e¬eÀes- 
Svìjhe´e³epesme

7.50% 7.90%

keÀcekegÀJele #es$e 11.50% 11.69%
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   J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpex Je mejkeÀejer  
³eespeveeë

   Deeheueer yeBkeÀ `cegK³eceb$eer jespeieej efvee|celeer 
³eespevee (CMEGP)', `heblehe´Oeeve 
jespeieej efvee|celeer ³eespevee (PMEGP)', 
`met#ce Je ueIeg GÐeesieebkeÀjerlee ¬esÀ[erì  
ie@jbìer ì^mì ³eespevee (CGTMSE)' 
Fl³eeoer mejkeÀejer Devegoeefvele ³eespeveebmen 
GVeleermeejK³ee ³eespeveebÜejs J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ 
keÀpex efJelejerle keÀjles. CGTMSE ³ee 
³eespeves-Debleie&le Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves 250 
ntve DeefOekeÀ Ghe¬eÀceebvee nceer efouesueer Deens. 
DenJeeueJe<eea Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves keWÀê mejkeÀej 
hegjmke=Àle 'he´Oeeveceb$eer HeÀe@ce&uee³ePesMeve  
Dee@HeÀ cee³e¬eÀes HegÀ[ he´esmeseEmeie Svìjhe´e³epesme 
(PMFME)' ¿ee Devegoeefvele ³eespeves®eer 
DebceueyepeeJeCeerner kesÀueer.

   keÀmìcej efjuesMevme DeB[ SkeÌmeefheefjDevme 
(Customer Relations & 
Experience - CRE)

   Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee `keÀmìcej efjuesMevme 
DeB[ SkeÌmeefheefjDevme efJeYeeie' Deeheu³ee 
ie´enkeÀebMeer mebJeeo meeOetve J³eJemee³ee®³ee 
veJeerve mebOeer GheueyOe keÀªve osle Demelees. 
DenJeeueJe<ee&lener ³ee efJeYeeieeves ie´enkeÀebMeer 
mvesnyebOe he´mLeeefhele keÀjC³eekeÀjerlee DeveskeÀ 
Ghe¬eÀce jeyeefJeues.

   ie´enkeÀeb®³ee le¬eÀejeR®es ³eMemJeerefjl³ee efvejmeve 
kesÀues.

   1,28,000 ie´enkeÀebMeer DeeTìmeesm[& 
mebheke&À keWÀêeÜejs mebJeeo meeOeC³eele Deeuee. 
³eeÜejs megceejs 9,215 J³eJemee³ee®³ee 
mebOeer (Business Leads) GheueyOe 

Peeu³ee. ³eeefMeJee³e, megceejs 1,36,000 
FvekeÀeEceie keÀe@ume ³ee mebheke&À keWÀêeÜejs 
IesC³eele Deeues Je ie´enkeÀeb®³ee meJe& 
he´Mveeb®es he´eOeev³eeves efvejekeÀjCe keÀjC³eele  
Deeues.

   yeBkesÀ®³ee veJeerve ie´enkeÀebkeÀjerlee `JesuekeÀce 
keÀe@eEueie' Ghe¬eÀcee®³ee ceeO³eceeletve mebJeeo 
meeOeC³eele Deeuee, Jee{efoJemee®³ee MegYes®íe 
osC³eele Deeu³ee DeeefCe efveeq<¬eÀ³e Keeleer 
Demeuesu³ee ie´enkeÀebMeer mebheke&À hegvemLee&efhele 
keÀjC³eele Deeuee. lemes®e, DenJeeueJe<eea 
Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves `ef[hee@efPeìj Sp³egkesÀMeve 
DeB[ DeJesDejvesme (DEAF)' ³ee Yeejleer³e 
efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee Ghe¬eÀceeDebleie&le ̀  11.62 
keÀesìer jkeÌkeÀce Demeuesueer 2,554 efveeq<¬eÀ³e 
Keeleer hegve©ppeerefJele kesÀueer.

   ie´enkeÀebyejesyej®es $eÝCeevegyebOe ¢{ 
keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee yeBkesÀves `mesefueye´sMeve  
Dee@HeÀ ì^mì' (Celebration of Trust) 
³ee mebieerlece³e keÀjceCegkeÀer®³ee keÀe³e&¬eÀcee®es 
Dee³eespeve cegbyeF&, HegCes, veeefMekeÀ, keÀeskeÀCe Je 
ieesJee ³ee efJeYeeieeleerue ie´enkeÀebmeeþer kesÀues. 
³ee keÀe³e&¬eÀceeb®³ee ceeO³eceeletve yeBeEkeÀieceOeerue 
efJeefJeOe mecem³eebyeeyele ie´enkeÀebvee DeJeiele 
keÀjC³eele Deeues. mee³eyej HeÀmeJeCetkeÀ, 
Keel³ee®³ee veeceebkeÀvee®es (Nomination) 
cenÊJe, ¬esÀef[ì mkeÀesDej ®eebieuee jeKeCes, 
uee@keÀjmebyebOeer efve³ece, Fl³eeoer efJe<e³eeyebÎue 
ie´enkeÀebvee ceeefnleer osC³eele Deeueer.

 (ii) IeeTkeÀ yeBeEkeÀie J³eJenejë

  Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ceO³es ` 3,700 
keÀesìeR®eer J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpex cebpetj keÀjC³eele 
Deeueer Je ` 2,943 keÀesìeR®es keÀpe&-efJelejCe 
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keÀjC³eele Deeues. SketÀCe IeeTkeÀ keÀpe&-J³eJenej 
ne efo. 31 cee®e&, 2023 ®³ee `  14,887.14 
keÀesìeRJeªve 4.22 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer ` 15,515.36 
keÀesìeRJej heesnes®euee.

  Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee IeeTkeÀ keÀpe&-J³eJemee³e ne 
ìskeÌmeìeF&ume, ne@eqmheì@efueìer, yeebOekeÀece, Deew<eOes, 
FbefpeefveDeeEjie Fl³eeoer efJeefJeOe GÐeesieebvee efJelejerle 
kesÀuesuee Deens.

 (iii) efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJemee³eë

  Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀkeÀ[s efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJemee³ee®ee 
hejJeevee Je<e& 1979 heemetve Deens. efJeosMe 
efJeefvece³emesJee ³ee veT HeÀe@jskeÌme meWìme&®³ee 
ceeO³eceeletve meO³ee ie´enkeÀebvee GheueyOe Deensle. 

  DenJeeueJe<eea, Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee ie´enkeÀebMeer 
keÀjC³eele Deeuesuee efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJemee³e ne  
`  33,847.70 keÀesìer lej efve³ee&le 
J³eJemee³eekeÀefjlee efJelejerle keÀjC³eele Deeuesueer 
keÀpex efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer ̀  1,385.99 
keÀesìer FlekeÀer nesleer.

  Deeheueer yeBkeÀ one cenÊJee®³ee efJeosMeer ®eueveebceO³es 
J³eJenej keÀjles. peieeleerue DeveskeÀ yeBkeÀeyejesyej 
J³eeJeneefjkeÀ mebyebOener (Correspondent 
Relationship) Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves he´mLeeefhele 
kesÀuesues Deensle. ³eeJ³eefleefjÊeÀ mene menkeÀejer 
yeBkeÀeveener Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves ` 50.50 keÀesìeR®eer 
efJeosMe efJeefvece³e mesJee GheueyOe keÀªve efouesueer 
Deens.

 (iv) keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeieë

  Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeie, jesKe jeKeerJelee 
he´ceeCe (Cash Reserve Ratio - CRR) Je 
JewOeeefvekeÀ lejuelee he´ceeCe (Statutory Liquidity 
Ratio - SLR) ³ee cenÊJee®³ee efvekeÀ<eeb®eer hetle&lee 

keÀjC³ee®eer peyeeyeoejer heej hee[lees. ³eeefMeJee³e, 
yeBkesÀ®eer iegbleJeCetkeÀ, mejkeÀejer keÀpe&-jesK³eebceOeerue 
J³eJenej, yeBkesÀ®es owvebefove efveOeer J³eJemLeeheve 
(Funds Management) Fl³eeoer J³eJenejner 
keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeie meebYeeUlees. lemes®e, ie´enkeÀeb®³ee 
efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJenejebkeÀefjlee efJeefJeOe MeeKeebvee 
keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeie mene³³e keÀjlees.

  DenJeeueJe<eea, keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeieeves mejkeÀejer  
keÀpe&-jesKes, keÀe@heexjsì yee@C[dme Je Flej 
iegbleJeCetkeÀer®³ee ceeO³eceeletve ì^seE[ie Je J³eepeeÜejs 
GlheVe efceUJetve yeBkesÀ®³ee veHeÌ³eele ³eesieoeve efoues.

4. FvHeÀe@cexMeve ìskeÌvee@uee@peer DeeefCe ef[efpeìue 
yeBeEkeÀie efJeYeeie

 Del³eeOegefvekeÀ leb$e%eevee®ee DeJeuebye keÀ©ve ûeenkeÀebvee 
Glke=À<ì mesJee megefJeOee HegjefJeC³eemeeþer yeBkeÀ vesnceer®e 
Deûesmej Demeles. ³eekeÀefjlee GÊece leb$e%eevee®³ee 
DeeOeejs Hee³eeYetle megefJeOee Jee{efJeCes,  G®®e mleje®es 
veskeÌmì pevejsMeve HeÀe³ejJee@ue (Next Generation 
Firewall) mLeeefHele keÀjCes,  SD WAN (Software 
Define Wide Area Networking ) lemes®e 
DeveeJeM³ekeÀ Òeef¬eÀ³ee keÀceer keÀ©ve, peueo Je megjef#ele 
J³eJenej ûeenkeÀebvee keÀjlee ³eeJesle cnCetve DeveskeÀ GHe¬eÀce 
jeyeJeues iesues. 

 Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee ef[efpeìue yeBeEkeÀie efJeYeeieeves 
DeveskeÀ he´keÀej®³ee ef[efpeìue megefJeOee Deeheu³ee 
ie´enkeÀebvee GheueyOe keÀ©ve efouesu³ee Deensle. ³eeceO³es  
Jne@ìmedS@he yeBeEkeÀie, efjìsue Je keÀe@jHeesjsì Fbìjvesì 
yeBeEkeÀie, ceesyeeF&ue yeBeEkeÀie, ³egheerDee³e, SvedF&ìermeer, 
yeeryeerheerSme, efieHeÌì keÀe[& Fl³eeoer megefJeOeeb®ee meceeJesMe 
Deens. DenJeeue Je<eea SketÀCe J³eJenejebhewkeÀer  
90 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ J³eJenej ns ef[efpeìue ceeO³eceeletve 
Peeues. 

 DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesÀves ³egheerDee³e ueeF&ì, ³egheerDee³e  
Fbìjve@Meveue, e-Mandate, RE-KYC,  
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Dee@ve ueeF&ve ef[mh³egì efj[^smeue, SvemeerScemeer ©hes 
keÀe[&med, De@v³egDeue DekeÀeQì mìsìceWì Dee@ve Jne@ìdmeS@
he yeBeEkeÀie, hee@efPeìerJn hes Fve Fbìjvesì yeBeEkeÀie, Fl³eeoer 
veeJeerv³ehetCe& megefJeOee ie´enkeÀebkeÀjerlee GheueyOe kesÀu³ee.

5. FvHeÀe@cexMeve efmekeÌ³egefjìer

 yeBeEkeÀieceO³es ceeefnleer megj#es®eer YetefcekeÀe ner HeÀej cenlJee®eer 
Deens. Deeheuee `FvHeÀe@cexMeve efmekeÌ³egefjìer' efJeYeeie ne l³ee 
Deveg<ebieeves DeveskeÀ Ghe¬eÀce jeyeefJele Demelees. DenJeeue 
Je<ee&le, Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer mee³eyej megjef#elelee cepeyetle 
keÀjC³eemeeþer `FvHeÀe@cexMeve efmekeÌ³egefjìer' efJeYeeieeves 
meesme& keÀes[ efjJn³eg, mee³eyej efjmkeÀ®es cetu³eebkeÀve, 
leebef$ekeÀ efjmkeÀ®es cetu³eebkeÀve DeeefCe ef[efpeìue he´e@[keÌìme 
Je mesJeeb®es cetu³eebkeÀve kesÀues. l³ee J³eefleefjÊeÀ yeBkesÀ®³ee  
`ef[hee@efPeìjer efJeYeeiee' keÀefjlee `ISO 27001' 
ceeveebkeÀve efceUefJeC³ee®³ee ¢äerves heeJeues G®eueC³eele 
Deeueer.

 yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeÐeceeve keÀe³e&heOoleeRceO³es megOeejCee keÀjC³ee®³ee 
Deveg<ebieevesner DeveskeÀ he´efleyebOeelcekeÀ Ghee³e `FvHeÀe@cexMeve 
efmekeÌ³egefjìer' efJeYeeieekeÀ[tve Debceueele DeeCeues iesues. 
keÀce&®eeN³eeb®³ee ceeefnleermeeþer DeveskeÀ mee³eyej ef[^ue ³ee 
efJeYeeieekeÀ[tve Dee³eesefpele keÀjC³eele Deeues.

 yeBkesÀ®³ee mee³eyej megj#eskeÀefjlee kesÀuesu³ee he´³elveeb®es 
³ee #es$eeleerue DeveskeÀ mebmLeebkeÀ[tve keÀewlegkeÀ keÀjC³eele 
Deeues Je Deeheu³ee `FvHeÀe@cexMeve efmekeÌ³egefjìer' efJeYeeieeme 
efJeefJeOe hegjmkeÀejebveer mevceeefvele keÀjC³eele Deeues. 
³eeceO³es `kebÀh³egìj meesmee³eìer Dee@HeÀ Fb[er³ee'®ee mee³eyej 
efmekeÌ³egefjìer ceOeerue `Glke=Àä CISO' Je menkeÀejer 
yeBkeÀebceOeerue Glke=Àä `efmekeÌ³egefjìer ìerce' hegjmkeÀej, 
`efyePevesme Jeu[&'®ee `BW efmekeÌ³egefjìer Jeu[& keÀe@vekeÌuesJn 
DeB[ SkeÌmeuevme S@Jee[& 2023' Je Flejner DeveskeÀ 
hegjmkeÀejeb®ee meceeJesMe Deens.

 ³eeheg{erue keÀeUelener Deeheueer yeBkeÀ mee³eyej megj#ee 
DeefOekeÀeefOekeÀ cepeyetle keÀjC³eemeeþer he´³elveMeerue Demesue.

6. MeeKee efJemleej

 efo. 31 cee®e&, 2023 DeKesjerme Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee 
SketÀCe 289 MeeKee nesl³ee. DenJeeue Je<eea yeBkesÀves 13 
veJeerve MeeKee GIe[u³ee, ³eecegUs efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 
DeKesjerme yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe MeeKeeb®eer mebK³ee 302 FlekeÀer 
Peeueer Deens. ³ee 13 MeeKee, YeeF¥oj (hetJe&), ieesJeb[er, 
efììJeeUe, veJeerve heveJesue meskeÌìj 5, hegveeJeUs, kegÀueeyee, 
peesieséejer (hetJe&), IeCemeesueer, [eWefyeJeueer (hetJe&) Sce.Dee³e.
[er.meer., jeJesle, ceesMeer, ceeuee[ (hetJe&), kesÀMeJeveiej-hegCes 
³esLes GIe[C³eele Deeu³ee.

 Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee mece=× Jeeì®eeueerle 300 MeeKeeb®ee 
ìhhee ieeþCes ner SkeÀ DeefYeceeveemheo yeeye Deens. hegCes 
efJeYeeieeleerue `ceesMeer' MeeKesuee Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer 300 Jeer 
MeeKee nesC³ee®ee ceeve efceUeuee.

7. De@[Jnìe&³eeEPeie Deuee³evme DeB[ keÀe@heexjsì 
keÀc³egefvekesÀMevme

 Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee ye´B[ DeefOekeÀeefOekeÀ efJemleejerle JneJee 
Je yeBkesÀ®³ee Glheeoveeb®ee peeefnjeleeR®³ee ceeO³eceeletve 
he´meej JneJee, ³eekeÀefjlee ³ee®e GÎeräebvee mecee|hele 
DeMeer `De@[Jnìe&³eeEPeie, Deuee³evme DeeefCe keÀe@heexjsì  
ke@Àc³egefvekesÀMevme' ìerce yeBkesÀceO³es keÀe³e&jle Deens. ner 
ìerce eEhe´ì, jsef[Dees, ìsefueJnerpeve, DeeGì[esDej DeeefCe 
ef[efpeìue efceef[³ee DeMee efJeefJeOe ceeO³eceeletve yeBkesÀ®³ee 
ye´B[®ee he´meej keÀjles. ner yeBkesÀ®eer mJeleë®eer Fve-neGme 
ìerce Demeu³eecegUs yeBkesÀ®³ee meJe& Glheeoveeb®eer ³ee 
ìerceceOeerue meom³eebvee meKeesue ceeefnleer Deens. l³eecegUs 
Feq®íle heefjCeece meeOeCeeN³ee Je peveceevemeele eEyeyeJeCeeN³ee 
peeefnjeleeR®³ee ceeO³eceeletve yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJemee³eJee{erme 
hees<ekeÀ JeeleeJejCe le³eej nesles.

 Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves ìsefueeqJnpeve ceeO³ecee®ee De®etkeÀ Jeehej 
keÀjle yeBkesÀ®³ee DeveskeÀ Glheeoveeb®es he´oMe&ve SkeÀe®e 
peeefnjeleerJoejs keÀjle Ke®ee&le ye®ele kesÀueer. yeBkesÀves 
DeeTì[esDej efceef[³ee®ee Jeehej keÀjleevee Deeheueer 
J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ GÎeräs Je ie´enkeÀ Ghe³egÊeÀlee ³eeb®ee 
efJe®eej keÀ©ve®e, yeBkesÀ®³ee peeefnjeleeRkeÀefjlee ³eesi³e 
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peeiee (Locations) efveJe[tve, ³eespeveeyeOo jerleerves 
DeeGì[esDej efceef[³ee®ee Jeehej kesÀuee.

8. Deveglheeefole keÀpex

 iesu³ee keÀener Je<ee¥ceO³es yeBkesÀves keÀeìskeÀesj efve³eespeve keÀ©ve 
Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥®eer heeleUer Keeueer DeeCeueer Deens. 
DenJeeueJe<eeameg×e efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpex, IeeTkeÀ keÀpex Je 
efve<keÀeefmele keÀpee¥®³ee JemetueerkeÀefjlee JesieJesieUs efJeYeeie, 
keÀpe& Jemegueermeeþer yee¿e Spevmeerpe®eer efve³egÊeÀer, Jeenve 
leey³eele IesCes (Re-Possession), Jeenve ³ee[& 
megefJeOee, ceeueceÊee ì^seEmeie, ceeueceÊee efJe¬eÀer, Fl³eeoer 
Ghe¬eÀce keÀpe&-JemegueerkeÀefjlee jeyeefJeC³eele Deeues. ³ee 
meJe& Ghee³eeb®³ee heefjCeeceer Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves meeJe&keÀeueerve 
G®®eebkeÀer DeMeer ` 517.52 keÀesìeR®eer Deveglheeefole 
keÀpee¥®eer Jemetueer kesÀueer.

 ³eeceO³es efo. 31 cee®e&, 2023 jespeer LekeÀerle 
Demeuesueer ` 325.92 keÀesìeR®eer Jemetueer Peeueer. lej 
DenJeeue Je<ee&le JesUer®e ue#e hegjefJeu³eecegUs veJeerve keÀpe& 
Deveglheeefole nesC³ee®³ee meg©Jeeleer®³ee®e ìhh³eebJej 
Jemetueer®es keÀþesj Ghee³e ³eespeu³eecegUs ` 87.36 
keÀesìeR®eer Jemetueer Peeueer. l³eeefMeJee³e J³eepee®eer Jemegueer 
ner ` 11.54 keÀesìer FlekeÀer Peeueer. efve<keÀeefmele 
Peeuesu³ee keÀpe& Keel³eebceOetve ` 18.55 keÀesìeR®eer Jemegueer  
Peeueer.

 efHeÀefvekeÌme De@mesì efjkeÀvmì^keÌMeve kebÀheveeruee efJekeÀuesu³ee 
Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥ceOetve ` 20.06 keÀesìeR®eer Jemetueer 
Peeueer.

 Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥®es he´ceeCe Keeueer DeeCeC³eekeÀefjlee 
Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& ye@BkesÀ®³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ 
lelJeebvegmeej Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥®³ee efJe¬eÀer®ee efveCe&³e 
Iesleuee. ³ee Deveg<ebieeves Deveglheeefole Je efve<keÀeefmele 
keÀpe& Keel³eeceOeerue ` 390.38 keÀesìeR®eer efJe¬eÀer 
keÀjC³eele Deeueer. ³eeÜejs 100 ìkeÌkesÀ ke@ÀMe yesefmemeJej 
` 54.09 keÀesìeR®eer Jemetueer Peeueer. ³ee J³eJenejekeÀefjlee  
ces. yee@ye ke@Àefheìue ceekexÀìdme efue. ³ee kebÀheveer®eer meuueeieej 
cnCetve vesceCetkeÀ keÀjC³eele Deeueer nesleer. ³ee efJe¬eÀerÜejs 

yeBkesÀves Deveglheeefole keÀpee&®es he´ceeCe keÀceer kesÀues®e. hejbleg 
l³ee®eyejesyej YeefJe<³eeleerue Yeeb[JeueJe=×er®ee ceeie&ner 
ceeskeÀUe kesÀuee.

 SkebÀojerle, Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ceO³es ` 294.33 
keÀesìeR®eer veJeerve Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥®eer Yej he[tvener 
Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer {esyeU Deveglheeefole keÀpex ` 235.41 
keÀesìeRveer ue#eCeer³eefjl³ee keÀceer nesTve ieleJe<eea®³ee   
`  1172.90 keÀesìerbJeªve Je<e& DeKesjerme `  937.49 
keÀesìeRJej Deeueer. SketÀCe keÀpee¥Meer {esyeU Deveglheeefole 
keÀpee¥®es he´ceeCe ieleJe<ee&®³ee 3.78 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJe©ve 
DenJeeueJe<eea 2.88 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej DeeCeC³eele Deeues. lej 
efveJJeU Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥®es he´ceeCe ieleJe<eea he´ceeCes®e 
Metv³e ìkeÌkesÀ jeKeC³eele Deeues.

 he´eseqJnpeve keÀJnjspe he´ceeCeë

 Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥Jejerue lejlegoeRkeÀjerlee Deeheueer yeBkeÀ 
Dee³eDeejSmeer (IRAC) efvekeÀ<eeb®es keÀeìskeÀesjheCes 
heeueve keÀjles Je ³ee efvekeÀ<eentve DeefOekeÀ he´ceeCeele lejleto 
keÀjles. DenJeeueJe<eea Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves Deveglheeefole 
keÀpee¥keÀefjlee ` 335.55 keÀesìeR®eer DeefleefjÊeÀ lejlego 
kesÀuesueer Deens. ³eecegUs Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥keÀefjlee 
kesÀuesu³ee lejletoer®es he´ceeCe cnCepes he´eseqJnpeve keÀJnjspe 
he´ceeCe (Provision Coverage Ratio) ns  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 uee 98.34 ìkeÌkesÀ 
cnCepes®e peJeUheeme 100 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ 
Deens. he´eseqJnpeve keÀJnjspe®es meg¢{ he´ceeCe 
Deveglheeefole keÀpee&meeþer YekeÌkeÀce lejleto kesÀu³ee®es  
oMe&efJeles.

9. Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&hlelee (CRAR)
 yeBkesÀ®es Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&hlelee he´ceeCe ns ieleJe<eea®³ee 16.01 

ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJe©ve efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer 17.28 
ìkeÌkesÀ Demes YekeÌkeÀce jeefnues.

10. veHeÀe efJelejCe

 Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ceO³es Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee 
efveJJeU veHeÌ³eeceOetve Keeueerue he´ceeCes lejleto keÀjC³ee®eer 
efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves kesÀuesueer Deens.
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leÊeÀe ¬eÀ. 2
    (` ueeKeele)

2023-24 2022-23

jeKeerJe efveOeer (25%) 12,574.63 8,792.39

DeekeÀeqmcekeÀlee efveOeer (10%) 5,029.86 3,516.96

Mew#eefCekeÀ efveOeer (1%) 502.98 351.69

menkeÀejer hegveJe&meve, hegvej&®evee Je 
efJekeÀeme efveOeer

100.00 -

he´mleeefJele ueeYeebMe (10.50%) 
(he´sHeÀjvme meceYeeie)

571.67 571.67

he´mleeefJele ueeYeebMe 17.50% 
(FeqkeÌJeìer meceYeeie) (ieleJe<e& 
15%)

5,222.50 4,116.35

keÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer meevegie´n Devegoeve 3,340.00 3,410.00

meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer 200.00 50.00

keÀce&®eejer keÀu³eeCe efveOeer 10.00 10.00

meeJe&peefvekeÀ, Oecee&oe³e Je menkeÀejer 
keÀe³ee&meeþer efveOeer (1%)

502.98 351.69

iegbleJeCetkeÀ-efJe<e³ekeÀ peesKeerce efveOeer 5,000.00 5,000.00

efJeMes<e jeKeerJe efveOeer 2,240.50 2,947.50

meJe&meeOeejCe jeKeerJe efveOeer 15,000.00 6,450.00

heg{erue Je<ee&keÀjerlee efMeuuekeÀ 71.42 68.03

SketÀCe 50,366.54 35,636.28

 FeqkeÌJeìer meceYeeie ueeYeebMeë

 efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer mebheuesu³ee Deee|LekeÀ 
Je<ee&keÀefjlee FeqkeÌJeìer YeeieOeejkeÀebvee 17.50 ìkeÌkesÀ 
ueeYeebMe osC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle 
Deens. ieleJe<eea 15 ìkeÌkesÀ ueeYeebMe osC³eele Deeuee neslee.

 he´sHeÀjvme meceYeeie ueeYeebMeë

 efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer mebheuesu³ee Deee|LekeÀ 
Je<ee&keÀefjlee he´sHeÀjvme YeeieOeejkeÀebvee ieleJe<ee&FlekeÀe 
10.50 ìkeÌkesÀ ueeYeebMe osC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

 meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeerë

 meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer keÀefjlee `  200 ueeKe Jeie& 
keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens. 
ne efveOeer pecesme Oe©ve SketÀCe meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer  
` 1,591.64 ueeKe FlekeÀe Demesue. DenJeeue Je<eea, 
SketÀCe 954 meYeemeoebveer JewÐekeÀer³e ceoleer®ee ueeYe 
Iesleuee, lemes®e meYeemeoeb®³ee veT iegCeJeble heeu³eebvee 
heeefjleesef<ekesÀ osTve ieewjefJeC³eele Deeues.

 keÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer meevegie´n Devegoeveë

 efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 jespeer mebheuesu³ee Deee|LekeÀ 
Je<ee&keÀefjlee yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀce&®eeN³eebvee Jesleve keÀjejele veceto 
kesÀu³eehe´ceeCes ` 33.40 keÀesìeRhe³e¥le meevegie´n Devegoeve 
osC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

 meeJe&peefvekeÀ Oecee&oe³e DeeefCe menkeÀej #es$ee®³ee 
keÀe³ee&meeþer efveOeerë

 Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee heefjhe$ekeÀ ¬eÀ. UBD/
(PCB)/BPD/Cir/43 efo. 11 Sefhe´ue, 2005 
vegmeej hejJeeveieer efou³eehe´ceeCes meeceeefpekeÀ Je Oecee&oe³e 
keÀe³ee&keÀefjlee `  502.98 ueeKe FlekeÀer lejleto 
keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

 efJeMes<e jeKeerJe efveOeerë

 he´eeqhlekeÀj Keel³ee®³ee lejlegoervegmeej efJeMes<e jeKeerJe 
efveOeer `    2,240.50 ueeKe Jeie& keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

11. yeBkesÀ®³ee GheefJeOeerceO³es meg®eefJeuesu³ee og©ml³ee

 `o ceuìermìsì keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn meesmee³eìerpe De@keÌì, 
2002' Je l³eemebyebOeer®es efve³ece ns efo. 3 Dee@iemì, 
2023 Je efo. 4 Dee@iemì, 2023 jespeer yeouetve 
Deveg¬eÀces `o ceuìermìsì keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn meesmee³eìer 
(megOeejCee) De@keÌì, 2023' Je `o ceuìermìsì  
keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn meesmee³eìerpe megOeeefjle efve³ece {MSCS 
(Amendment) Act & Rules, 2023} 
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Demes veJeerve keÀe³eos DeeqmlelJeele Deeues. l³eeveblej  
efo. 16 Dee@keÌìesyej, 2023 jespeer menkeÀej ceb$eeue³eeves 
keÀe{uesu³ee heefjhe$ekeÀevegmeej meJe& yengjep³eer³e menkeÀejer 
mebmLeebvee l³eeb®³ee efJeÐeceeve GheefJeOeeRceO³es ³ee veJ³ee 
keÀe³eoe Je efve³eceebvegmeej megOeejCee keÀjC³ee®es efveoxMe 
osC³eele Deeues. l³eehe´ceeCes yeBkesÀ®³ee Keeueerue keÀener 
efJeÐeceeve GheefJeOeeRceO³es yeoue lej keÀener veJeerve GheefJeOeer 
he´mleeefJele keÀjC³eele ³esle Deens.

  GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 4 ceOeerue yeoueë

  ceuìermìsì keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn meesmee³eìerpe  
De@keÌìceOeerue keÀuece 10 Je 14 ns menkeÀejer 
mebmLes®³ee heÊ³eeMeer (Address) mebyebefOele 
Deensle. ³eeceO³es FueskeÌì^e@efvekeÀ cesue (e-mail) 
heÊ³ee®ee meceeJesMe keÀjC³ee®es meebefieleues Deens. 
³eevegmeej yeBkesÀ®³ee GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 4 ceO³es yeoue 
keÀjC³ee®ee he´mleeJe ceeb[C³eele ³esle Deens.

  veJeerve GheefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 6(E)(i)ë 

  ceuìer mìsì keÀes. Dee@hejsefìJn meesmee³eìerpe  
De@keÌìceOeerue megOeeefjle keÀuece 28 vegmeej 
SKeeoe meom³e meesmee³eìer meYeemeolJee mebyebefOele 
os³e jkeÌkeÀce lemes®e Flej os³e jkeÌkeÀce eEkeÀJee 
yeBkesÀ®³ee efkeÀceeve mesJeeb®ee Je Glheeoveeb®ee ueeYe 
Iesleu³eeefMeJee³e l³ee®³ee DeefOekeÀejeb®ee Jeehej keÀª 
MekeÀCeej veener. yeBkesÀ®³ee meO³ee®³ee GheefJeefOele 
efkeÀceeve Glheeoveeb®eer Je mesJeeb®eer J³eeK³ee efouesueer 
vemeu³eecegUs 6(E)(i) ne veJee GheefJeOeer he´mleeefJele 
keÀjC³eele ³esle Deens.

  ³eeÜejs Keeueerue efkeÀceeve Glheeoves Je mesJee 
he´mleeefJele keÀjC³eele ³esle Deensle.

  i) iesu³ee mebhegCe& Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&le ye®ele Keel³eele 
mejemejer owefvekeÀ efMeuuekeÀ ` 2,000 eEkeÀJee 
®eeuet Keel³eele mejemejer owefvekeÀ efMeuuekeÀ 
`  5,000

  ii) iesu³ee mebhegCe& Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&le efkeÀceeve 
`  10,000 ®eer cegole þsJe

  iii) keÀesCel³eener he´keÀej®es efkeÀceeve ` 1 ueeKeeb®es 
keÀpe&

  veJeerve GheefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 24 Aë

  ceuìermìsì keÀes. Dee@hejsefìJn meesmee³eìerpe  
De@keÌìceOeerue keÀuece 29 ceO³es meYeemeoeuee Dehee$e 
þjefJeC³ee®eer lejleto keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens. 
³eevegmeej,

  i) meYeemeoe®ee J³eJemee³e DeMee  
yengjep³eer³e menkeÀejer mebmLes®³ee 
J³eJemee³eeMeer hejmhejefJejesOeer eEkeÀJee 
mheOee&lcekeÀ Demesue. efkebÀJee 

  ii) yeBkesÀ®³ee GheefJeOeerle veceto kesÀu³eehe´ceeCes 
efkeÀceeve Glheeoveeb®ee DeLeJee mesJeeb®ee Jeehej 
meueie oesve Je<e& kesÀuee vemesue. eEkeÀJee

  iii) lees yengjep³eer³e menkeÀejer mebmLes®³ee meueie 
leerve meJe&meeOeejCe meYeebvee iewjnpej jentve 
DeMee iewjnpesjerme meYeemeoebveer meJe&meeOeejCe 
meYesle ceeHeÀ kesÀuesues vemesue. eEkeÀJee 

  iv) l³eeves mebmLes®eer os³e Demeuesueer jkeÌkeÀce 
mebmLeskeÀ[s YejCee kesÀueer vemesue. 

  Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee GheefJeOeerle meYeemeoeme Dehee$e 
þjefJeC³eemebyebOeer®es efve³ece vemeu³eecegUs GhejesÊeÀ 
efve³ece veJeerve GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 24A Üejs 
he´mleeefJele keÀjC³eele ³esle Deens.

  GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 55 A ceOeerue yeoueë

  ceuìermìsì keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn meesmee³eìerpe  
De@keÌìceOeerue keÀuece 45 J (1) vegmeej SKeeÐee 
J³eÊeÀerme yengjep³eer³e menkeÀejer mebmLes®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Ue®ee meom³e eEkeÀJee mebmLes®ee heoeefOekeÀejer 
cnCetve efveJe[tve ³esC³eeme hee$e þjC³eemeeþer leer 
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J³eÊeÀer l³ee mebmLes®³ee meJe&meeOeejCe ceb[Ue®eer 
(General Body) ef¬eÀ³eeMeerue meom³e DemeCes 
yebOevekeÀejkeÀ Deens. 

  Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeÐeceeve GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 55A 
ceO³es meb®eeuekeÀheoemeeþer efveJe[CetkeÀ ue{efJeCeeN³ee 
GcesoJeejeb®eer hee$elee veceto kesÀuesueer Deens. hejbleg, 
hee$eles®³ee efvekeÀ<eebceO³es ef¬eÀ³eeMeerue meom³elJee®eer 
lejleto kesÀuesueer veener. ³eekeÀefjlee, GheefJeOeer 
¬eÀceebkeÀ 55A ceO³es megOeejCee keÀªve Jejerue 
lejleto meceeefJeä keÀjC³ee®ee he´mleeJe ceeb[C³eele 
³esle Deens. 

  GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 58 ceOeerue yeoueë 

  ceuìermìsì keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn meesmee³eìerpe  
De@keÌìceOeerue keÀuece 45 J (5) ceO³es mebmLes®³ee 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®ee keÀe³e&keÀeU Je ³ee keÀe³e&keÀeUele 
efjÊeÀ nesCeeN³ee, meb®eeuekeÀeb®³ee heoebkeÀefjlee veJeerve 
veeceefveoxefMele meb®eeuekeÀeb®³ee vesceCegkeÀemeboYee&leerue 
efve³ece veJ³eeves DebleYet&le kesÀues Deensle. 

  yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeÐeceeve GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 58 ceO³es 
Jejerue veJeerve efve³eceevegmeej megOeejCee keÀjC³ee®ee 
he´mleeJe ceeb[C³eele ³esle Deens.

  GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 61 ceOeerue yeoueë

  ceuìermìsì keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn meesmee³eìerpe  
De@keÌìceOeerue keÀuece 50 vegmeej meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Ue®³ee yewþkeÀerkeÀefjlee efveJe[tve Deeuesu³ee 
meom³eeb®³ee efkeÀceeve SkeÀ le=leer³eebMe meom³eeb®³ee 
GheeqmLeleer®ee (Quorum) efve³ece ueeiet keÀjC³eele 
Deeuee Deens. 

  yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeÐeceeve GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 61 vegmeej 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee meYesme efkeÀceeve hee®e meom³e 
GheeqmLele DemeC³ee®ee efve³ece Deens. Jejerue veJeerve 
efve³ecee®³ee Deveg<ebieeves GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 61 ceO³es 
megOeejCee keÀjC³ee®ee he´mleeJe ceeb[C³eele ³esle Deens.

  GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 64 A ceOeerue yeoueë

  ceuìermìsì keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn meesmee³eìerpe  
De@keÌìceOeerue keÀuece 53 ceO³es meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueuee 
keÀe³e&keÀejer meefceleer (Executive Committee) 
Je Flej meefcel³ee eEkeÀJee Ghemeefcel³ee ³ee GheefJeOeerle 
efvee|oä kesÀu³eehe´ceeCes mLeeheve keÀjC³ee®es DeefOekeÀej 
osC³eele Deeuesues Deensle. ³ee®eyejesyej, meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Ueves Dee@ef[ì Je SefLekeÌme (Ethics) meefceleer 
Je keÀecee®³ee efþkeÀeCeer ueQefiekeÀ Mees<eCe he´efleyebefOele 
meefceleer (Committee on Sexual 
Harassment at Workplace) mLeeheve 
keÀjCes yebOevekeÀejkeÀ Deens. 

  efJeÐeceeve GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 64 A vegmeej meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[U keÀe³e&keÀejer meefceleer J³eefleefjÊeÀ Flej leerve 
meefcel³ee eEkeÀJee Ghemeefcel³ee mLeeheve keÀª MekeÀles. 
ceuìermìsì keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn meesmee³eìer®³ee keÀuece 
53 ceOeerue ³ee megOeejCeebvegmeej GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 
64 A ceO³es yeoue keÀjC³ee®ee he´mleeJe ceeb[C³eele 
³esle Deens. 

  veJeerve GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 75ë

  ceuìermìsì keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn meesmee³eìerpe  
De@keÌìceOeerue keÀuece 106 vegmeej mebmLesceO³es  
`keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn FvHeÀe@cexMeve Dee@efHeÀmej'®eer 
vesceCetkeÀ keÀjC³ee®eer lejleto kesÀuesueer Deens. 
ne DeefOekeÀejer mebmLes®³ee meYeemeoebvee l³eebveer 
Depe& efou³eeJej Je þjeefJekeÀ jkeÌkeÀce HeÀer cnCetve 
Yeju³eeJej, l³eebvee GheefJeOeerle veceto kesÀuesu³ee 
efve³eceebvegmeej meesmee³eìer®³ee keÀecekeÀepee®eer Je 
J³eJemLeehevee®eer ceeefnleer osF&ue.  

  ³ee keÀueceevegmeej `keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn FvHeÀe@cexMeve 
Dee@efHeÀmej'®eer vesceCetkeÀ keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee veJeerve 
GheefJeOeer ¬eÀceebkeÀ 75 he´mleeefJele keÀjC³eele 
³esle Deens. ne DeefOekeÀejer meYeemeoebkeÀ[tve 
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Depe& he´ehle Peeu³eeJej l³eebvee meesmee³eìer®³ee 
keÀecekeÀepee®eer Je J³eJemLeehevee®eer ceeefnleer hegjJesue. 
ner ceeefnleer Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee `Master 
Direction on Financial Statements 
- Presentation and Disclosures' ³ee 
efve³eceebvegmeej Demesue. meJe& keÀe³eosMeerj lejlegoeR®es 
heeueve keÀªve ner ceeefnleer ³ee DeefOekeÀeN³eekeÀ[tve 
hegjefJeC³eele ³esF&ue. keÀesCel³eener ie´enkeÀ eEkeÀJee 
meom³eemebyebOeeleerue ceeefnleer hegjefJeC³eele ³esCeej 
veener.

  Jejerue meJe& veJeerve GheefJeOeer Je efJeÐeceeve 
GheefJeOeeRceOeerue og©ml³eeb®ee cepeketÀj ³ee Jeee|<ekeÀ 
DenJeeuee®³ee he=ÿ ¬eÀceebkeÀ 116 les 119 Jej 
osC³eele Deeuee Deens.

12. yeBkesÀuee efceUeuesues hegjmkeÀej

 DenJeeueJe<eea Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer mee³eyej megj#eskeÀefjlee 
`CXO efmekeÌ³egefjìer FveesJnsMeve De@Jee[& 2024' 
ceO³es `Advanced Cyber Security Frame 
Work' ³ee ÞesCeerceO³es efJepeslee cnCetve efveJe[ Peeueer. 
lemes®e `FvHeÀesefmeme FveesJnsMeve De@Jee[&med 2024' ceO³es 
DeeOegefvekeÀ leb$e%eevee®ee Jeehej keÀ©ve yeBeEkeÀie he´Ceeueer 
cepeyegle kesÀu³eeyeÎue yeBkesÀuee hegjmke=Àle keÀjC³eele Deeues. 
³ee J³eefleefjÊeÀ CRIF leHexÀ efouee peeCeeje `Data 
Excellence Award' hegjmkeÀejner yeBkesÀme efceUeuee. 
`CRIF ne³e ceeke&À kesÀ[erì FvHeÀe@jcesMeve mee|Jeme' ner 
Yeejleeleerue ceev³eleehe´ehle ¬esÀ[erì y³egjes Deens.

13. meeceeefpekeÀ yeebefOeuekeÀer®es Ghe¬eÀce

 Deeheueer yeBkeÀ meeceeefpekeÀ yeebefOeuekeÀer®es Yeeve þsJetve 
Deeheu³ee veHeÌ³eeleerue keÀener Yeeie meeceeefpekeÀ DeeefCe 
mesJeeYeeJeer Ghe¬eÀceebceO³es keÀe³e&jle DemeCeeN³ee meeJe&peefvekeÀ 
mebmLeebvee osCeieer mJe©heele osles.

 DenJeeueJe<eea Deeheues ns meeceeefpekeÀ keÀe³e& yeBkesÀves heg{s 
®eeuet þsJele Yeejleeleerue Deejesi³e mesJeskeÀjerlee ³eesieoeve 

efoues. Yeejleeleerue Deejesi³e #es$eeheg{s Deepe DeveskeÀ 
DeeJneves Deensle. l³eeceO³es ©iCeeue³eeb®eer GheueyOelee, 
Kee|®ekeÀ Ghe®eej Je Ghe®eejeb®eer iegCeJeÊee ner keÀener he´cegKe 
DeeJneves nes³e. l³eelener keÀke&ÀjesieemeejK³ee Deepeeje®ee 
Ghe®eej-Ke®e& lej meeceev³eeb®³ee DeeJeekeÌ³eeyeensj®ee 
Demelees. cegbyeF&leerue ìeìe cesceesefj³eue ne@eqmheìue ns 
keÀke&Àjesie Peeuesu³ee ©iCeebmeeþer SkeÀ Jejoeve Deens. FLes 
mebhetCe& Yeejleeletve keÀke&ÀjesieeJejerue Ghe®eej IesC³eemeeþer 
©iCe ³esleele. keÀke&ÀjesieeJejerue Ghe®eejebJej Delegueveer³e 
keÀe³e& keÀjCeeN³ee ³ee ©iCeeue³eeuee menkeÀe³e& keÀjC³ee®eer 
DeeJeM³ekeÀlee Deens. mebhetCe& Yeejleele l³eeb®eer veT 
©iCeeue³es Deensle Je Depetve mene ©iCeeue³es veJ³eeves meg© 
nesCeej Deensle. FLes ³esCeeN³ee 60 ìkeÌkesÀ ©iCeebJej ceesHeÀle 
DeLeJee keÀceer MegukeÀ DeekeÀe©ve Ghe®eej keÀjC³eele ³esleele. 
DenJeeueJe<eea, Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves Meñeef¬eÀ³ee keÀjC³eemeeþer 
DeeJeM³ekeÀ GhekeÀjCeeb®³ee KejsoerkeÀefjlee ìeìe cesceesefj³eue 
ne@eqmheìueuee ` 2.51 keÀesìer ©he³eeb®eer osCeieer efoueer.

 DenJeeueJe<eea Deeheueer meeceeefpekeÀ yeebefOeuekeÀer Depetve ¢{ 
keÀjle yeBkesÀves yeer.Jee³e.Sue. vee³ej ne@eqmheìueueener ` 50 
ueeKeeb®eer osCeieer efoueer. osCeieer efouesu³ee efveOeer®ee Ghe³eesie 
iejpet ©iCeebkeÀefjlee ©iCeeue³ee®³ee JewÐekeÀer³e meeceeefpekeÀ 
keÀe³e& efJeYeeieeleHexÀ keÀjC³eele ³esF&ue.

 efpeune ceefnuee Je yeeue ©iCeeue³e, kegÀ[eU ³ee 
eEmeOegogie& efpeun³eeleerue cenejeä^ Meemevee®³ee Deejesi³e 
efJeYeeiee®³ee efve³eb$eCeeKeeueer Demeuesu³ee ©iCeeue³eemener 
Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves ` 30 ueeKeeb®eer osCeieer DenJeeue Je<ee&le  
efoueer.

 ieleJe<eea `efiejieeJekeÀj he´efleÿeve' ®³ee heg{ekeÀejeves `jbie os 
ceePeer MeeUe' ³ee Ghe¬eÀceeDebleie&le MeeUeb®³ee FceejleeR®es 
vetleveerkeÀjCe Je jbiejbieesìerkeÀefjlee Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves 
osCeieer efoueer nesleer. DenJeeue Je<eea meg×e Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves 
ceneje<ì^eleerue 50 ntve DeefOekeÀ MeeUeb®³ee FceejleeR®es 
vegleveerkeÀjCe Je jbiejbieesìerkeÀefjlee ` 20 ueeKeeb®eer osCeieer 
efoueer.
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 lemes®e yeBkesÀ®³ee `$eÝCeevegyebOe' Ghe¬eÀceeDebleie&le 157 
mebmLeebvee `  20.63 ueeKeeb®³ee osCei³ee DenJeeue Je<eea 
osC³eele Deeu³ee.

14. Flej Ie[ecees[er

 Yeejleer³e yeBkeÀebkeÀ[tve DeekeÀejC³eele ³esCeeN³ee mesJee 
MegukeÀebJej `ceveer ueeF&HeÀ HeÀeTb[sMeve' ³ee mebmLesves 
SkeÀ DenJeeue vegkeÀlee®e he´keÀeefMele kesÀuee. Yeejleeleerue 
DeveskeÀ yeBkeÀeb®es mesJeeMegukeÀ ³eeJesUer DeY³eemeC³eele Deeues. 
³ee DenJeeueele Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀuee Jej®eer ÞesCeer he´oeve 
keÀjC³eele Deeuesueer Deens. `ceveer ueeF&HeÀ HeÀeTb[sMeve'ves 
ne DenJeeue Fbef[³eve Feqvmììîegì Dee@HeÀ ìskeÌvee@uee@peer, 
cegbyeF& (I.I.T. Mumbai) ³eeb®³ee menkeÀe³ee&ves he´keÀeefMele 
kesÀuee. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®es ceepeer [sh³egìer ieJnve&j, 
Þeer. cegbêe ³eeb®³ee DeO³e#elesKeeueer ³ee DenJeeuee®es he´keÀeMeve 
keÀjC³eele Deeues.

 `ueeskeÀmeÊee' ³ee Deie´ieC³e cejeþer Je=Êehe$eeves cenejeä^e®³ee 
efpeune efJekeÀeme efveoxMeebkeÀe®³ee Jeee|<ekeÀ DenJeeuee®es 
he´keÀeMeve vegkeÀles®e kesÀues. `efpeune efJekeÀeme efveoxMeebkeÀ' 
jep³e mejkeÀejuee he´l³eskeÀ efpeu¿ee®³ee efve³eespeve Je 
OeesjCeelcekeÀ efveCe&³eemeeþer DeefleMe³e Ghe³egÊeÀ þjsue. 
Deeheueer yeBkeÀ ³ee Ghe¬eÀceemeeþer cegK³e he´e³eespekeÀ nesleer 
DeeefCe ³ee Ghe¬eÀcee®³ee meg©Jeeleer®³ee ìhh³eeheemegve les 
Debeflece DenJeeue he´efme× nesF&he³e¥le ³ee Ghe¬eÀcee®ee Yeeie 
jeefnueer.

 peeieeflekeÀ yeBkeÀ DeeefCe Deeblejjeä^er³e veeCesefveOeer ns 
Yeejleer³e DeLe&-ceb$eeue³e Je Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ 
³eeb®³ee menkeÀe³ee&ves osMee®³ee Deee|LekeÀ #es$ee®eer eqmLejlee, 
meg¢{lee Je ³ee #es$ee®es Yeejlee®³ee efJekeÀemeeceOeerue 
³eesieoeve ³ee keÀefjlee Je<e& 2024 ceO³es `HeÀe³eve@eqvMe³eue 
meskeÌìj DemesmeceWì he´esie´ce' (Financial Sector 
Assessment Program – FSAP) Dee³eesefpele 
keÀjle Deens. ³ee heeée&YetceerJej menkeÀejer #es$e Je ceO³ece 

lemes®e ueIeg GÐeesieebvee keÀpe& efJelejerle keÀjC³ee®³ee he×leer, 
l³eeceOeerue DeeJneves ³eeyeÎue Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer celes peeCetve 
IesC³eemeeþer peeieeflekeÀ yeBkesÀ®³ee ìerceves Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀme 
Yesì efoueer Je Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee DeefOekeÀeN³eebmeceJesle 
efJemle=le ®e®ee& kesÀueer. peeieeflekeÀ yeBkesÀ®es he´efleefveOeerlJe  
efceme. veleeueer efvekeÀesueeT (Jeefjÿ efJeÊeer³e #es$e 
efJeMes<e%e) Je Þeer. JeWkeÀì ÞeerOeje (efJeÊeer³e #es$e efJeMes<e%e) 
³eebveer kesÀues.

15. DeeoMe& meYeemeo

 ojJe<eea Deeheu³ee meYeemeoebkeÀefjlee yeBkeÀ `DeeoMe& 
meYeemeo' hegjmkeÀej peeenerj keÀefjle Demeles. DenJeeueJe<eea 
ne he´efleeqÿle hegjmkeÀej `ces. megefhe´³ee ueeF&HeÀ mee³evmesme 
efue.' ³ee kebÀheveer®es mebmLeehekeÀ Je DeO³e#e [e@. meleerMe 
Jeeceve JeeIe ³eebvee he´oeve keÀjC³eele Deeuee.

 [e@. meleerMe JeeIe ³eeb®ee pevce efo. 29 ef[meWyej 1955 
jespeer cegbyeF&le Peeuee. les jmee³eveMeem$e Je DeLe&Meem$ee®es 
heoJeerOej Deensle. Je<e& 1987 ceO³es l³eebveer ces. megefhe´³ee 
ueeFHeÀ mee³evmesme efueefceìs[®eer mLeehevee kesÀueer. l³eeb®ee 
otjoMeeaheCee Je ¢{efve½e³eeves l³eebveer Deeheu³ee kebÀheveeruee 
peeieeflekeÀ opee&®es yeveefJeues. Deepe `ces. megefhe´³ee ueeF&HeÀ 
mee³evmesme efue.' ner De@keÌìerJn HeÀecee@m³egìerkeÀue 
Fvie´sef[³evìdme (Active Pharmaceutical 
Ingredients-API) yeveefJeCeejer SkeÀ Deie´ieC³e kebÀheveer 
Deens. 150 ntve DeefOekeÀ osMeebceO³es l³eeb®ee J³eJemee³e 
heesnes®euee Demetve Deew<eOe efvee|celeer #es$eele Yeejleeuee 
l³eebveer peeieeflekeÀ heìueeJej DeeCeues Deens.

 [e@. JeeIe ³eebvee l³eeb®³ee 36 ntve DeefOekeÀ Je<ee&®³ee 
keÀejefkeÀe|ole DeveskeÀ hegjmkeÀejebveer mevceeefvele keÀjC³eele 
Deeues Deens. CHEMEXCIL ®es DeO³e#e ³ee veel³eeves 
l³eebveer HeÀecee&m³egìerkeÀue #es$ee®es vesle=lJe kesÀues Je ³ee #es$eeleerue 
efve³ee&le Jee{efJeueer. les DeveskeÀ le©Ce GÐeespekeÀebmeeþer 
he´sjCeemLeeve Deensle. efJeefJeOe J³eemeheerþeJej l³eeb®es 
J³eJemee³eeleerue DevegYeJe efMekeÀefJeC³eekeÀjerlee J³eeK³eeles 
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cnCetve l³eebvee Deecebef$ele kesÀues peeles. meeceeefpekeÀ 
peeefCeJes®³ee yeebOeeruekeÀerletve efMe#eCe, Deejesi³e, meeceeefpekeÀ 
Ghe¬eÀce Je he³ee&JejCe Fl³eeoer yeeyeeR®³ee mecem³eebJej ue#e 
keWÀêerle keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee l³eebveer `meleerMe JeeIe HeÀeTb[sMeve' 
®eer mLeeheveener kesÀueer Deens.

 Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀme [e@. meleerMe JeeIe, l³eeb®es kegÀìgbyeer³e Je  
`ces. megefhe´³ee ueeF&HeÀ mee³evmesme efue.' Meer iesueer 36Je<ex 
mebueive Demeu³ee®ee meeLe& DeefYeceeve Deens.

16. meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®eer j®evee

 Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®eer j®evee ceequìmìsì 
keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn meesmee³eìer De@keÌì, 2002 Je yeBkesÀ®³ee 
heesìefve³eceebvegmeej kesÀueer peeles. efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 
jespeer Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Uele keÀe³e&keÀejer 
meb®eeuekeÀebJ³eefleefjÊeÀ Deþje meb®eeuekeÀ keÀe³e&jle Deensle. 
³eeceO³es yeBeEkeÀie Je Flej #es$eeleerue DevegYeJeer Je le%e 
meb®eeuekeÀeb®ee meceeJesMe Deens. DenJeeue Je<eea yeBkesÀ®³ee 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee j®evesle kegÀþueener yeoue Peeuesuee 
veener. efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 veblej Peeuesues meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Ueleerue yeoue Keeueer veceto kesÀuesues Deensle.

 DenJeeue Je<eea Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee 
SketÀCe 25 meYee Peeu³ee.

 meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueleerue yeoueë

 yeBkesÀ®es Jeefjÿ meb®eeuekeÀ he¨eÞeer Þeer. ceOeg cebiesMe keÀe|CekeÀ 
³eebveer yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ heoe®ee jepeerveecee efouee 
DeeefCe meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves efo. 14 Sefhe´ue, 2024 
jespeer lees mJeerkeÀejuee. yeBkesÀkeÀefjlee meb®eeuekeÀ cnCetve 
Þeer. keÀe|CekeÀ ³eebveer efouesu³ee ³eesieoeveeyeÎue meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[U l³eeb®es $eÝCeer Deens. leodveblej efo. 1 ces, 2024 
heemetve Þeer. keÀe|CekeÀ ³eeb®eer yeBkesÀ®es meebmke=ÀeflekeÀ meuueeieej 
cnCetve efve³egÊeÀer keÀjC³eele Deeueer. Þeer. keÀe|CekeÀ ns 
yeBkesÀMeer oerIe&keÀeU mebyebefOele Deensle Je yeBkesÀJej l³eebveer  
`Dece=le meejmJele' Je `Meleeyoer meejmJele' ner hegmlekesÀner 
efueefnueer Deensle.

 efo. 14 Sefhe´ue, 2024 jespeer Þeer. ue#ceCe Deej. 
meeceble ³eeb®eer yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[UeJej mJeerke=Àle  
(Co-Opt) meom³e cnCetve efve³egÊeÀer keÀjC³eele Deeueer. 
Þeer. meeceble ns yeer.Smemeer. (kesÀefcemì^er), SceSceSme 
Demetve l³eebveer Dee³e.ìer. Je mee³eyej efmekeÌ³egefjìerceO³es 
meefì&efHeÀkesÀMeve ÒeeHle kesÀues Deens. Þeer. meeceble ns efve<Ceele 
yeBkeÀj Demetve meejmJele yeBkesÀle l³eebveer 34 Je<ee¥ntve 
DeefOekeÀ keÀeU mesJee kesÀuesueer Deens. l³eebveer yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeefJeOe 
efJeYeeieeceO³es keÀece kesÀuesues Demetve keÀes<eeieej (Treasury), 
peesKeerce J³eJemLeeheve (Risk Management), 
DekeÀeGbìdme, J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpex, MeeKee J³eJenej,  
hue@eEveie Fl³eeoer #es$eebceOeuee mece=× DevegYeJe l³eeb®³eekeÀ[s 
Deens. les efo. 30 petve, 2022 jespeer yeBkesÀ®³ee mesJesletve 
men-keÀe³e&keÀejer meb®eeuekeÀ heoeJe©ve efveJe=Êe Peeues.  
Þeer. meeceble Deelee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee uesKeeheefj#eCe, 
uesKee Je Deveglheeefole keÀpee&mebyebOeer meefceleer®es lemes®e 
peesKeerce J³eJemLeeheve meefceleer®es meom³e Deensle.

 meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Uele Peeuesu³ee ³ee yeoueeveblej meO³ee 
keÀe³e&keÀejer meb®eeuekeÀebJ³eefleefjÊeÀ Deþje meb®eeuekeÀ 
keÀe³e&jle Deensle. ³eeceO³es SkeÀ ®eeì&[& DekeÀeGbìbì Je meele 
yeBkeÀme&®ee meceeJesMe Deens.

 J³eJemLeeheve ceb[U (Board of Management 
– BoM): 

 yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJemLeeheveeme mene³³e keÀjC³eekeÀefjlee Je 
yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJenejebJej efve³eb$eCe jeKeC³eekeÀefjlee yeBeEkeÀie 
#es$eeleerue efJeMes<e %eeve Je DevegYeJe Demeuesu³ee J³eÊeÀeR®ee 
meceeJesMe Demeuesues J³eJemLeeheve ceb[U Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀle 
keÀe³e&jle Deens. Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2023-24 ceO³es yeBkesÀ®³ee 
J³eJemLeeheve ceb[Ue®³ee j®evesle kegÀþueener yeoue Peeuesuee 
veener.

 DenJeeueJe<eea yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJemLeeheve ceb[Ue®³ee 25 meYee 
Peeu³ee.
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 J³eJemLeeheve ceb[Ue®eer (BoM) hegvej&®eveeë

 yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJemLeeheve ceb[Ue®es meom³e Þeer. Sce. Jner. 
ìebkeÀmeeUs ³eebveer efo. 8 Sefhe´ue, 2024 jespeer Jew³eefÊeÀkeÀ 
keÀejCeemleJe J³eJemLeeheve ceb[Ue®ee jepeerveecee efouee.

 leodveblej, J³eJemLeeheve ceb[Ue®eer hegvej&®evee keÀjC³eele 
Deeueer. l³eevegmeej yeBkesÀ®es oesve efJeÐeceeve meb®eeuekeÀ, oesve 
efJeÐeceeve yee¿e meom³e Je oesve veJeerve yee¿e meom³eeb®ee 
meceeJesMe keÀjC³eele Deeuee. Þeer. efnceeêer Sme. ®e@ìpeea 
Je Þeer. mebpe³e [er. veeF&keÀ ns oesve veJeerve yee¿e meom³e 
J³eJemLeeheve ceb[Uele meceeefJeä Peeues. meJe& yee¿e meom³e 
ns yeBeEkeÀie Je efJeÊeer³e #es$eeleerue DevegYeJeer Je le%e J³eÊeÀer 
Deensle.

 veJeerve meom³eeb®ee heefj®e³eë

 Þeer. efnceeêer Sme. ®e@ìpeea ³eebveer efouueer efJeÐeeheerþeletve 
YeeweflekeÀ Meem$eeleerue ceemìme& heoJeer efceUefJeueer Deens. 
³eeefMeJee³e, De@eqkeÌmeme SeqkeÌPekeÌ³egefìJn ueer[jMeerhe he´esie´@ce, 
CAFRAL De@[Jnevm[ ueer[jefMehe he´esie´@ce, ieJnve&vme 
DeB[ mìskeÀ nesu[j ce@vespeceWì he´esie´ce DeeefCe meb®eeuekeÀ 
meom³eebmeeþer Demeuesuee Dee³e. ìer. Je mee³eyej efmekeÌ³egefjìer 
he´esie´@ce Fl³eeoeRceO³es l³eebveer he´ceeCehe$es efceUefJeuesueer Deensle. 
les SkeÀ kegÀMeue yeBkeÀj Demetve De@eqkeÌmeme yeBkeÀ Je mìsì yeBkeÀ 
Dee@HeÀ Fb[er³eeceO³es l³eebveer efJeefJeOe heoebJej 35 Je<ee¥ntve 
DeefOekeÀ keÀeU mesJee efouesueer Deens. Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀle 
³esC³eehegJeea les De@eqkeÌmeme yeBkesÀ®es he´sefme[Wì Je Dee@hejsMevme 
efJeYeeiee®³ee he´cegKe heoeJej nesles.

 Þeer. mebpe³e [er. veeF&keÀ ns cegbyeF& efJeÐeeheerþe®es  
yeer.Smemeer. heoJeerOej Deensle. lemes®e l³eebveer CAIIB Je 
Banking Finance ³ee efJe<e³eeb®eer MBA heoJeerner 
he´ehle kesÀueer Deens. les SkeÀ le%e yeBkeÀj Demetve mìsì 
yeBkeÀ Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³eele efJeefJeOe heoebJej keÀe³e&jle nesles. 
36 Je<ee&®³ee mesJesveblej les GheJ³eJemLeehekeÀer³e meb®eeuekeÀ 
(International Banking) ³ee heoeJe©ve efveJe=Êe 
Peeues. l³eebveer SeqkeÌPekeÌ³egefìJn he´esie´@ce Fve ueer[jMeerhe  

(mì@veHeÀes[& ³egefveJne|meìer) DeeefCe meb®eeuekeÀ meom³eebmeeþer 
Demeuesuee Dee³e. ìer. Je mee³eyej efmekeÌ³egefjìer he´esie´@ce ceOeerue 
he´ceeCehe$e efceUefJeues Deens. l³eebvee efjìsue yeBeEkeÀie, keÀe@heexjsì 
¬esÀef[ì, Fbìjve@Meveue yeBeEkeÀie Je ì^s[ HeÀe³eveevme DeMee 
efJeefJeOe #es$eebceO³es keÀece keÀjC³ee®ee DevegYeJe Deens. mìsì yeBkeÀ  
Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³ee®es J³eJemLeehekeÀer³e meb®eeuekeÀ cnCetve les ³egkesÀ,  
ke@ÀefueHeÀesefve&³ee, ke@Àve[e DeeefCe cee@efjMemeceO³es SmeyeerDee³e 
ves mLeeheve kesÀuesu³ee 4 yeBkeÀeb®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®es 
he´cegKe nesles.

 Jejerue hegvej&®evesveblej J³eJemLeeheve ceb[Uele (BOM) 
yeBkesÀ®es oesve efJeÐeceeve meb®eeuekeÀ Je yeBeEkeÀie #es$eeleerue ®eej 
DevegYeJeer Je le%e yee¿e J³eeEÊeÀ®ee DebleYee&Je Deens.

 J³eJemLeehekeÀ ceb[Ue®es meom³e Keeueerue he´ceeCes Deensle.

meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueleerue 

meom³e

yeBkeÀeRie #es$eeleerue le%e 

meom³e

• Þeer. Sme.kesÀ. ye@vepeea,

 (J³eJemLeeheve ceb[Ue®es 

DeO³e#e),

•  Þeer. S.Sme. ceeskeÀeMeer, 

•  [e@. Jner.Jee³e. lejeUs, 

•  Þeer. S®e.Sme. ®e@ìpeea,

•  Þeer. Sme.Sme. efMejes[keÀj •  Þeer. Sme.[er. veeF&keÀ

 meb®eeuekeÀebvee keÀpexë

 yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀesCel³eener meb®eeuekeÀeves Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀkeÀ[tve 
keÀesCel³eener he´keÀej®es keÀpe& Iesleuesues veener. ner Deeheu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®eer iesu³ee DeveskeÀ Je<ee¥®eer mJeeieleen& Je efvekeÀeshe hejbheje 
Deens. ³ee®es he´eJeOeeve Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee GheefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 55 
DeeefCe 63 (meer) ceO³es keÀjC³eele Deeues Deens.

17. meYeemeo

 efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 DeKesjerme Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®es heVeeme 
eEkeÀJee DeefOekeÀ meceYeeie DemeCeeN³ee meYeemeoeb®eer mebK³ee 
2,69,147 FlekeÀer Peeueer lej veececee$e meYeemeoeb®eer 
mebK³ee 1,28,645 FlekeÀer Deens.
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18. JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeehejer#ekeÀe®eer efve³egÊeÀer

 Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2024-25 keÀefjlee JewOeeefvekeÀ 
uesKeehejer#ekeÀ cnCetve ces. ieesKeues DeB[ meeþs, ®eeì&[& 
DekeÀeGbìbìdme, 304/308/309, GÐeesie ceboerj  
veb. 1, 7-meer, Yeeieespeer keÀerj ceeie&, ceeefnce,  
cegbyeF&-400 016 DeeefCe ces. heer. peer. YeeieJele SueSueheer, 
®eeì&[& DekeÀeGbìbìme, megì 102, Dee@®e&[&, [e@. hew ceeie&, 
yeeCesj, hegCes-411 045 ³eeb®eer vesceCetkeÀ keÀjC³eemeeþer ns 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U efMeHeÀejme keÀjerle Deens.

19. peenerj efveJesove

 Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves yeBkesÀ®³ee þsJeeRJejerue efJec³ee®ee  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2024 he³e¥le®ee efhe´efce³ece®ee nhlee  
ef[hee@efPeì FvMegjvme DeB[ ¬esÀ[erì ie@jbìer keÀe@heexjsMevekeÀ[s 
pecee kesÀuee Deens DeeefCe meoj efhe´efce³eceheesìer keÀesCeleerner 
jkeÌkeÀce osCes yeekeÀer veener.

20. Þe×ebpeueer

 DenJeeue Je<ee&le Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee p³ee meYeemeoeb®es, 
keÀce&®eeN³eeb®es Je efveJe=Êe keÀce&®eeN³eeb®es ogëKeo efveOeve Peeues, 
l³ee meJee¥he´leer meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U Deeojebpeueer Dehe&Ce keÀjles.

21. ke=Àle%elee

 meJe& meYeemeo, Keelesoej Je keÀce&®eejer ³eeb®es yeBkesÀuee 
ueeYele Demeuesues menkeÀe³e& Je meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[UeJej 
l³eebveer oMe&efJeuesuee efJeéeeme, ³eeyeÎue meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U 
l³eeb®es meowJe $eÝCeer Deens. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee 

keÀe³ee&ue³eeleerue DeefOekeÀejer Je keÀce&®eejer, keWÀêer³e menkeÀejer 
efveyebOekeÀ-veJeer efouueer, menkeÀej Dee³egÊeÀ Je menkeÀejer 
efveyebOekeÀ keÀe³ee&ue³e, hegCes-cenejeä^ lemes®e Deeheu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®es yeBkeÀme&, keÀe³eosMeerj meuueeieej Je uesKeehejer#ekeÀeb®es 
l³eebveer efouesu³ee ceeie&oMe&ve, heeeEþyee Je menkeÀe³ee&yeÎue 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U $eÝCeer Deens. ³ee J³eefleefjÊeÀ keÀvee&ìkeÀ, 
ieesJee, iegpejele, ceO³e he´osMe Je efouueer ³ee jep³eebleerue 
menkeÀejer efveyebOekeÀeb®esner meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U DeeYeej ceeveerle 
Deens.

 ³esCeeN³ee keÀeUele meelel³ehetCe& he´ieleer keÀ©ve ³eMee®eer veJeer 
efMeKejs ieeþC³eemeeþer Deeheueer yeBkeÀ he´³elveMeerue jenerue, 
Demes meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U meJe& meYeemeoebme Deeéemle keÀ© 
Feq®íles. ner GÎeräs ieeþC³eekeÀefjlee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U 
DeefJejle he´³elve keÀjsue.

yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee Jeleerves

ieewlece SkeÀveeLe þeketÀj
DeO³e#e

cegbyeF&, efoveebkeÀ 28 petve, 2024.

leUìerheë

meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®ee mebhetCe& DenJeeue Fbie´peerceO³es meesyele efouee 
Deens. ne HeÀÊeÀ iees<eJeeje Deens.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To,
The Members,
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd,

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial 
Statements of Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (“the 
Bank”) as at March 31, 2024, which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Profit and 
Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year 
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Financial Statements together with the 
notes thereon give the information required by 
the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Multi State 
Cooperative Societies Act, 2002 and the Rules made 
thereunder, the guidelines issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India (“RBI”) and the Central Registrar of 
Cooperative Societies, in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India of 
the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2024 
and its profit and its Cash Flows for the financial year 
ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by The Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI together 
with ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements under the provisions 
of the Banking Regulations Act, 1949 and the rules 
made thereunder and under the provisions of the 
Multi State Cooperative Societies Act, 2002 and the 
rules made thereunder and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the code of ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Significant Accounting Policy no. 
4.4 and Note 13(g) of the financial statements, where 

the Bank has made floating provision of ` 12,500.00 
lakhs pursuant to policy made by the Bank in this 
regard.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report thereon 
The Bank’s management and Board of Directors is 
responsible for the preparation of other information. 
The other information comprises the information 
included in the Board of Directors Report including 
other explanatory information, but does not include 
Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
The report of the Board of Directors is expected to be 
made available to us after the date of this auditor’s 
report.
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Financial 
Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the 
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.
When we read the Report of Board of Directors 
including other explanatory information, if we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter 
to those charged with governance. 
Responsibilities of Management and those Charged 
with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of these Financial Statements that give 
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Accounting Standards issued by ICAI, 
provisions of The Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the 
Rules made thereunder, provisions of The Multi State 
Cooperative Societies Act, 2002 and the Rules made 
thereunder and circulars and guidelines issued by RBI 
and the Central Registrar of Cooperative Societies 
from time to time. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Acts for safeguarding of assets 
of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were 
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operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.
In preparing the Financial Statements, management 
and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing 
the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing 
the Bank’s financial reporting process. 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial 
Statements
Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement whether due 
to fraud or error and to issue auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high 
level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material 

misstatement of the Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control 
relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Bank’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of 
management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements 

1. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss 
Account have been drawn up in Forms A and B 
respectively of the Third Schedule to the Banking 
Regulation Act, 1949, and the Multi State Co-
operative Societies Act, 2002, the Multi State Co-
operative Societies Rules, 2002.

2. As required by Section 73(4) of the Multi State 
Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, and section 
30(3) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 (as 
amended), we report that:

 a) We have obtained all the information and 
explanations, which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit and have found to be 
satisfactory.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Bank 
so far as it appears from our examination of 
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those books and proper returns adequate for 
the purposes of our audit have been received 
from the branches or offices.

 c) No separate audit of the branches has been 
conducted under the Multi State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002 and therefore no other 
auditor’s report has been received by us. 

 d) The transactions of the Bank which have 
come to our notice have been within the 
powers of the Bank.

 e) The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss 
Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this report, are in agreement with the 
books of account and the returns.

 f) The profit and loss account shows a true 
balance of profit for the period covered by 
such account.

3. As per the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the books of 
account and other record, we report as under on 
the matters specified in clause (d) and (e) of Rule 
27 (2) of the Multi State Co-operative Societies 
Rules, 2002:

 a) In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we 
have not noticed any material impropriety or 
irregularity in the expenditure or in the money 
due to the Bank.

 b) In our opinion and according to information 
and explanations given to us, the guidelines 
issued by the RBI, to the extent applicable 
to the Bank, have generally been adhered to 
except revised exposure limits as explained 
in Note No 7. The guidelines of National 
Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development 
(“NABARD”) are not applicable to the Bank 
since the Bank has neither accepted deposits 
nor received subsidy from NABARD.

4. As required by Rule 27(3) of the Multi State Co-
operative Societies Rules, 2002, we report on the 
matters specified in clauses (a) to (f) of the said 
Rule to the extent applicable to the Bank as under.

 a) During the course of our audit, we have 
generally not come across transactions 
which appear to be contrary to the provisions 
of the Act, the Rules or the Bye-Laws of the 
Bank.

 b) During the course of our audit, we have 
not come across material and significant 
transactions which appear to be contrary to 
the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank 

of India (“RBI”). The guidelines of National 
Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development 
(“NABARD”) are not applicable to the Bank 
since the Bank has neither accepted deposits 
nor received subsidy from NABARD. 

 c) Based on our examination of the books of 
account and other records and as per the 
information and explanations given to us, the 
money belonging to the Bank which appears 
to be bad or doubtful of recovery are as 
follows: 

Category Principal outstanding as 
on March 31, 2024

(` in Lakhs) 

Doubtful Advances 93,748.50

Non-Performing 
Investments

Nil

Other Assets 3,980.54

 d) The Bank has not given loans to the members 
of the Board of Directors.

 e) In our opinion and according to information 
and explanations given to us, the guidelines 
issued by the Reserve Bank, to the extent 
applicable to the Bank, have generally been 
adhered to except revised exposure limits 
as explained in Note No 7. The guidelines 
of National Bank for Agriculture and Rural 
Development (“NABARD”) are not applicable 
to the Bank since the Bank has neither 
accepted deposits nor received subsidy from 
NABARD. 

 f) To the best of our knowledge, no other 
matters have been specified by the Central 
Registrar of Co-operatives Societies, which 
requires reporting under this rule. 

Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration 
No: 106655W

M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration 
No: 101851W

Abhay V. Kamat
ICAI Membership 
No: 39585
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2024
UDIN: 24039585BKCZLT2968

Sanat Ulhas Chitale
ICAI Membership 
No: 143700
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2024
UDIN: 24143700BKFYEY1733 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024
(Amount in `)

Capital and Liabilities Schedule Current Year
31.03.2024

Previous Year
31.03.2023

(1)  Capital 1  3,68,75,28,400 3,44,99,65,050

(2)  Reserve Fund & Other Reserves 2  51,30,95,70,278 50,05,10,22,513

(3)  Principal/ Subsidiary State Partnership 0 0
       Fund Account

(4)  Deposits & Other Accounts 3  4,94,57,31,28,341  4,45,01,75,92,989 

(5)  Borrowings 4  18,26,72,20,167 22,11,66,64,871

(6)  Bills for Collection Being Bills  53,34,04,36,255 57,05,06,25,022
     Receivable as per Contra

(7)  Securities Receivable as per Contra
       i. Repo  2,02,14,95,167 6,20,05,31,871
      ii. Reverse Repo  3,44,99,95,619 2,52,79,70,690

(8)  Branch Adjustments 0 0

(9) Overdue Interest Reserve on Loans & Advances (As per Contra)  1,06,85,96,233 1,25,69,38,425

(10) Interest Payable  3,43,69,361 3,66,13,993

(11) Other Liabilities 5  21,40,79,72,894 20,41,43,95,613

(12) Profit & Loss 6  5,03,66,54,429 3,56,36,27,913

Total  6,54,19,69,67,144  6,11,68,59,48,950 

Contingent Liabilities :       13  43,33,57,74,998 57,89,29,79,138
As per our report of even date

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101851W 

sd/-
(Abhay V Kamat)
Partner
Membership No. 39585 
Mumbai : May 24, 2024

sd/-
(Sanat Ulhas Chitale)
Partner
Membership No. 143700
Mumbai : May 24, 2024
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(Amount in `)
Property and Assets Schedule  Current Year 

31.03.2024
Previous Year

31.03.2023
(1) Cash 7  24,47,90,72,905  24,17,79,57,253 

(2) Balances with other Banks 8  25,45,53,50,621  6,86,12,64,284 

(3) Money at Call and Short Notice  7,71,60,38,158  13,71,68,01,355 

(4) Investments 9  1,77,88,50,48,846  1,58,40,84,31,492 

(5) Investments out of Principal/ Subsidiary 0 0
 State Partnership Fund Account

(6) Advances  10  3,25,67,46,41,828  3,10,57,13,28,495 

(7) Interest Receivable
 i. On Investments  3,72,83,81,296  2,38,96,20,304 
 ii.  On Loans & Advances PA  48,58,65,189  46,62,96,598 
 iii. On Loans & Advances (As per Contra)  1,06,85,96,233  1,25,69,38,425 

(8) Bills Receivable Being Bills for Collection as per Contra  53,34,04,36,255  57,05,06,25,022 

(9)  Securities Receivable as per Contra
       i. Repo  2,02,14,95,167  6,20,05,31,871 
       ii. Reverse Repo  3,44,99,95,619  2,52,79,70,690 

(10) Branch Adjustments 0 0

(11) Fixed Assets 11  9,49,98,44,482  9,53,06,68,721 

(12) Other Assets  12  18,81,63,75,958  17,95,16,25,835 

(13)  Non-Banking Assets Acquired in Satisfaction of Claims 0 0

(14) Computer Software   57,58,24,587  57,58,88,605 

Total  6,54,19,69,67,144  6,11,68,59,48,950 

sd/-
A. A. Patil 

Managing Director         
& CEO                                                              

sd/-
S. N. Sawaikar

Director

sd/-
K. V. Rangnekar

Director

sd/-
S. K. Sakhalkar
 Vice Chairman

sd/-
G. E. Thakur

Chairman

Mumbai : May 24, 2024
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PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(Amount in `)

Expenditure  Current Year
31.03.2024 

Previous Year
31.03.2023

1) Interest on Deposits, Borrowings, etc. 25,30,33,83,671 20,32,80,22,692
2) Salaries and Allowances, Provident Fund 4,21,57,44,793 4,20,13,04,401
3) Directors’ and local committee members’ fees and allowances  96,30,000  1,00,80,000 
4) Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Lighting, etc.  1,73,34,68,477  1,51,08,16,796 
5) Law Charges  3,49,01,291  2,91,69,278 
6) Postage, Telegram and Telephone charges  8,99,98,587  8,19,04,728 
7) Auditor’s fees  8,13,28,996  7,46,60,492 
8) Depreciation on and repair to property  84,73,01,690  78,54,74,266 
9) Stationery, printing and advertisement, etc.  27,91,16,262  17,54,36,362 
10) Loss from sale of or dealing with non-banking assets 0 0
11) Other Expenditure :
 i) Repairs and Maintenance of assets  21,75,73,762  20,32,31,856 
 ii) Banker’s Indemnity Insurance  85,50,000  1,04,00,000 
 iii) Premium paid to DICGC  53,58,59,325  50,41,49,683 
 iv) Premium paid to ECGC  7,45,24,347  7,20,52,130 
 v) Cheque Processing Charges  77,33,704  96,42,194 
 vi) Leased Line Expenditure  7,60,85,397  7,38,01,568 
 vii) Travelling and Conveyance  4,29,09,898  3,91,14,209 
 viii) Security Service Charges  46,40,74,910  40,81,61,014 
 ix) Amortisation of Investments  24,15,30,195  26,67,36,761 
 x) Professional Fees  19,95,12,201  19,54,16,553 
 xi) Bank Charges  60,23,40,027  41,01,75,733 
 xii) Digital Banking Expenses  55,60,18,991  51,08,21,168 
 xiii) Car Expenses  1,90,40,700  2,04,45,280 
 xiv) Housekeeping Charges  5,10,28,982  4,59,17,556 
 xv) Donations  3,51,63,000  2,73,55,000 
 xvi) Members’ Welfare Expenses  1,93,32,727  81,86,334 
 xvii) Staff Welfare Expenses  19,34,406  24,41,046 
 xviii) Sundries  81,93,40,993  79,47,10,063 

3,97,25,53,565 3,60,27,58,148
12) Bad Debts Written Off 2,19,20,44,411 28,38,91,601
13) Provisions :
 i) Contingent Provision against Depreciation in Investments 0 21,48,79,270
 ii) Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve  36,67,63,964 3,08,58,17,355
 iii) Reserve for Restructured Assets  44,71,000 3,60,45,000
 iv) Contingent Provision Against Standard Assets  8,90,00,000 37,20,39,000
 v) Floating Provision for Advances - Refer Note 13(g)  1,25,00,00,000 0

 1,71,02,34,964 3,70,87,80,625
14) Profit before Tax & Exceptional Items 7,01,64,41,290 5,22,33,17,393
15) Exceptional Items 0 32,50,00,000
16) Profit before Tax 7,01,64,41,290 4,89,83,17,393
17) Income-Tax Expenses :
 i) Current Tax  1,63,00,00,000 1,88,00,00,000
 ii) Deferred Tax  35,65,89,874 (49,86,35,549)

1,98,65,89,874  1,38,13,64,451  
18) Net Profit after Tax 5,02,98,51,416 3,51,69,52,942
 Total 47,48,61,47,997 40,01,56,16,782
1) Net Profit carried to Balance Sheet 5,02,98,51,416 3,55,49,35,322
 Total 5,02,98,51,416 3,55,49,35,322

As per our report of even date
For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101851W 

sd/-
(Abhay V Kamat)
Partner
Membership No. 39585 
Mumbai : May 24, 2024

sd/-
(Sanat Ulhas Chitale)
Partner
Membership No. 143700
Mumbai : May 24, 2024
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(Amount in `)
INCOME  Current Year

31.03.2024 
Previous Year

31.03.2023
1) Interest & Discount  39,60,44,94,562 34,16,53,81,119

2) Commission  95,58,35,883 80,39,87,945

3) Exchange and Brokerage  39,76,03,902 71,30,82,912

4) Profit on Sale of Securities (Net)  85,22,09,195 52,13,91,543

5) Other Receipts
 i) Processing Fees       59,70,46,119  59,90,24,950 
 ii) Service Charges   88,34,11,503  80,32,35,551 
 iii) Profit on Sale of Assets(Net)  17,44,792  37,10,098 
 iv) Digital Banking Income  49,39,01,358  41,65,68,566 
 v) Miscellaneous Income  22,55,59,802  31,24,66,308 
 vi) Dividend    81,824  1,30,241 

 2,20,17,45,398  2,13,51,35,714 

6) Excess Provision of earlier years written back  5,57,11,646 1,89,50,254

7) Bad Debts earlier written off, now recovered  36,40,51,846 1,31,64,89,291

8)  Reversal of BDDR on Sale of  ARC  48,23,95,450 0

9)  Excess Provision for Depreciation in Investments 
reversed

 21,16,03,516 0

10)  Provision towards a/c under Covid Framework 
reversed

 7,89,59,188  5,73,06,403 

11)  Transfer from Contingent Provision Against Standard 
Assets

 8,94,93,000 0

12) Transfer from Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve  2,19,20,44,411 28,38,91,601

 Total 47,48,61,47,997 40,01,56,16,782
1) Transfer from Provision for Public Charitable &  

Co-operative Purpose 
0 2,73,55,000

2) Transfer from Members’ Welfare Fund 0 81,86,334
3) Transfer from Staff Welfare Fund 0 24,41,046
 Total 5,02,98,51,416 3,55,49,35,322

sd/-
A. A. Patil 

Managing Director         
& CEO                                                              

sd/-
S. N. Sawaikar

Director

sd/-
K. V. Rangnekar

Director

sd/-
S. K. Sakhalkar
 Vice Chairman

sd/-
G. E. Thakur

Chairman

Mumbai : May 24, 2024
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
SCHEDULE 1 - CAPITAL

(Amount in `)
 Current Year

31.03.2024
Previous Year

31.03.2023
i) Authorised Capital :

100,00,00,000 Shares of ` 10/- each  10,00,00,00,000  10,00,00,00,000 
(Previous Year: 100,00,00,000 shares )
Subscribed Capital :  3,14,30,83,400  2,90,55,20,050 
31,43,08,340  Shares of ` 10/- each
(Previous Year: 29,05,52,005 shares of ` 10/- each)
Amount Called up:  3,14,30,83,400  2,90,55,20,050 
31,43,08,340 Shares of ` 10/- each
(Previous Year: 29,05,52,005 shares of ` 10/- each)
Of the above held by :   
a)  Individuals*  3,14,30,83,400  2,90,55,20,050
b) Co-operative institutions 0 0
c)  State Government 0 0

ii) Preference Share Capital
5,44,44,500 Preference Shares of ` 10/- each  54,44,45,000  54,44,45,000 
(Previous Year:  5,44,44,500 Preference Shares of ` 10/- each)
*Under the item “individuals”  include shares held by the the institutions 
other than co-operative institutions and state governent are included as 
per The Banking Regulation Act,1949.

Total  3,68,75,28,400  3,44,99,65,050 
    

SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVE FUND & OTHER RESERVES    

(Amount in `)
 Current Year

31.03.2024
Previous Year

31.03.2023
i) Statutory Reserve  11,46,81,93,120  10,58,55,42,720 
ii) Building Fund  2,52,90,93,933  2,52,90,93,933 
iii) Dividend Equalisation Fund 0 0
iv) Special Bad Debts Reserve 0 0
v) Bad & Doubtful Debts Reserve  9,61,71,31,227  11,93,12,60,176 
vi) Floating Provision for Advances - Refer Note 13(g)  1,25,00,00,000 0
vii) Investment Fluctuation Reserve  4,50,35,00,710  4,00,35,00,710 
viii) Other Funds and Reserve:

a) Restructured Assets Reserve  12,75,16,000  12,30,45,000 
b) Contingency Reserve  4,15,50,91,450  3,80,33,95,950 
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(Amount in `)
 Current Year

31.03.2024
Previous Year

31.03.2023
c) Contingent provision against Standard Assets  1,52,27,46,000  1,52,32,39,000 
d) Members’ Welfare Fund  13,91,63,666  13,41,63,666 
e) Net Open Foreign Currency Position Reserve  2,00,00,000  2,00,00,000 
f) General Reserve  5,93,27,45,978  4,99,47,95,794 
g) Revaluation Reserve  6,50,57,32,747  6,90,46,86,965 
h) Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of I.Tax Act,1961  2,55,75,50,000  2,26,28,00,000 
i)  Provision for Restructuring other loans  54,29,27,805  57,88,12,477 
j) Provision for Restructuring MSME (Covid Framework)  22,15,87,385  26,46,61,901 
k) Contingent Provision against Depreciation in Investments  32,75,754  21,48,79,270 
l) Provision for Public Charitable & Co-operative Purpose  19,68,49,431  16,16,79,879 
m) Staff Welfare Fund  1,64,65,072  1,54,65,072 

Total  51,30,95,70,278  50,05,10,22,513 

SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS & OTHER ACCOUNTS    

(Amount in `)
 Current Year

31.03.2024
Previous Year

31.03.2023
i) Fixed Deposits :

a) Individuals*  2,57,93,63,71,435  2,30,30,32,56,421 
b) Central Co-op. Banks  51,60,182  51,44,697 
c) Other Societies  88,10,52,12,532  74,93,84,98,595 

(i)  3,46,04,67,44,149  3,05,24,68,99,713 
ii) Savings Bank Deposits :

a) Individuals*  1,05,44,93,20,103  1,00,59,71,51,974 
b) Central Co-op. Banks 0 0
c) Other Societies  7,76,20,68,195  6,80,21,83,548 

(ii)  1,13,21,13,88,298  1,07,39,93,35,522 
iii) Current Deposits :

a) Individuals*  33,60,48,84,218  31,05,02,77,502 
b) Central Co-op.Banks  1,88,56,252  2,09,85,767 
c) Other Societies  1,69,12,55,424  1,30,00,94,485 

(iii)  35,31,49,95,894  32,37,13,57,754 
*Under the item “individuals” deposits to institutions other than  
co-operative Banks and Societies are included as per The Banking 
Regulation Act,1949.

Total (i+ii+iii) 4,94,57,31,28,341 4,45,01,75,92,989
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SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS      

(Amount in `)
 Current Year

31.03.2024
Previous Year

31.03.2023
i) From the Reserve Bank of India / State / Central Co-op Bank 0 0

a)  Short Term Loans, Cash Credits and Overdrafts of which secured 
against -

 A) Government and Other Approved Securities
 B) Other Tangible Securities
b) Medium -term loans of which secured against- 0 0
 A) Government and other approved securities
 B) Other Tangible securities
c) Long Term Loans of which secured against-  0   0
 A) Government and other approved securities
 B) Other Tangible securities

ii) From the State Bank of India 0 0
iii) From the State Government 0 0
iv) Loans from other sources (source and securities to be specified)

a) RBI Repo (LAF) 0 0
b) Repo Borrowings  2,02,14,95,167  1,21,33,63,856 
c) Repo Borrowing under TREPS (TRIPARTY) 0  4,98,71,68,015 
d) Borrowing from Banks 0 0
e) Long Term Subordinated Bonds  16,24,57,25,000  15,91,61,33,000 

Total  18,26,72,20,167  22,11,66,64,871 

SCHEDULE 5 - OTHER LIABILITIES     
(Amount in `)

 Current Year
31.03.2024

Previous Year
31.03.2023

i) Bills Payable     63,49,78,213  1,02,86,15,435 
ii) Unclaimed Dividend     25,50,05,684  17,92,22,237 
iii) Recovery Suspense  19,24,93,239  19,90,84,876 
iv) Provision  for  Staff Pension  45,70,90,345  41,31,73,268 
v) Discount received in advance on bills  4,29,83,056  4,42,73,707 
vi)  Credit balance in Bank Account  1,30,54,02,299  83,77,17,771 
vii) Provision for Staff Gratuity  5,18,01,684  4,28,66,098 
viii) Provision for Taxation  11,28,08,56,259  9,65,08,56,259 
ix) Education Fund Payable 0  30,67,13,322 
x)  Provision for Leave Encashment  8,44,42,586  -   
xi) Other Payable  7,10,29,19,529  7,71,18,72,640 

Total  21,40,79,72,894  20,41,43,95,613 
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SCHEDULE 6 - PROFIT & LOSS     

(Amount in `)
 Current Year

31.03.2024
Previous Year

31.03.2023
Profit as per last Balance Sheet (a)  3,56,36,27,913  2,76,22,93,391 
Less : Appropriations of profit for the year 2022-23
 Reserve Fund  87,92,38,500  68,75,56,500 
 Dividend  41,16,35,000  50,88,50,000 
 Dividend on Preference Shares  5,71,66,800  5,71,66,800 
 Public Charitable & Co-operative Purpose  3,51,69,550  2,75,02,500 
 Provision for Staff Welfare  10,00,000  10,00,000 
 Members’ Welfare Fund  50,00,000  50,00,000 
 Ex-gratia to Employees  34,10,00,000  33,40,00,000 
 Education fund  3,51,69,550  2,75,02,500 
 Contingency Reserve  35,16,95,500  27,50,22,500 
 Investment Fluctuation  Reserve  50,00,00,000  50,00,00,000 
 Special Reserve  29,47,50,000  18,00,00,000 
 General  Reserve  64,50,00,000  15,00,00,000 

 (b)  3,55,68,24,900  2,75,36,00,800 
 (a)-(b)  68,03,013  86,92,591 

 Add : Profit for the year as per Profit & Loss Account  5,02,98,51,416  3,55,49,35,322 
Total  5,03,66,54,429  3,56,36,27,913 

SCHEDULE 7 - CASH :    
(Amount in `)

 Current Year
31.03.2024

Previous Year
31.03.2023

i) Cash In hand  2,42,96,10,259  2,48,45,53,530 
ii) Cash with Reserve Bank of India  21,90,59,74,361  21,60,41,05,271 
iii) Cash with State Bank of India  1,89,21,894  1,08,22,288 
iv) Cash with State Co-operative Banks  47,704  47,704 
v) Cash with Central Co-operative Banks  12,45,18,687  7,84,28,460 

Total  24,47,90,72,905  24,17,79,57,253 
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SCHEDULE 8 - BALANCE WITH OTHER BANKS    
(Amount in `)

 Current Year
31.03.2024

Previous Year
31.03.2023

i) Current Deposits
 (Including ` 22.56 crore with Banks in Foreign Countries. (Previous Year:  

` 312.13 crore))

 3,97,23,87,337  6,52,10,22,877 

ii) Savings Bank Deposits 0 0
iii) Fixed  Deposits 
 (Including ` 33.02 crore pledged for securing funded/non-funded facilities 

and  treasury operations (P.Y. ` 33.23 crore))

 21,48,29,63,284  34,02,41,407 

Total  25,45,53,50,621  6,86,12,64,284 

SCHEDULE 9 - INVESTMENTS    
(Amount in `)

 Current Year
31.03.2024

Previous Year
31.03.2023

i) a) In Central and State Government Securities (at book value)  1,29,17,22,04,635  1,07,51,35,32,186 
 Face Value - ` 12873.54 crore (Previous Year ` 10673.47 crore)    
 Market Value - ` 12577.81 crore (Previous Year ` 10235.80 crore)
 (including ` 2196.80 crore pledged for Treasury operations  

(P.Y. ` 4145.41 crore)

b)  Reserve Fund Investments
 In Central / State Govt. Securities  11,46,86,80,373  10,58,55,79,623 
 Face Value - ` 1149.94  crore (Previous Year ` 1061.28 crore)
 Market Value - ` 1086.55  crore (Previous Year ` 982.14 crore)
c)  Members’ Welfare Fund Investments
 In Central / State Govt. Securities  13,93,96,532  14,23,71,199 
 Face Value - ` 13.98 crore (Previous Year ` 14.28 crore)
 Market Value - ` 13.93 crore (Previous Year ` 14.21 crore)

ii) Other trustee Securities 0 0
iii) Shares in Co-operative Institutions (Other than item (v) below)  22,58,518  22,58,518 
iv) Bonds  Issued by Public Sector Units  1,99,63,80,500  7,05,49,18,086 
v) Other Investments:

Bonds  Issued by Public Sector Banks  60,00,00,000  35,00,00,000 
Bonds  Issued by Other Institutions  2,73,78,32,750  1,94,94,97,250 
Bonds of All India Financial Institutions  14,75,88,53,625  5,82,85,80,200 
Shares of  Limited Company  15,30,04,306  30,04,306 
Units of  Mutual Funds 0  74,99,62,502 
Certificate of Deposit  15,67,51,60,167  24,22,87,27,622 
Commercial Paper  1,18,12,77,440 0

Total  1,77,88,50,48,846  1,58,40,84,31,492 
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SCHEDULE 10 - ADVANCES  :    
(Amount in `)

 Current Year
31.03.2024

Previous Year
31.03.2023

   I) Short Term Loans, Cash Credit,
Overdrafts & Bills Discounted
i. Of which secured against :
 a) Government & Other approved Securities  6,46,16,903  5,01,63,745 
 b) Other Tangible Securities  1,21,78,22,18,020  1,15,57,82,49,381 
ii. Personal Advances  2,17,94,51,873  2,52,94,42,054 

(I)  1,24,02,62,86,796  1,18,15,78,55,180 
Of the Advances, amount due from individuals*  1,21,37,63,29,521  1,14,88,50,65,050 
Of the Advances, amount Overdue  1,09,75,31,003  81,27,92,990 
Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery  3,88,19,65,896  5,32,33,68,022 

II) Medium Term Advances
i. Of which secured against :
 a) Government & Other approved Securities  25,75,306  55,93,622 

 b) Other Tangible Securities  36,28,93,20,257  36,18,42,90,351 
ii. Personal Advances  1,06,84,61,708  1,86,87,19,246 

(II)  37,36,03,57,271 38,05,86,03,219
Of the Advances, amount due from individuals*  37,35,52,35,641  37,98,03,12,941 
Of the Advances, amount Overdue  13,33,33,770  11,88,38,081 
Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery  2,18,30,00,747  3,36,61,91,525 

III) Long Term Advances
i. Of which secured against :
       a) Government & Other approved Securities  71,36,669  44,04,085 
       b) Other Tangible Securities  1,64,08,31,05,375  1,54,17,09,72,892 
ii. Personal Advances  19,77,55,717  17,94,93,119 

(III)  1,64,28,79,97,761  1,54,35,48,70,096 
Of the Advances, amount due from individuals*  1,64,27,10,11,505  1,54,33,62,43,200 
Of the Advances, amount Overdue  41,04,25,017  40,92,71,469 
Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery  3,30,98,83,619  3,03,94,85,150 
*Under the item “individuals” advances to institutions other than  
co-operative Banks and Societies are included as per The Banking 
Regulation Act,1949..

Total (I+II+III) 3,25,67,46,41,828 3,10,57,13,28,495
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SCHEDULE 11 - FIXED ASSETS:    

(Amount in `)
 Current Year

31.03.2024
Previous Year

31.03.2023
I) PREMISES 

i) LEASEHOLD LAND
Cost as at the beginning of the year  23,97,07,297  23,97,07,297 
Add : Revaluation 0 0

(a)  23,97,07,297  23,97,07,297 
Less: Amortisation
Amortisation upto last year  (1,20,05,916)  (84,58,468)
Amortisation  for current year  (2,06,922)  (2,06,922)
Amortisation  on Revalued Amount  (33,40,526)  (33,40,526)

(b)  (1,55,53,364)  (1,20,05,916)
Total (a-b)  22,41,53,933  22,77,01,381 

ii) PREMISES (including freehold land)
Cost as at the beginning of the year  11,05,89,09,764  11,05,89,09,764 
Add : Revaluation 0 0
Add : Additions during the year  4,84,600 0
Less : Sales/Adjustment during the year  (19,79,56,846) 0

(a)  10,86,14,37,518  11,05,89,09,764 
Less : Depreciation
Depreciation upto last year  (2,85,08,59,073)  (2,57,73,75,232)
Depreciation for current year  (3,97,30,714)  (4,10,65,572)
Depreciation on Revalued Amount  (22,14,48,147)  (23,24,18,269)
Depreciation on sales 0 0

(b)  (3,11,20,37,934)  (2,85,08,59,073)
Add: Premises Under Redevelopment (c)  2,37,91,301 0

Total (a-b+c)  7,77,31,90,885  8,20,80,50,691 
iii) LEASEHOLD  IMPROVEMENT 

Cost as at the beginning of the year  7,14,29,313  6,28,78,065 
Add :  Additions during the year  2,02,50,319  85,51,248 

 9,16,79,632  7,14,29,313 
Less : Amortisation
Amortisation upto last year  (5,77,54,055)  (5,36,96,831)
Amortisation for current year  (58,20,680)  (40,57,224)

Total  2,81,04,897  1,36,75,258 
II) FURNITURE & FIXTURE

Cost as at the beginning of the year  71,52,53,246  68,99,62,684 
Add : Additions during the year  4,67,93,211  3,39,90,823 
Less : Sold during the year  (1,25,05,357)  (87,00,261)

(a)  74,95,41,100  71,52,53,246 
Less : Depreciation upto last year  (62,75,02,150)  (60,20,48,726)
Depreciation for current year  (3,76,38,038)  (3,34,55,169)

                Depreciation on sales  1,16,89,507  80,01,745 
(b)  (65,34,50,681)  (62,75,02,150)

Total (a-b)  9,60,90,419  8,77,51,096 
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(Amount in `)
 Current Year

31.03.2024
Previous Year

31.03.2023
III) OTHER ASSETS

i)  PLANT & MACHINERY
 Cost as at the beginning of the year  49,97,93,820  48,14,38,642 
 Add: Additions during the year  4,72,33,105  3,79,57,700 
 Less : Sold during the year  (1,78,58,779)  (1,96,02,522)

(a)  52,91,68,146  49,97,93,820 
 Less: Depreciation upto last year  (40,77,43,971)  (39,08,72,813)
 Depreciation for current year  (3,94,15,095)  (3,54,67,779)
 Depreciation on sales  1,69,63,044  1,85,96,621 

(b)  (43,01,96,022)  (40,77,43,971)
Total (a-b)  9,89,72,124  9,20,49,849 

ii)  COMPUTERS 
 Cost as at the beginning of the year  1,02,54,97,687  81,52,28,484 
 Add : Additions during the year  14,00,85,624  24,54,58,281 
 Less : Sold during the year / Adjustments  (1,42,22,324)  (3,51,89,078)

(a)  1,15,13,60,987  1,02,54,97,687 
     Less : Depreciation upto last year  (77,30,30,530)  (63,13,35,309)
 Depreciation for current year  (16,78,00,763)  (17,52,71,485)
 Depreciation on sales-Adjustments  1,42,21,239  3,35,76,264 

(b)  (92,66,10,054)  (77,30,30,530)
Total (a-b)  22,47,50,933  25,24,67,157 

iii) MOTOR CARS 
 Cost as at the beginning of the year  11,02,54,986  10,61,85,827 
     Add  : Additions during the year 0  57,47,466 
     Less : Sold during the year  (7,50,812)  (16,78,307)

(a)  10,95,04,174  11,02,54,986 
     Less : Depreciation upto last year  (9,17,72,644)  (8,55,06,764)
 Depreciation for current year  (55,18,169)  (79,20,956)
 Depreciation on sales  6,62,478  16,55,076 

(b)  (9,66,28,335)  (9,17,72,644)
Total (a-b)  1,28,75,839  1,84,82,342 

IV) CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (PREMISES)  93,57,48,766  51,26,38,035 
V) CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (SOFTWARE)  10,59,56,686  11,78,52,912 

Grand Total (I to V)  9,49,98,44,482  9,53,06,68,721 
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SCHEDULE 12 - OTHER ASSETS    
(Amount in `)

 Current Year
31.03.2024

Previous Year
31.03.2023

i) Deposit for Services  41,61,02,584  39,96,06,150 
ii) Rent Receivable  4,93,369  4,75,651 
iii) Rent on Lockers in Arrears  32,47,020  35,48,475 
iv) Stamps on Hand  16,80,098  27,36,325 
v) Prepaid Expenses  13,88,23,168  11,58,40,316 
vi) Deferred Tax Asset  1,99,85,54,407  2,35,51,44,281 
vii) Income Tax paid  11,46,53,59,874  9,81,73,16,685 
viii) Margin on Guarantee Fund (CCIL)  42,44,15,000  83,15,60,000 
ix) Other dues  4,36,77,00,438  4,42,53,97,952 

Total  18,81,63,75,958  17,95,16,25,835 

SCHEDULE 13 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES   
(Amount in `)

 Current Year
31.03.2024

Previous Year
31.03.2023

i)  Letters  of Credit                     6,83,02,92,356  8,08,87,57,492 
ii)  Guarantees                           6,64,77,56,196  5,80,39,33,285 
iii)  Forward Sale/Purchase Contracts          28,14,55,39,607  42,31,12,47,359 
iv)  Unclaimed Liabilities under DEAF Scheme  1,71,21,86,839  1,68,90,41,002 

Total  43,33,57,74,998  57,89,29,79,138 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET  
AS AT MARCH 31, 2024 AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024.

I. Overview: 

 1. Background: 

  Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd was 
incorporated in 1918 and provides a 
complete suite of banking and financial 
services including retail banking, wholesale 
banking and treasury operations. The Bank is 
primarily governed by the Banking Regulation 
Act, 1949 and the Multistate Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002. 

 2. Basis of preparation:

  The financial statements have been 
prepared and presented under the historical 
cost convention on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with the generally 
accepted accounting principles in India, 
unless otherwise stated, and comply with 
the statutory requirements prescribed under 
the Banking Regulation Act,1949, The Multi 
State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, 
the circulars, notifications, guidelines and 
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of 
India from time to time and the Accounting 
Standards (AS) issued by The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and 
current practices prevalent within the banking 
industry in India. Accounting policies applied 
have been consistent with the previous year 
except otherwise stated.

 3. Use of estimates:

  The preparation of the financial statements 
in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles in India requires 
the Management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements, revenues, and 

expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
The Management believes that the estimates 
used in the preparation of the financial 
statements are prudent and reasonable. Any 
revisions to the accounting estimates are 
recognized prospectively in the current and 
future periods. 

II. Significant Accounting Policies:

 1. Accounting Convention:

  The financial statements are drawn 
in accordance with the historical cost 
convention (as modified by revaluation of 
premises) and on “Going Concern” basis.

 2. Foreign currency transactions:

  2.1  All outstanding forward and Spot 
exchange contract (excluding funding 
Swaps) are marked to market on a daily 
basis at exchange rates published by 
M/s. Refinitiv and at FEDAI notified rates 
for month-end. In case of funding swaps, 
the accrual in respect of swap difference 
is undertaken & accounted for on a daily 
basis. 

  2.2 All outstanding forward exchange 
contracts including spot contracts are 
marked-to-market (MTM) on daily basis 
at Present Value (PV) by discounting the 
forward value till spot date and converting 
the foreign currency amount using the 
respective spot rate as published by 
M/s. Refinitiv on a daily basis and spot 
rates notified by Foreign Exchange 
Dealers’ Association of India (FEDAI) at 
month-end. MTM gain/loss is accounted 
for appropriately in the Profit & Loss  
Account.
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  2.3 Contingent Liabilities on account of 
forward exchange contracts, guarantees, 
acceptances, endorsements, and other 
obligations denominated in foreign 
currencies are disclosed at closing 
exchange rates published by M/s. 
Refinitiv on daily basis and FEDAI notified 
rates at month-end.

  2.4 The Bank has no branches outside India.

 3. Investments:

  3.1 Categorization of investments:

   In accordance with guidelines issued by 
RBI, the Bank classifies its investment 
portfolio into the following three 
categories:

   i) ‘Held to Maturity’ - Securities 
acquired by the Bank with the 
intention to hold till maturity.

   ii) ‘Held for Trading’ - Securities 
acquired by the Bank with the 
intention to trade.

   iii) ‘Available for Sale’ – Securities which 
do not fall within the above two 
categories are classified as ‘Available 
for Sale’.

  3.2 Classification of Investments:

   For the purpose of disclosure in the 
Balance Sheet, Investments are classified 
as required under the Banking Regulation 
Act, 1949 and RBI guidelines as follows:

   Government Securities, Other Trustee 
Securities, Shares of co-operative 
institutions, Shares of limited companies, 
PSU Bonds, Bonds of All India Financial 
Institutions, Security Receipts and other 
Investments.

  3.3 Shifting of investments between 
categories:

   Shifting of investments between different 
categories i.e., Held to Maturity, Held 

for Trading and Available for Sale is 
undertaken as per extant RBI guidelines. 
Such transfer is done at the acquisition 
cost / book-value / market-value on 
the date of transfer, as per para no. 8 of 
Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India 
(Classification, Valuation and Operation 
of Investment Portfolio of Primary 
(Urban) Co-operative Banks) Directions, 
2023 dated 1st April 2023.

  3.4 Valuation of Investments:

   (i) ‘Held to Maturity’ – These 
investments are carried at their 
acquisition cost less amortization. 
Any premium on acquisition is 
amortised over the period remaining 
to maturity. 

   (ii) ‘Held for Trading’ – The individual 
scrip in the HFT category is marked 
to market at monthly intervals or 
at more frequent intervals. The 
net resultant depreciation in each 
classification (as mentioned in Para 
3.2 above) is recognized in the Profit 
and Loss Account. Net appreciation, 
if any, is ignored. 

   (iii) ‘Available for Sale’ – The individual 
scrip in the AFS category is marked 
to market at quarterly or at more 
frequent intervals. The net resultant 
depreciation in each classification 
(as mentioned in Para 3.2 above) 
is recognized in the Profit and Loss 
Account. Net appreciation, if any, is 
ignored.

   (iv) Market value of Government 
Securities (excluding Treasury 
Bills) is determined based on the 
prices periodically declared by 
FBIL for valuation at year-end. 
In case of unquoted Government 
Securities, market price or fair 
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value is determined as per the rates 
published by FBIL. 

   (v) Market value of other approved 
securities is determined based on the 
yield curve and spreads provided by 
FBIL / FIMMDA.

   (vi) Urban Co-operative banks are 
prohibited from direct investment 
in Equity shares. As regards, 
investment in shares of co-operative 
institutions, Bank is guided by the 
RBI Master Direction – Reserve Bank 
of India (Classification, Valuation and 
Operation of Investment Portfolio of 
Primary (Urban) Co-operative Banks) 
Directions, 2023 dated 1st April 2023. 

   (vii) Urban Co-operative Banks shall have 
the option to invest in equity shares 
of Market Infrastructure Companies 
(MICs) for acquiring memberships. 
The MICs eligible for investments 
by UCBs are Clearing Corporation 
of India Ltd., National Payments 
Corporation of India, and Society 
for Worldwide Interbank Financial 
Telecommunication (SWIFT) and 
in the equity shares of Umbrella 
Organization of UCB sector for 
acquiring membership. These are 
valued at cost. 

   (viii) Treasury Bills, Certificate of 
Deposit & Commercial Papers being 
discounted instruments, are valued 
at carrying cost which includes 
discount accrued over the period to 
maturity.

   (ix)  In case of bonds & debentures where 
interest is not received regularly 
(i.e., overdue beyond 90 days), the 
valuation is in accordance with 
prudential norms as prescribed by 
RBI.

   (x)  Investments in quoted debt/money 
market Mutual Fund Units are valued 
as per stock exchange quotations. 
Investments in unquoted Mutual 
Fund Units are valued on the basis of 
the latest re-purchase price declared 
by the Mutual Funds in respect of 
each particular Scheme. In case of 
funds with a lock-in period, or where 
repurchase price/market quote is not 
available, units could be valued at 
Net Asset Value (NAV). If NAV is not 
available, then these could be valued 
at cost, till the end of the lock-in 
period.

   (xi)  Security Receipts – 

    a)  Investment in Security Receipts 
(SRs) are valued as per the 
NAV declared by the issuing 
Asset Reconstruction Company 
(ARC) or net book value of loans 
transferred, whichever is lower.

    b)  Further, in case of investment 
in SRs issued against loans 
transferred by it is more than 10 
percent of all SRs issued against 
the transferred asset, then the 
valuation of the SRs on the books 
of the transferor is lower of the 
following:

     1.  value arrived at in terms of 
clause (xi) a) above; and

     2.  face value of the SRs reduced 
by the notional provisioning 
rate applicable if the loans 
had continued on the books 
of the transferor.

   (xii)  Broken period interest on debt 
instruments is treated as a revenue 
item. Brokerage, commission, etc. 
pertaining to investments paid at the 
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time of acquisition is charged to P&L 
Account.

   (xiii)  Interest on non-performing 
investments is not recognized in 
the Profit and Loss Account until 
received.

  3.5 Disposal of Investments:

   Investments classified under the HTM 
category: The Bank does not resort to sale 
of securities held in HTM category as per 
Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India 
(Classification, Valuation and Operation 
of Investment Portfolio of Primary 
(Urban) Co-operative Banks) Directions, 
2023 dated 1st April 2023. However, if due 
to liquidity stress, if securities from HTM 
portfolio are sold with prior approval 
of the Board of Directors on a specific 
rationale, Profit on sale of investments 
from HTM category is first taken to the 
Profit and Loss account and, thereafter, 
the amount of such profit is appropriated 
to ‘Capital Reserve’ from the net profit for 
the year after statutory appropriations. 
Loss on sale is recognized in the Profit 
and Loss account in the year of sale.

   Investments classified under the AFS and 
HFT categories: Realized gains/losses 
are recognized in the Profit and Loss 
Account

  3.6 Accounting for Repo/ Reverse Repo 
transactions (including transactions 
under the Liquidity Adjustment Facility 
(LAF) / Standing Deposit Facility with the 
RBI):

   The securities sold and purchased under 
Repo/ Reverse Repo are accounted as 
Collateralized Borrowing and Lending 
transactions. However, securities are 
transferred as in the case of normal 
outright sale/ purchase transactions and 
such movement of securities is reflected 

using the Repo/ Reverse Repo accounts 
and contra entries. The above entries 
are reversed on the date of maturity of 
Repo/ Reverse Repo transactions. Costs 
and revenue are accounted as interest 
expenditure/income. Balance in Repo 
account is classified under Schedule 
4 (Borrowings) and balance in Reverse 
Repo account is classified under Money at 
Call & Short Notice. Liquidity Adjustment 
Facility (LAF) / Standing Deposit Facility 
transactions are accounted for as per RBI 
guidelines.

 4. Provisioning for Advances and Overdue 
Interest Reserve:

  4.1 The classification of advances into 
Standard, Sub-standard, Doubtful and 
Loss assets as well as provision on non-
performing advances has been arrived 
at in accordance with the guidelines 
issued by RBI from time to time. In 
addition to this, a general provision on 
standard assets is made @ 0.40% of 
the outstanding amount on a portfolio 
basis except in case of direct advances 
to Agricultural and SME sector @ 0.25%, 
advances to Commercial Real Estate 
@ 1% and Commercial Real Estate- 
Residential House Sector @ 0.75%.

   In respect of restructured advances, 
including advances restructured 
under the COVID Regulatory package, 
adequate provisioning has been made 
in accordance with the RBI guidelines 
issued from time to time.

  4.2 The overdue interest in respect of non-
performing advances is shown separately 
under “Overdue Interest Reserve” as per 
the directives issued by RBI.

  4.3 As a prudent measure, the Bank shall set 
aside an amount by way of additional 
provision towards Standard Assets to 
provide for unforeseen circumstances 
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which might result in a Standard Asset 
turning into NPA. This additional provision 
shall be in the range of 10% to 50% of 
the recovery in the bad debts written off 
account received above ` 50 crore during 
the year in a single advance account. 
This additional provision may be utilized 
towards any provisioning requirement for 
standard assets in future.

  4.4 Floating Provision for Advances: 

   The Bank shall create a Floating 
Provision to increase resilience to 
withstand any kind of stress on the asset 
book of the Bank and also to mitigate 
the impact of provisioning requirements 
for contingencies under extraordinary 
circumstances, i.e., losses which do not 
arise in the normal course of business 
and are exceptional and non-recurring in 
nature.

   Floating Provision shall be created if the 
net profit before tax but after making 
mandatory provisions and adhoc 
provisions, to reach net NPA percentage 
zero; and such arrived net profit before 
tax should be more than 50% over the 
comparable previous year’s figure. 

   The maximum limit of Floating Provisions 
to be created in any year not to exceed 
50% of the Net Profit before tax for that 
year. 

   The usage of the Floating Provision for 
advances will be subject to approval of the 
Board of Directors and the Reserve Bank 
of India after the complete utilization of 
the adhoc provision for BDDR.

 5. Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period 
Items and Changes in Accounting Policies 
(AS 5):

  The net profit or loss for the period comprises 
the following components, each of which is 

disclosed on the face of the profit and loss 
account statement:

  (a) profit or loss from ordinary activities; and

  (b) extraordinary items.

  Extraordinary Items

  Extraordinary items are disclosed in the profit 
and loss account statement as a part of net 
profit or loss for the period. The nature and 
the amount of each extraordinary item is 
separately disclosed in the notes to profit 
and loss account statement in a manner that 
its impact on current profit or loss can be 
perceived.

  Prior Period Items

  The nature and amount of prior period items 
is separately disclosed in the profit and loss 
account statement in a manner that their 
impact on the current profit or loss can be 
perceived.

  Changes in Accounting Estimates

  As a result of the uncertainties inherent in 
business activities, many financial statement 
items cannot be measured with precision 
but can only be estimated. The estimation 
process involves judgments based on the 
latest information available. Estimates 
may be required, for example, of bad debts, 
inventory obsolescence or the useful lives of 
depreciable assets. The use of reasonable 
estimates is an essential part of the 
preparation of financial statements and does 
not undermine their reliability.

  Changes in Accounting Policies:

  Any change in an accounting policy which has 
a material effect is disclosed in the Notes to 
accounts. The impact of, and the adjustments 
resulting from, such change, if material, have 
been disclosed in the financial statements of 
the period in which such change is made, to 
reflect the effect of such change. Where the 
effect of such change is not ascertainable, 
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wholly or in part, the fact is appropriately 
indicated in the notes to accounts. If a 
change is made in the accounting policies 
which has no material effect on the financial 
statements for the current period, but which 
is reasonably expected to have a material 
effect in later periods, the fact of such change 
is appropriately disclosed in the period in 
which the change is adopted.

 6. Revenue Recognition (AS 9):

  6.1 Interest income is recognized on an 
accrual basis in accordance with AS–9, 
Revenue Recognition and RBI guidelines, 
except in case of interest income on non-
performing assets which is recognized on 
receipt basis as per income recognition 
and asset classification norms of RBI.

  6.2 Commission on guarantees and Letter of 
Credits (LCs) is recognized on a pro-rata 
basis over the period of the guarantee/
LC.

  6.3 Locker rent is accounted on an upfront 
basis at annual rests.

  6.4 Annual fees on credit and debit cards are 
recognized as and when due from the 
customers.

  6.5 Interest on Government Securities, 
debentures and other fixed income 
securities is recognized on an accrual 
basis. Income on discounted instruments 
is recognised over the tenor of the 
instrument on a straight-line basis.

  6.6 Other fees and commission income are 
recognized when due, where the Bank is 
reasonably certain of ultimate collection.

  6.7 Dividend income is recognized on an 
accrual basis provided the dividend has 
been declared by the Corporate Body in its 
Annual General Meeting and the owner’s 
right to receive payment is established. 

  6.8 Fees paid for purchase of Priority 
Sector Lending Certificates (‘PSLC’) are 
amortized on a straight-line basis over 
the tenor of the certificate as Priority 
Sector Lending Certificate Expenses

  6.9 Exchange income is recognized on 
realization.

  6.10 Income from distribution of insurance 
products is recognised on the basis of 
income received.

 7. Reward Points

  The Bank grants reward points in respect of 
credit cards subject to certain conditions. 
The Bank estimates the probable redemption 
of such loyalty/reward points on credit cards 
using an actuarial method at the Balance 
Sheet date by employing an independent 
actuary. The estimates include assumptions 
such as redemption and utilization. Provision 
for the said reward points is then made based 
on the actuarial valuation report as furnished 
by the said independent actuary.

 8. Property, Plant and Equipment (AS 10):

  8.1 Computers, Furniture & Fixtures, Plant 
& Machinery, Leasehold improvement, 
and Motor Cars are stated at cost less 
depreciation. 

   Premises (including Freehold Land): 
These are stated at the revalued amounts 
less depreciation. 

   Leasehold land is stated at revalued 
amounts less amortization over the lease 
period.

  8.2 The Bank has framed its own policy for 
the revaluation of immovable properties, 
which is duly approved by its Board of 
Directors. Revaluations are carried out 
by obtaining expert valuation reports by 
using applicable methods of valuation. 

   The increase in Net Book Value of the 
asset due to revaluation is credited to 
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the Revaluation Reserve Account without 
routing through the Profit and Loss 
Account. Depreciation on the revalued 
asset is charged to the Profit and Loss 
Account and an amount equivalent to the 
amount of depreciation on the revaluation 
is appropriated from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the General Reserve.

  8.3 Cost includes incidental expenses 
incurred on acquisition of assets. 

  8.4 Depreciation Rates:

   (i) Plant & Machinery, Furniture 
& Fixtures and Motor Cars are 
depreciated on written down value 
method @ 30% p.a. 

   (ii) Premises (excluding Freehold Land) 
will be depreciated on straight 
line method based on useful 
life of the asset (Useful life – 60 
years). Revalued Premises will be 
depreciated on straight line method 
over the residual / estimated life of 
the assets as assessed at the time of 
revaluation. 

   (iii) Lease improvement costs are 
amortized over the period of lease. 

   (iv) Leasehold Land is amortized over the 
period of lease.

   (v) Computers are depreciated on 
straight line method @ 33.33% as 
directed by RBI.

  8.5 Depreciation on fixed assets purchased 
during the year is charged for the entire 
year if 180 days or more have elapsed 
since its purchase; otherwise, it is 
charged at 50% of the normal rate. No 
depreciation is charged on fixed assets 
sold or written off during the year. 

  8.6 The additions to the Fixed Assets are 
net of GST Input Tax Credit to the extent 
availed by the Bank.

 9. Deposit for Services:

  The Deposit for Services like Telephone, 
Electricity, etc. paid to the concerned 
authorities is written off as expenditure in the 
year in which the relevant service connection 
is installed. 

 10. Employee Benefits (AS 15):

  10.1 Gratuity:

   The Bank provides gratuity to all 
employees. The benefit vests upon 
completion of five years of service and 
is in the form of lump sum payment to 
employees on resignation, retirement, 
death while in employment or on 
termination of employment, an amount 
equivalent to 15 days salary plus eligible 
allowances payable for each completed 
year of service, as per the Payment of 
Gratuity Act, 1972. The Bank makes 
contributions to funds administered by 
trustees and managed by the LIC of India.

   The defined gratuity benefit plans are 
valued by an independent actuary as 
at the Balance Sheet date, using the 
projected unit credit method as per 
the requirement of AS-15 “Employee 
Benefits”, to determine the present value 
of the defined benefit obligation and the 
related service costs. Under this method, 
the determination is based on actuarial 
calculations, which include assumptions 
about demographics, early retirement, 
salary increases and interest rates. 
Actuarial gain or loss is recognized in the 
Profit and loss account statement. 

  10.2 Provident fund:

   In accordance with law, all the employees 
of the Bank are entitled to receive 
benefits under the provident fund. Every 
employee contributes an amount, on 
a monthly basis, at a determined rate. 
The Bank contributes an equal amount. 
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This amount is transferred to the 
Provident Fund account managed by the 
Employees’ Provident Fund Trust.

   In the case merged banks i.e., erstwhile 
Maratha Mandir Co-op. Bank Ltd., 
erstwhile Mandvi Co-op. Bank Ltd., 
erstwhile South Indian Co-op. Bank 
Ltd., erstwhile Nashik Peoples Co-op. 
Bank Ltd., erstwhile Annasaheb Karale 
Janata Sahakari Bank Ltd., erstwhile 
Murgharajendra Sahakari Bank Ltd., and 
erstwhile Kolhapur Maratha Co-op. Bank 
Ltd, the Provident Fund contribution of 
employees of these merged banks and 
the employer’s contribution is transferred 
to RPFC, Bandra, Mumbai.

   The Bank’s contribution to Provident 
Fund is accounted for on the basis of 
contribution to the scheme.

  10.3 Leave Encashment:

   In respect of leave encashment liability, 
the Bank has obtained Insurance Policies 
with four different insurance companies. 
The shortfall, if any between projected 
benefit obligation and the fair value of 
plan assets as on 31st March is provided 
for and recognized as expense in the 
Profit and Loss Account. The liability 
of leave encashment is provided on the 
basis of actuarial valuation as at the 
Balance Sheet date and considered as 
defined benefit scheme. The actuarial 
valuation is carried out as per projected 
unit credit method.

  10.4 Pension and LTC:

   The liability towards Staff Pension is 
provided based on the actuarial valuation 
as at the Balance Sheet date and 
considered as defined benefit scheme. 
The actuarial valuation is carried out as 
per projected unit credit method. The 

LTC is paid to employees in their monthly 
salary proportionately w.e.f. January 
2024.

 11. Segment Reporting (AS 17):

  The Bank recognizes the Business Segment 
as the primary reporting segment and 
Geographical Segment as the secondary 
reporting segment, in accordance with RBI 
guidelines and in compliance with AS 17. 

  Business Segment is classified into (a) 
Treasury (b) Corporate and Wholesale 
Banking, (c) Retail Banking and (d) Other 
Banking Operations.

  Geographic Segments: The Bank operates 
only in India and hence the reporting consists 
only of domestic segment.

 12. Related Party Disclosures (AS 18):

  There are no related parties which require 
disclosure under AS 18 other than the Key 
Management Personnel. 

 13. Operating Leases (AS 19):

  Lease rental obligations in respect of assets 
taken on operating lease are charged to Profit 
and Loss Account on straight-line basis over 
the lease term. Initial direct costs are charged 
to Profit and Loss account.

 14. Earnings per Share (AS 20):

  Basic earnings per share is computed by 
dividing the net profit or loss for the year 
by the weighted average number of shares 
(excluding preference shares) outstanding 
during the year.

 15. Income-Tax (AS 22):

  15.1 Income tax expense is the aggregate 
amount of current tax liability and 
deferred tax recognized in the profit & 
loss account. Current year taxes are 
determined in accordance with the 
relevant provisions of Income Tax Act, 
1961 and considering the principles 
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set out in Income Computation and 
Disclosure Standards (‘ICDS’) to the 
extent applicable.

  15.2 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
recognized, subject to consideration 
of prudence, on timing difference, 
representing the difference between 
taxable income and accounting income 
that originated in one period and is 
capable of reversal in one or more 
subsequent periods. Deferred tax 
assets and Liabilities are measured 
using tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantially enacted 
by the Balance Sheet date. The impact 
of changes in the deferred tax assets 
and liabilities is recognized in the Profit 
and Loss Account. Deferred tax assets 
are recognized and re-assessed at 
each reporting date, based upon the 
Management’s judgement as to whether 
realization is considered as reasonably 
certain.

  15.3 Deferred tax assets are recognized on 
carry forward of unabsorbed depreciation 
and tax losses only if there is virtual 
certainty supported by convincing 
evidence that such deferred tax asset 
can be realized against future profits.

  16. Intangible Assets (AS 26): 

   Intangible assets consist of acquisition, 
development, amendments / 
modifications / customization in 
software applications, tools developed by 
the Bank. The Bank follows the principle 
of recognition and amortization in 
respect of computer software which has 
been customized for the Bank’s use and 
is expected to be in use for some time as 
per the Accounting Standard. All other 
computer software are amortized equally 
over the period of three years as per RBI 
guidelines.

 17. Impairment of Assets (AS 28):

  The Bank assesses at each Balance Sheet 
date whether there is any indication that an 
asset may be impaired. Impairment loss, if 
any, is recognized in the statement of Profit 
& Loss to the extent, the carrying amount 
of asset exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount.

 18. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets (AS 29):

   A provision is recognised when the Bank 
has a present obligation as a result of past 
event where it is probable that an outflow 
of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation, in respect of which a reliable 
estimate can be made. Provisions are not 
discounted to its present value and are 
determined based on best estimate required 
to settle the obligation on the Balance Sheet 
date. These are reviewed at each Balance 
Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates.

  When there is a possible or present obligation 
in respect of which the likelihood of outflow 
of resources is remote, no provision or 
disclosure is made.

  Contingent Assets are not recognised in the 
financial statements. However, contingent 
assets are assessed continually and if it is 
virtually certain that an inflow of economic 
benefits will arise, the asset and related 
income are recognised in the period in which 
the change occurs.

  Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when 
there is a possible obligation arising from 
a past event, the existence of which will be 
confirmed by occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events not 
within the control of the Bank or any present 
obligation arising from past event which is 
not recognized since it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the 
amount of such obligation cannot be made.
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III. Notes to Accounts: 
Disclosures as per Reserve Bank of India’s Master Direction on Financial Statements- Presentation and Disclosures::

1. Regulatory Capital

 1.1 Composition of Regulatory Capital:
(` in crores)

Sr 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

i) Paid up share capital and reserves. (net of deductions, if any) 3,414.08 3,023.75

ii) Other Tier 1 Capital 0.00 0.00

iii) Tier 1 capital (i + ii) 3,414.08 3,023.75

iv) *Tier 2 capital 1,936.25 1,580.30

v) Total capital (Tier 1+ Tier 2) 5,350.33 4,604.05

vi) Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) 30,959.92 28,762.61

vii) Paid-up share capital and reserves as percentage of RWAs 11.03% 10.51%

viii) Tier 1 Ratio (Tier 1 capital as a percentage of RWAs) 11.03% 10.51%

ix) Tier 2 Ratio (Tier 2 capital as a percentage of RWAs) 6.25% 5.50%

x) Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) 
(Total Capital as a percentage of RWAs)

17.28% 16.01%

xi) Percentage of the shareholding of Government of India Nil Nil

xii) Amount of paid-up equity capital raised during the year 31.75 33.12

xiii) Amount of non-equity Tier 1 Capital raised during the year, of which:

Perpetual non-cumulative preference shares Nil Nil

Perpetual debt Instrument Nil Nil

xiv) Amount of Tier 2 capital raised during the year, of which:

Perpetual non-cumulative preference shares, Nil Nil

Perpetual debt instruments Nil Nil

Long Term Subordinated Bonds 314.51 446.89

*includes Floating Provision for Advances - ` 125 crores

 1.2 Draw down from Reserves:

  The Bank has not undertaken any drawdown from reserves during the year ended March 31, 2024 as against an amount 
of ` 3.80 crores drawn down in the previous year ended March 31,2023. 

(` in crores)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Public, Charitable and Co-operative Purpose Nil 2.74
2 Members’ Welfare Fund Nil 0.82
3 Provision for Staff Welfare Nil 0.24

Total Nil 3.80
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2. Asset liability management:

 Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as on 31.03.2024 
 (` in crores)

 Day 1 2 to 7 
days

8 to 14 
days

15 to 30 
days

31 days to 
2 months

Over 2 
months and 
to 3 months

Over 3 
months 

and up to 6 
months

Over 6 
months and 
up to 1 year

Over 1 year 
and up to 3 

years

Over 3 years 
and up to 5 

years 

Over 5 years Total

Deposits 463.22 1234.69 708.82 1731.55 2084.53 2577.85 6277.11 7210.64 26746.84 391.55 80.52 49457.31
Advances 234.81 853.91 1059.80 514.33 718.31 671.61 893.80 1427.26 13329.59 3684.74 9179.29 32567.46
Investments 0.00 56.97 159.70 283.07 427.76 1180.63 325.23 1690.82 3384.76 1269.46 9010.12 17788.50
Borrowings 0.11 212.62 9.54 12.62 9.27 0.79 0.00 0.00 557.49 0.00 1024.28 1826.72
Foreign Currency 
Assets

151.87 562.99 62.20 523.58 683.14 580.06 337.08 294.59 682.33 51.56 5713.44 9642.84

Foreign Currency 
Liabilities

3.86 1612.73 23.49 502.18 641.18 539.27 284.65 312.69 51.96 1.29 5669.54 9642.84

 Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as on 31.03.2023
 ( ` in crores)

 Day 1 2 to 7 
days

8 to 14 
days

15 to 30 
days

31 days to 
2 months

Over 2 
months and 
to 3 months

Over 3 
months 

and up to 6 
months

Over 6 
months and 
up to 1 year

Over 1 year 
and up to 3 

years

Over 3 years 
and up to 5 

years 

Over 5 years Total

Deposits 380.53 1029.36 739.21 1113.19 2087.91 1319.66 3483.99 7605.20 25817.01 846.09 79.61 44501.76
Advances 163.22 675.25 775.79 365.48 750.95 710.68 748.21 1222.55 12811.97 3833.52 8999.50 31057.13
Investments 0.00 274.86 174.63 152.61 584.31 742.26 1134.22 1727.50 1757.69 1384.82 7907.96 15840.84
Borrowings 0.91 620.05 0.00 1.31 20.33 19.38 35.76 203.95 287.50 312.70 709.77 2211.67
Foreign Currency 
Assets

22.69 126.83 22.91 26.64 75.52 67.74 52.04 12.16 887.17 109.27 10400.76 11804.72

Foreign Currency 
Liabilities

2.71 1368.09 2.07 0.39 0.37 0.92 22.79 14.38 76.81 1.38 10314.82 11804.72

3. Investments

 3.1 Composition of Investment Portfolio as at 31.03.2024:
( ` in crores)

Investments in India 
Government 

Securities
Other 

Approved 
Securities

Shares Debentures 
and Bonds

Subsidiaries 
and/or joint 

ventures

Others Total 
investments 

in India
Held to Maturity
Gross 11,224.41 0.00 0.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,224.67

Less: Provision for non-
performing investments (NPI)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net 11,224.41 0.00 0.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,224.67
Available for Sale
Gross 2,853.62 0.00 15.27 2,009.31 0.00 1,685.64 6,563.84
Less: Provision for 
depreciation and NPI

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.33 0.00 0.00 0.33

Net 2,853.62 0.00 15.27 2,008.98 0.00 1,685.64 6,563.51
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( ` in crores)
Investments in India 

Government 
Securities

Other 
Approved 

Securities

Shares Debentures 
and Bonds

Subsidiaries 
and/or joint 

ventures

Others Total 
investments 

in India
Held for Trading
Gross 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Less: Provision for 
depreciation and NPI

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Investments 14,078.03 0.00 15.53 2,009.31 0.00 1,685.64 17,788.51
Less: Provision for non-
performing investments

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Less: Provision for 
depreciation and NPI

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.33 0.00 0.00 0.33

Net 14,078.03 0.00 15.53 2,008.98 0.00 1,685.64 17788.18
                 

 Composition of Investment Portfolio as at 31.03.2023:                        

( ` in crores)

Investments in India 

Government 
Securities

Other 
Approved 

Securities

Shares Debentures 
and Bonds

Subsidiaries 
and/or joint 

ventures

Others Total 
investments 

in India

Held to Maturity

Gross 10,296.47 0.00 0.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,296.73

Less: Provision for non-
performing investments (NPI)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net 10,296.47 0.00 0.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,296.73

Available for Sale

Gross 1,527.68 0.00 0.27 1,518.30 0.00 2,497.87 5,544.11

Less: Provision for 
depreciation and NPI

4.08 0.00 0.00 17.41 0.00 0.00 21.49

Net 1,523.60 0.00 0.27 1,500.89 0.00 2,497.87 5,522.62

Held for Trading
Gross 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Less: Provision for 
depreciation and NPI

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Investments 11,824.15 0.00 0.53 1,518.30 0.00 2,497.87 15,840.84
Less: Provision for non-
performing investments

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Less: Provision for 
depreciation and NPI

4.08 0.00 0.00 17.41 0.00 0.00 21.49

Net 11,820.07 0.00 0.53 1,500.89 0.00 2,497.87 15,819.35

Bank has no investment outside India as on 31.03.2024 and 31.03.2023.
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 3.2  Movement of Provisions for Depreciation and Investment Fluctuation Reserve:

(` in crores)
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

i) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
a Opening balance 21.49 0.00
b Add: Provisions made during the year 1.49 37.52
c Less: Write off/ write back of excess provisions during the year 22.65 16.03
d Closing balance 0.33 21.49

ii) Movement of Investment Fluctuation Reserve
a Opening balance 400.35 350.35
b Add: Amount transferred during the year 50.00 50.00
c Less: Drawdown 0.00 0.00
d Closing balance 450.35 400.35

iii) Closing balance in IFR as a percentage of closing balance of 
investments in AFS and HFT/Current category

6.86% 7.22%

 3.3 Sale and transfers to/from HTM category:

  No sale and transfers to/from HTM category during the years ended March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023.

 3.4  Non-SLR investment portfolio:

  i)  Non-performing non-SLR Investments:  
(` in crores)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

a) Opening Balance 0.00 0.00
b) Additions during the year since 1st April 0.00 0.00
c) Reductions during the above period 0.00 0.00
d) Closing Balance 0.00 0.00
e) Total provision held 0.00 0.00

  ii) Issuer composition of non-SLR investments:
 (` in crores)

Sr. 
No.

Issuer Amount Extent of 
Private 

Placements

Extent of 
‘Below 

Investment 
Grade’ 

Securities

Extent of 
‘Unrated’ 

Securities

Extent of 
‘Unlisted’ 
Securities

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
a) PSUs 199.64

 (705.49)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
b) FIs 1475.89

 (582.86)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
c) Public Sector Banks 60.00

 (35.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
d) Mutual Fund       0.00

(75.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
e) Others 1974.95

(195.47)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
f) Provision towards 

depreciation
0.33

(17.41)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
Total 3710.48

(1593.82)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)
0.00

 (0.00)

   Note: Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.
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 3.5  Repo transactions (in face value terms):
(` in crores)

Particulars Minimum
outstanding 

during the year

Maximum 
outstanding 

during the year

Daily average 
outstanding 

during the year

Outstanding as 
on 31st March  

2024
i. Security sold under Repo
 a) Government Securities 0.00 1276.80 388.24 202.15
 b) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 c) Any Other Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ii. Securities purchased under Reverse Repo
 a) Government Securities 0.00 1326.96 53.08 211.97
 b) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 c) Any Other Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
i. Securities sold under RBI Repos (LAF)
 a) Government Securities 0.00 646.00 54.74 0.00
 b) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 c) Any Other Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ii.  Securities purchased under RBI Reverse Repos (LAF)
 a) Government Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 b) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 c) Any Other Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
i.  Securities sold under CCIL TREPS 

Borrowing
 a) Government Securities 0.00 699.87 264.95 0.00
 b) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ii. Securities purchased under TREPS Lending
 a) Government Securities 0.00 245.73 10.55 133.03
 b) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(` in crores)
Particulars Minimum

outstanding 
during the year

Maximum 
outstanding 

during the year

Daily average 
outstanding 

during the year

Outstanding as 
on 31st March  

2023
i.  Security sold under Repo
 a) Government Securities 0.00 1882.26 611.09 121.34
 b) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 b) Any Other Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ii. Securities purchased under Reverse Repo
 a)  Government Securities 0.00 1185.28 40.56 252.80
 b) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 c)  Any Other Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
i. Securities sold under RBI Repos (LAF)
 a)  Government Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 b)  Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 c)  Any Other Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
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(` in crores)
Particulars Minimum

outstanding 
during the year

Maximum 
outstanding 

during the year

Daily average 
outstanding 

during the year

Outstanding as 
on 31st March  

2023
ii. Securities purchased under RBI Reverse Repos (LAF)
 a)  Government Securities 0.00 1200.00 60.56 0.00
 b)  Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 c)  Any Other Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
i.  Securities sold under CCIL TREPS (Borrowing)
 a)  Government Securities 0.00 904.26 163.50 498.72
 b) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ii.  Securities purchased under TREPS (Lending)
 a) Government Securities 0.00 199.93 4.50 0.00
 b) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4.  Asset quality

 4.1 Classification of advances and provisions held as on 31.03.2024:
(` in crores)

Standard Non-performing Total
Total 

Standard 
Advances

Sub-
Standard

Doubtful Loss Total Non-
performing 

Advances
Gross Standard Advances and NPAs 
Opening Balance 29884.22 182.86 863.58 126.47 1172.90 31057.13
Add: Additions during the period 294.33
Less: Reductions during the period 529.74
Closing balance 31629.98 185.89 565.67 185.93 937.49 32567.46
*Reductions in Gross NPAs due to: 
i. Upgradation 46.90
ii. Recoveries (excluding recoveries from 

upgraded accounts)
209.29

iii. Technical/ prudential Write-offs 31.39
iv. Write-offs other than those under  

(iii) above
242.16

Provisions (excluding Floating Provisions)
Opening balance of provisions held 152.32 170.87 863.58 126.47 1160.92
Add: Fresh provisions made during the 
period

27.70

Less: Excess provision reversed/ Write-off 
loans

266.71

Closing balance of provisions held 152.27 170.31 565.57 185.93 921.91
Net NPAs
Opening Balance 0.00
Add: Fresh additions during the period 266.62
Less: Reductions during the period *266.62
Closing Balance 0.00



Performance with Prudence...!!

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) - Annual Report 2023-2492

(` in crores)
Standard Non-performing Total

Total 
Standard 

Advances

Sub-
Standard

Doubtful Loss Total Non-
performing 

Advances
Floating Provisions

Opening Balance 0.00
Add: Additional provisions made during the 
period

125.00

Less: Amount drawn down during the 
period

0.00

Closing balance of floating provisions 125.00
Technical write-offs and the recoveries 
made thereon 
Opening balance of Technical/ Prudential 
written-off accounts 

1275.01

Add: Technical/ Prudential write-offs 
during the period 

31.39

Less: Recoveries made from previously 
technical/ prudential written-off accounts 
during the period 

16.34

Closing balance 1290.06

* This includes the amounts received from ECGC and held in ‘Suspense’ account.

Classification of advances and provisions held as on 31.03.2023:  
(` in crores)

Standard Non-performing Total
Total 

Standard 
Advances

Sub-
Standard

Doubtful Loss Total Non-
performing 

Advances
Gross Standard Advances and NPAs 
Opening Balance 27595.87 129.25 859.38 117.99 1106.62 28702.49
Add: Additions during the year 338.16
Less: Reductions during the year* 271.88
Closing balance 29884.22 182.86 863.58 126.47 1172.90 31057.13
*Reductions in Gross NPAs due to: 
i. Upgradation 172.06
ii. Recoveries (excluding recoveries from 

upgraded accounts)
68.51

iii. Technical/ prudential Write-offs 26.01
iv. Write-offs other than those under (iii) 

above
5.30

Provisions (excluding Floating Provisions)
Opening balance of provisions held 115.10 12.89 576.65 301.85 891.39
Add: Fresh provisions made during the year 297.16
Less: Excess provision reversed/ Write-off 
loans

27.63

Closing balance of provisions held 152.32 170.87 863.58 126.47 1160.92



Business Overview Statutory Report Financial Statements

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) - Annual Report 2023-24 93

(` in crores)
Standard Non-performing Total

Total 
Standard 

Advances

Sub-
Standard

Doubtful Loss Total Non-
performing 

Advances
Net NPAs
Opening Balance 179.65
Add: Fresh additions during the year 41.00
Less: Reductions during the year *220.65
Closing Balance 0.00
Floating Provisions
Opening Balance NA
Add: Additional provisions made during the 
year

NA

Less: Amount drawn down during the year NA
Closing balance of floating provisions NA
Technical write-offs and the recoveries 
made thereon 
Opening balance of Technical/ Prudential 
written-off accounts 

1340.82

Add: Technical/ Prudential write-offs 
during the year 

26.01

Less: Recoveries made from previously 
technical/ prudential written-off accounts 
during the year 

91.82

Closing balance 1275.01

*This includes the amounts received from ECGC and held in ‘Suspense’ account.

Ratios 
(in per cent)

       31.03.2024     31.03.2023

Gross NPA to Gross Advances 2.88% 3.78%
Net NPA to Net Advances 0.00% 0.00%
Provision coverage ratio 98.34% 98.98%

Note: The Provision Coverage ratio is calculated as percentage of the Bad & Doubtful Debts Reserve to the Gross Non-
Performing Advance. The Floating Provision for Advances of ` 125 crores is not considered while arriving at the Provision 
Coverage Ratio.

 4.2  Sector-wise Advances and Gross NPAs:

(` in crores)

Sr. 
No.

Sector Current Year 31.03.2024 Previous Year 31.03.2023

Outstanding 
Total 

Advances

Gross NPAs % of Gross 
NPAs 

to Total 
Advances in 
that Sector

Outstanding 
Total 

Advances

Gross NPAs % of Gross 
NPAs 

to Total 
Advances in 
that Sector

i) Priority Sector
a)  Agriculture and allied 

activities
28.31 6.17 21.79 40.71 6.10 14.98

b)  Advances to industries 
sector eligible as priority 
sector lending

7320.78 183.91 2.51 7,738.10 316.12 4.08

c)  Services 2549.16 110.59 4.34 2,966.71 130.46 4.40
d)  Personal Loans 3152.30 107.33 3.40 3,501.93 85.62 2.44
Subtotal (i) 13050.55 408.00 - 14,247.45 538.30 -
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(` in crores)

Sr. 
No.

Sector Current Year 31.03.2024 Previous Year 31.03.2023

Outstanding 
Total 

Advances

Gross NPAs % of Gross 
NPAs 

to Total 
Advances in 
that Sector

Outstanding 
Total 

Advances

Gross NPAs % of Gross 
NPAs 

to Total 
Advances in 
that Sector

ii) Non-priority Sector 

a)  Agriculture and allied 
activities

37.73 24.45 64.80 38.55 27.70 71.85

b)  Industry 8602.72 209.35 2.43 7,504.19 299.60 3.99

c)  Services 2648.89 99.25 3.75 2,056.73 122.09 5.94

d)  Personal Loans 8227.57 196.44 2.39 7,210.21 185.21 2.57

Sub-total (ii) 19516.91 529.49 - 16,809.68 634.60 -

Total (i + ii) 32567.46 937.49 2.88% 31,057.13 1172.90 3.78%

 4.3  Particulars of resolution plan and restructuring:

  Details of accounts subjected to restructuring 
(` in crores)

Agriculture and 
allied activities

Corporates 
(Excluding MSME)

Micro, Small 
and Medium 
Enterprises 

(MSME)

Retail (Excluding 
agriculture and 

MSME)

Total

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Standard

No. of Borrowers 0 0 4 9 18 8 0 0 22 17
Gross Amount 0.00 0.00 84.77 129.20 137.17 111.14 0.00 0.00 221.94 240.34
Provision held 0.00 0.00 4.34 3.98 8.38 7.02 0.00 0.00 12.72 11.00

Sub-standard

Number of Borrowers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Gross Amount 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Provision held 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Doubtful

Number of Borrowers 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 2 1
Gross Amount 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.59 15.89 4.72 0.00 5.31 15.89
Provision held 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.02 1.36 0.02 0.00 0.04 1.36

Total

Number of Borrowers 0 0 4 9 19 9 1 0 24 18
Gross Amount 0.00 0.00 84.77 129.20 137.76 127.03 4.72 0.00 227.25 256.23
Provision held 0.00 0.00 4.34 3.98 8.40 8.38 0.02 0.00 12.76 12.36

Note: Restructuring applications of two accounts with a total exposure of ` 0.89 crores sanctioned in March 2024 and pending 
for implementation are not included in the above table. 

 4.4   Divergence in the asset classification and provisioning: 

  In terms of the RBI guidelines, banks are required to disclose the divergence in asset classification and provisioning 
consequent to RBI’s annual supervisory process in their notes to accounts to the financial statements, wherever the 
additional provisioning assessed / additional gross NPAs identified by RBI exceeds the threshold specified by RBI. 
The threshold for provisioning is 5 per cent of the reported profit before provisions and contingencies for the reference 
period and that for additional gross NPAs is 15 per cent of the published incremental Gross NPAs for the reference 
period.

  There was no reportable divergence in asset classification and provisioning for NPAs for the year ended  
March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2022.
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 4.5  Disclosure of transfer of loan exposures:  

  Details of transfer of loan exposure-In the case of stressed loans transferred or acquired: 

      (` in crores)

Details of stressed loans transferred during the year (to be made separately for loans classified as NPA and SMA)

To ARCs To permitted 
transferees

To other 
transferees 

(please specify)

No. of Accounts 368

Nil

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred 390.38

Weighted average residual tenor of the loans 
transferred

0.00

Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of 
transfer)

5.85

Aggregate Consideration 54.09

Additional consideration realized in respect of 
accounts transferred in earlier years

Nil

Details of loans acquired during the year

From SCBs, RRBs, 
UCBs, StCBs, 
DCCBs, AIFIs, 

SFBs and NBFCs 
including HFCs

From ARCs

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans acquired

NilAggregate consideration paid

Weighted average residual tenor of loans acquired

 4.6  Fraud accounts:  

  Details on the number and amount of frauds as well as the provisioning thereon:   

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
No. of frauds reported 28 39
* Amount involved in fraud (` crores) 33.34 5.85
Amount of provision made for such frauds (` crores) 29.46 1.75
Amount of unamortized provision debited from ‘other reserves’ as at 
the end of the year/period (` crores)

- -

Amount outstanding as at end of the year/period 33.46 5.66

  *The amount involved in fraud includes frauds of ` 4.01 Cr (Previous year ` 4.10 Cr) where Bank is not required to 
account for any provision as frauds occurred due to errors or mistakes committed by respective customer.

 4.7  Disclosure under Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress:

  The Covid-19 impacted the entire world thus impacting India resulting in an adverse impact and volatility in global 
and Indian markets and disruption in economic activity on account of lockdown measures, etc. However, the various 
pandemic measures – regulatory as well as social have lessened the adverse economic impact in the second and the 
third wave. The Indian economy displayed resilience and is gradually bouncing back. Reserve Bank of India continued 
with its regulatory measures with the objective of alleviating the potential stress to individual borrowers and small 
businesses, and introduced the Resolution Framework - 1.0, and Resolution Framework 2.0. 

  The Resolution Framework 2.0 was extended in May 2021 to individuals, small businesses, and Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises (MSMEs).
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  Disclosure with respect to ‘Respect of Stressed Assets’ as per RBI Circular No. DOR. No. BP.BC /4 /21.04/048/2020-
21 dated August 6, 2020:

(` in crores)
Type of borrower Exposure 

to accounts 
classified 
as standard 
subsequent to 
implementation 
of resolution 
plan- Position as 
at the end of the 
previous year (A) 
i.e. 31.03.2023

Of (A), aggregate 
debt that slipped 
into NPA during 
the year 

Of (A) amount 
written off during 
the year 

Of (A) amount 
paid by the 
borrowers during 
the year

Exposure 
to accounts 
classified 
as Standard 
consequent to 
implementation of 
resolution plan – 
Position as at the 
end of the year i.e. 
31.03.2024 

Personal Loans 258.29 35.25 0.01 84.71 170.30
Corporate 
persons*

397.86 13.13 0.00 93.43 295.36

Of which MSMEs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Others 41.58 4.51 0.01 30.59 33.15
Total 697.73 52.89 0.02 208.73 498.81

* As defined in section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

  Accounts restructured under Resolution Framework 1.0 & 2.0 – Resolution of Covid-19 related stress of Micro Small 
and Medium Enterprises (MSME) Circular DOR.No.BP. BC/4/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020 and DOR.STR.
REC.12/21.04.048/2021-22 dated May 5,2021:

(` in crores)
Particulars No. of accounts 

restructured
Exposure as on 

31.03.2024  
MSME (RF 1.0) 65 164.08
MSME (RF 2.0) 95 137.89

5. Exposures:

 5.1 Exposure to real estate sector :
 (` in crores)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

i) Direct exposure
a)  Residential Mortgages
 Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property 

that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented.  
 Of which, Individual housing loans eligible for priority sector 

advances.

6270.67

3020.57

6043.96

3057.26

b)  Commercial Real Estate
 Lending secured by mortgages on Commercial Real Estates 

(office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial 
premises, multifamily residential buildings, multi tenanted 
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, 
land acquisition, development, and construction etc.

1584.26 1321.50

c)  Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and other 
securitised exposures:

 i) Residential Nil Nil
 ii) Commercial Real Estate Nil Nil

ii) Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing 
Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

Nil Nil

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 7854.93 7365.46
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 5.2  Exposure to capital market:
(` in crores)

Sr. 
No.

Category 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible 
debentures, and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of which 
is not exclusively invested in corporate debt.

Nil Nil

ii) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or 
on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / 
ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity 
oriented mutual funds; 

Nil Nil

iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or 
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken 
as primary security; 

25.17 25.20

iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral 
security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units 
of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than 
shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity 
oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances;

7.82 10.07

v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued 
on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

Nil Nil

vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / 
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s 
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising 
resources;

Nil Nil

vii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect of primary 
issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of 
equity oriented mutual funds;

Nil Nil

viii) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; Nil Nil
ix) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) Nil Nil

Total exposure to capital market 32.99 35.27

  a) Risk Category-wise country exposure:         
   (` in crores)

Risk Category Exposure (net) as 
at 31.03.2024

Provision held as 
at 31.03.2024

Exposure (net) as 
at 31.03.2023

Provision held as 
at 31.03.2023

Insignificant 494.35

Not applicable

834.46

Not applicable

Low 270.91 314.63
Moderately Low 121.15 36.50
Moderate 9.90 20.24
Moderately High 26.06 5.99
High 0.00 18.39
Very High 26.65 3.86
Total 949.02 1,234.07

  b) Unsecured advances:

(` in crores)

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Total unsecured advances of the Bank  344.57 457.77
Out of the above, amount of advances for which intangible 
securities such as charge over the rights, licenses, authority, etc. 
have been taken 

NA NA

Estimated value of such intangible securities NA NA
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  c) Factoring exposures:

   No factoring exposure of the Bank as on 31.03.2024.

  d) Unhedged foreign currency exposure:

   Foreign Exchange Policy of the Bank covers the provisions related to monitoring and review of unhedged foreign 
currency exposure and related norms.

6. Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs:

 a)  Concentration of Deposits:
 (` in crores)

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Total deposits of the twenty largest depositors 2,574.54 2,320.86 
% of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total deposits of the Bank 5.21% 5.22%

 b)  Concentration of advances*:
 (` in crores)

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Total advances of the twenty largest borrowers 3,822.24 3,815.12
% of advances of twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the Bank 11.74% 12.28%

  *Advances computed are based on credit exposure i.e., funded, and non-funded limits including derivative exposures 
where applicable. The sanctioned limits or outstanding, whichever are higher, are reckoned. However, in the case of 
fully drawn term loans, where there is no scope for re-drawal of any portion of the sanctioned limit, the outstanding 
is reckoned as the credit exposure.

 c)  Concentration of exposures**:
 (` in crores)

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Total exposure of the twenty largest borrowers/customers 3,822.24 3,815.12
Percentage of exposures to the twenty largest borrowers/customers to 
the total exposures of the Bank or borrowers/customers

11.74% 12.28%

  **Exposures computed as per applicable RBI regulations

 d) Concentration of NPAs:
 (` in crores)

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Total exposure of the top twenty NPA accounts 310.78 477.88
Percentage of exposures to the twenty largest NPA exposures to total 
Gross NPAs

33.15% 44.92%

7. RBI has mandated Urban Co-operative Banks vide master circular No. RBI/2023-24/114 DoR.CRE.REC.71/07.10.002/ 
2023-24 dated January 16,2024, to have at least 50%of their aggregate *loans and advances comprising loans of not more 
than ` 25.00 lakh or 0.2% of their tier I Capital, whichever is higher, subject to a maximum of ` 1 crore per borrower/party 
in a phased manner up to 31st March 2024. The Bank’s present status is as below.

 (` in crores)
Sr. No. Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
a. Aggregate of loans and advances (as per para 2.2.1 of the above 

circular) not exceeding 0.2% of Tier I Capital subject to maximum  
` 1 crore.

13,338 12,738

b. Aggregate loans and advances (as per para 2.2.1 of the above 
circular) as per audited financial statement.

37,864 39,297

c. Percentage of lending as per above (a/b) 35.23% 32.41%
 *It is clarified that ‘loans’ for the purpose shall include all types of funded and non-funded exposures in the nature of 

credit. 
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8. Derivatives:

 The Bank has not entered into any transactions in forward rate agreements or interest rate swaps in the current and 
previous years.

9. Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEA Fund):
 (` in crores)

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEA Fund 168.90 157.88

Add: - Amounts transferred to DEA Fund during the year / period 14.00 14.12

Less: - Amount reimbursed by DEA Fund towards claims 11.68 3.10

Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEA Fund 171.22 168.90

Note: Closing balance of amount transferred to DEA Fund, as disclosed above, is also included under ‘Schedule 13 – 
Contingent Liabilities’.

10. Disclosure of Complaints:

 a) Summary information on complaints received by the Bank from customers and from the Officers of Banking 
Ombudsman

Sr.
No.

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Complaints received by the Bank from its customers 

1. Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 3 5

2. Number of complaints received during the year /period 718 377

3. Number of complaints disposed during the year /period 699 379

3.1  Of which, number of complaints rejected by the Bank   - -

4. Number of complaints pending at the end of the year/period   22 3

Maintainable complaints received by the Bank from OBOs  

5. Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year (OBO) 0 0

Number of maintainable complaints received by the bank 
from OBOs

216 217

5.1  Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the Bank 
by BOs (also includes complaints received in earlier years 
& resolved in favour of the Bank)

208 214

5.2  Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/
mediation/advisories issued by BOs   

8 3

5.3  Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of 
Awards by BOs against the Bank   

Nil Nil

6. Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time 
(other than those appealed) 

N.A. N.A.

  Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in BO Scheme 2006 and 
covered within the ambit of the Scheme. 
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 b) Top five grounds* of complaints received by the Bank from customers.

Grounds of complaints, 
(i.e., complaints relating to)

Number of 
complaints 

pending at the 
beginning of 

the year i.e., as 
on 31.03.2023

Number of 
complaints 

received during 
the year

i.e. during 
2023-24

% increase/ 
decrease in 
the number 

of complaints 
received over the 

same period of 
previous year i.e. 

2022-23 

Number of 
complaints 
pending at 

the end of the 
year i.e., as on 

31.03.2024

Of 5, number 
of complaints 

pending beyond 
30 days

Current year (31.03.2024)

Ground-1 - Account opening/ 
difficulty in operation of 
accounts

0 161 570% increase 3 0

Ground-2 - Loans & Advances 0 77 71% increase 3 0

Ground-3 - Staff Behavior 0 30 15% increase 0 0

Ground-4 - ATM/Debit card 0 26 24% increase 1 0

Ground-5 - Internet/Mobile/
Electronic Banking

1 22 120% increase 2 0

Others 2 402 60% increase 13 0

Total 3 718 90% increase 22 0

Top five grounds* of complaints received by the Bank from customers.

Grounds of complaints, 
(i.e., complaints relating to)

Number of 
complaints 

pending at the 
beginning of 

the year i.e., as 
on 31.03.2022

Number of 
complaints 

received during 
the year

i.e., during 
2022-23

% increase/ 
decrease in 
the number 

of complaints 
received over 

the same period 
of previous year 

i.e., 2021-22

Number of 
complaints 
pending at 

the end of the 
year i.e., as on 

31.03.2023

Of 5, number 
of complaints 

pending beyond 
30 days

Previous year (31.03.2023)

Ground-1- Account opening/
difficulty in operation of 
accounts

2 24 9% increase 0 0

Ground-2 - Loans & Advances 0 45 36% increase 0 0

Ground-3 - Staff Behavior 0 26 73% increase 0 0

Ground-4 - ATM/Debit card 0 21 12% increase 0 0

Ground-5 - Internet/Mobile/
Electronic Banking

0 10 67% increase 1 0

Others 3 251 67% increase 2 0

Total 5 377 54% increase 3 0

The bank has formalized the procedure for registering the complaints during the year and all the complaints are now 
captured resulting in an increase in the number of complaints.
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 1. ATM/Debit Cards 2. Credit Cards 3. Internet/Mobile/
Electronic Banking

4.  Account opening/ 
difficulty in operation 
of accounts 

5. Mis-selling/Para-banking 6.  Recovery Agents/ 
Direct Sales Agents 

7. Pension and facilities 
for senior citizens/ 
differently abled 

8. Loans and advances 

9. Levy of charges without 
prior notice/ excessive 
charges/ foreclosure 
charges 

10. Cheques/ drafts/ bills 11. Non-observance of Fair 
Practices Code 

12. Exchange of coins, 
issuance/ acceptance 
of small denomination 
notes and coins 

13. Bank Guarantees/ 
Letter of Credit and 
documentary credits 

14. Staff behavior 15. Facilities for customers 
visiting the branch/ 
adherence to 
prescribed working 
hours by the branch, 
etc. 

16. Others  

11. Disclosure of penalties imposed by Reserve Bank of India:

 The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has imposed a monetary penalty of ` 23.00 lakh (Rupees Twenty Three lakh only) for 
contravention of the provisions and the directions issued by RBI on ‘Loans and advances to directors, their relatives, and 
firms/concerns in which they are interested. (Previous Year i.e., during F.Y. 2022-23 - ` 1.50 lakh on account of cash out 
at ATMs)

12. Disclosure requirement as per Accounting Standards (AS)

 12.1 Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies (AS 5):

  Prior Period Items: During the year, there were no material prior period income / expenditure items.

  151 employees opted for VRS. The amount paid/payable as VRS Compensation to these employees is ` 27.91 crore. 
The provision made towards VRS Compensation was ₹ 32.50 crore in the year March 31,2023 which was reflected 
under the head “Exceptional Items” in the Profit and Loss Account for that year. The excess provision of ` 4.59 crore 
on account of the VRS Compensation is reversed during the year ended March 31,2024.

  Change in Accounting Policy: There is no change in the Significant Accounting Policies adopted during the year ended 
31st March 2024 as compared to those followed in the previous financial year 2022-23.

 12.2 Employee Benefits- AS 15:

  a. Defined Contribution Plan

   Bank’s contribution to Provident Fund – ` 30.70 crore (Previous year- ` 30.17 crore)

  b. Defined Benefit Plan

   i. Assumptions: 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

I Discount rate 7.23% 7.50% 7.18% 7.53%
II Expected return on Plan Assets 7.23% 7.50% N.A. N.A.
III Salary Escalation rate 4.00% 4.00% - -
IV Attrition Rate 4.75% 4.75% 4.75% 4.75%
V Mortality Table IALM

(2012-14) 
Urban

IALM
(2012-14) 

Urban

IALM
(2012-14) 

Urban

IALM
(2012-14) 

Urban
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   ii. Table showing change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation: 
           (` in crores)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Present value of obligation at the 
beginning of the period

150.76 145.73 41.32 42.05

Interest cost 11.31 10.50 3.11 3.08
Current service cost 7.92 7.86 0.80 0.82
Past Service Cost – Vested Benefit 
incurred during the period

- - 1.31 -

(Benefits paid directly by the Employer) (0.31) (0.11) (3.13) (2.89)
(Benefits paid from the Fund) (39.36) (14.93) - -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations-
Due to Change in Demographic 
Assumptions 

0.00 4.10 - (0.18)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations-
Due to Change in Financial Assumptions

2.16 (1.92) 1.50 (0.74)

Actuarial (Gains)/Loss on obligations-Due 
to Experience

7.80       (0.47) 0.78 (0.81)

Present value of benefit obligation at the 
end of the period

140.28 150.76 45.69 41.32

   iii. Table showing Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets:                                              
       (` in crores)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 
of the period

146.88 145.61 - -

Expected return on Plan Assets 11.02 10.49 - -
Contributions by the Employer 18.40 9.95 - -
Benefits paid from the Fund (39.36) (14.93) - -
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets - 
Due to Experience

3.34 (4.24) - -

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the 
period

140.28 146.88 - -

    The plan assets are invested in the insurer managed fund which generally makes investment in secured 
securities. Hence, the expected rate of return considered is yield on the government securities which matches 
the average term of the obligation.

   iv. Amount recognized in Balance Sheet:

     (` in crores)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

(Present value of obligation at the end of 
the period)

(140.28) (150.76) (45.69) (41.32)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the 
period

140.28 146.88 - -

Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) 0.00 (3.87) (45.69) (41.32)
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the 
Balance Sheet

0.00 (3.87) (45.69) (41.32)
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   v. Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss:
     (` in crores)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Current service cost 7.93 7.86 0.80 0.81

Net Interest cost 0.29 0.01 3.11 3.08

Actuarial (Gains)/Loss 6.61 5.95 2.28 (1.73)

Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit 
Recognized During the Period

- - 1.31 -

Expenses recognized in Statement of 
Profit or Loss 

14.83 13.82 7.50 2.16

   vi.  Investments under Plan Assets are as follows:
    (` in crores)

Category of Assets Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Insurer Managed Funds 131.71 146.17 - -

Other 8.57 0.72 - -

Total 140.28 146.88 - -

   vii. Actual Return on Plan Assets and Expected contribution on Gratuity (Funded) for next year.
  (` in crores)

Particulars 2024 2023

Expected return on plan assets 11.02 10.49

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets- due to experience 3.34 (4.24)

Actual Return on Plan Assets 14.36 6.25

Expected Contribution for next year 7.84 11.80

   viii. Amounts of Gratuity and Pension for the current year and previous five years are as follows:

    1. Gratuity 
(` in crores)

Particulars 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

(Present Value of Benefit 
Obligation at the end of the Period)

(140.28) (150.76) (145.73) (144.94) (146.12) (130.36)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the 
end of the Period

140.28 146.88 145.61 144.02 135.69 134.76

Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) 0.00 (3.87) (0.12) (0.92) (10.43) 4.40

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on 
Obligations - Due to Experience

7.80 (0.47) 4.55 2.24 7.16 (1.35)

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan 
Assets - Due to Experience

3.34 (4.24) 0.08 (0.11) (1.14) (0.35)
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    2. Pension
    (` in crores)

Particulars 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

(Present Value of Benefit 
Obligation at the end of the Period)

(45.69) (41.32) (42.05) (42.95) (42.42) (36.33)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the 
end of the Period

- - - - - -

Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) (45.69) (41.32) (42.05) (42.95) (42.42) (36.33)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on 
Obligations - Due to Experience

0.78 (0.81) (0.21) 0.09 1.30 (0.50)

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan 
Assets - Due to Experience

- - - - - -

  c. Other Long-Term Employee Benefits:
   Compensated absences
   The actuarial liability of compensated absences of accumulated privilege and sick leave of the employees of the 

Bank is given below: 
 (` in crores) 

Particulars 2024 2023

Privilege leave 65.94 83.30

Sick leave (vested) 11.25 14.66

Sick leave(non-vested) 3.31 2.98

Total actuarial liability 80.50 100.94

Assumptions 

Discount rate 

Privilege leave 7.23% 7.50%

Sick leave (vested) 7.20% 7.46%

Sick leave (non-vested) 7.22% 7.50%

Salary escalation rate

Privilege leave 4.00% 4.00%

Sick leave (vested) 0.00% 0.00%

Sick leave (non-vested) 4.00% 4.00%

 12.3 Segment Reporting (AS-17):
  Part A: Business Segment
  For the purpose of segment reporting, the reportable segments are identified as Treasury, Corporate/Wholesale 

Banking, Retail Banking and Other Banking Business, in accordance with the RBI guidelines. Brief description of 
activities of each segment and revenue attributable thereto is as under:

  1. The treasury portfolio comprises of entire investment portfolio. 
  2. Retail Banking includes exposures which fulfil the four criteria of orientation, product, granularity, and low value 

of individual exposures for retail exposures laid down in accordance with RBI guidelines. Individual housing 
loans also form part of Retail Banking segment for the purpose of reporting under AS-17.  

  3. Corporate / Wholesale Banking includes all advances to trusts, partnership firms, companies, and statutory 
bodies, which are not included under ‘Retail Banking’.   

  4. Other Banking Business includes all other banking operations not covered under ‘Treasury, ‘Wholesale 
Banking’ and ‘Retail Banking’ segments. It shall also include all other residual operations such as para banking 
transactions/activities. 
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  (` in crores)

Business Segement Treasury Corporate/Wholsale 
Banking

Retail Banking Other Banking Business Total

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Revenue  1,298.32  1,083.16  1,275.55  1,335.72  1,792.30  1,499.36  76.99  49.20  4,443.16  3,967.44 
Result  291.98  285.07  414.23  444.89  459.10  495.80  69.67  43.08  1,234.98  1,268.84 
Unallocated expenses  448.56  381.36 
Operating Profit  786.42  887.48 
Provisions  84.77  365.14 
Exceptional items  -    32.50 
Income taxes  198.66  138.14 
Extraordinary profit/loss  -    -   
Net profit  502.99  351.70 
Other information
Segment assets  23,863.34  21,044.26  15,340.13  14,705.64  24,819.82  24,151.98  50.02  49.47  64,073.31  59,951.35 
Unallocated assets  1,346.39  1,217.24 
Total assets 65,419.70 61,168.59 
Segment liabilities  22,203.55  19,643.43  14,273.16  13,726.74  23,093.50  22,544.27  46.54  46.18  59,616.75  55,960.62 
Unallocated liabilities  1,128.09  965.09 
Total liabilities  60,744.84 56,925.71 

 Part B: Geographic Segments

 The Bank operates only in India and hence the reporting consists only of domestic segment

 12.4 Related Party Disclosures (AS18) :

  Mrs. Arti Ajit Patil, Managing Director and CEO of the Bank is a single party under the category Key Management 
Personnel, no further details need to be disclosed in terms of RBI Circular dated 29th March 2003.

 12.5 Operating Lease comprises leasing of office premises (AS 19):
 (` in crores)

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Future lease rental payable as at the end of the year/period:

- Not later than one year 72.33 67.49

- Later than one year and not later than five years 200.83 190.29

- Later than five years 26.64 23.98

Total of minimum lease payments realization in the Profit and Loss 
account for the year/period. 

85.93 74.07

Total of future minimum sub-lease payment expected to be received 
under non-cancellable sub-lease

NIL NIL

Sub-lease payments realization in the Profit and Loss account for the 
year

NIL NIL

 12.6 Earnings per Share (EPS) (AS 20):        
   (` in crores)

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Net Profit after Taxation (` in crore) 502.99 351.70

Weighted average No. of Shares (` in crore) 30.29 27.99

EPS * (` in actuals) 16.42 12.36

* EPS has been computed after reducing Preference Dividend of ` 5.72 crore (Previous Year - ` 5.72 crore) from Net 
Profit after Tax.
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 12.7 Major components of Deferred Tax (AS 22):
     (` in crores) 

 Deferred Tax Asset 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Sec.43B                                                          1.69 1.62

2 Provision for BDDR (incl. Other Assets) 242.06 300.31

3 Amortization of HTM Securities 0.46 0.46

4 VRS Compensation 4.87 -

5 Provision for Restructured Assets                     3.21 3.09

6 Provision for Restructuring other loans and MSME  
(Covid Framework)

19.24 21.23

7 Others 3.10 1.92

Sub-Total (A) 274.63 328.63

Deferred Tax Liability

1 Difference in WDV of fixed assets                                            10.59 11.47

2 Special Reserve u/s 36(1) (viii) 64.11 58.47

3 Others 0.08 23.18

Sub-Total (B) 74.78 93.12

Net Deferred Tax Asset (A)-(B)             199.85 235.51

  Note: Deferred Tax Asset has been recognized to the extent Management is reasonably certain of its realization.

 12.8 Details of Computer Software – other than internally generated (AS 26):

  a. Amortization rates used @33.33% p.a. on straight line method. (However, if useful life of software is more than  
3 years, then proportionate rates are used).                                                                                  . 

 (` in crores)

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Opening Balance (at cost) as on April 1 136.87 101.57

Add: Additions during the year/period      32.92 35.30

Less: deductions during the year/period*   2.14 -

Sub-Total (A) 167.65 136.87

Less: Amortization made

Opening Balance of Amortisation 79.28 54.05

Add: Amortization during the year/period 32.74 25.23

Less: deductions during the year/period*   1.95 -

Sub-Total (B) 110.07 79.28

Net carrying amount as on March 31 (A)-(B) 57.58 57.59

*Includes Obsolete software of ` 1.85 crore.

  b. Amount of commitments (net of advance)  
   -  for the acquisition of computer software – ` 52.76 crore (Previous year - ` 30.71 crore) and for premises - 

`  34.55 crore (Previous year - ` 74.36 crore).
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 12.9 Claims against Bank not acknowledged as debts: 

  There are certain claims on account of income tax, service tax and other legal cases filed against the Bank. The Bank 
is a party to various legal proceedings in the normal course of business and has preferred appeals with the appropriate 
appellate authorities. The Management estimates the possibility of an unfavourable outcome to be remote.  

13. Other Disclosures:

 a)  Business ratios:

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

i) Interest Income as a percentage to Working   Funds 7.18% 6.65%

ii)  Non-interest income as a percentage to Working Funds 0.88% 1.07%

iii)  Cost of Deposits 5.28% 4.49%

iv)  Net Interest Margin 2.97% 3.10%

v)   Operating Profit as a percentage to Working Funds 1.43% 1.73%

vi)   Return on Assets 0.91% 0.68%

vii)  Business per employee (` in crore) 17.87 16.11

viii)  Profit* per employee (` in crore) 0.11 0.08

* Net Profit After Tax.

 b)  Bancassurance business:

  Commission income from Bank assurance business: 

(` in crores)

Sr. 
No.

Nature of Income 2023-24 2022-23

1. From selling Life Insurance Policies 43.75 30.10

2. From selling Non-Life Insurance Policies 7.97 5.40

3. From Pradhan Mantri Insurance Schemes 0.01 0.01

 Total 51.73 35.51

 c)  Marketing and distribution: 

  Income from Mutual Fund business:

     (` in crores)

Nature of Income 2023-24 2022-23

Mutual Fund Income 2.90 2.31

 d)  Disclosures regarding Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLCs):

  The Bank enters into transactions for the purchase of Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLCs). In the case of a 
purchase transaction, the Bank buys the fulfilment of priority sector obligation through RBI trading platform. There is 
no transfer of risks or loan assets. The fee paid for purchase of the PSLCs is recorded as other expenditure in Profit 
and Loss Account.  
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  Details of Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLC) purchased by the Bank as per RBI circular FIDD.CO.Plan.
BC.23/04.09.01/2015-16 dated 7th April, 2016, are set out below:

(` in crores)

Sr. 
No.

Category 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 PSLC-Small & Marginal Farmers 3,720.00 8,000.00

2 PSLC-General 7,550.00 5,500.00

3 PSLC-Micro Enterprises 2,000.00 NIL

Total 13,270.00 13,500.00

  Details of PSLCs sold by the Bank are set out below:

Sr. 
No.

Category 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 PSLC-General 2871.50 NIL

 e) Provisions and contingencies :
(` in crores)

Provision debited to Profit and loss Account 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Provision for NPI Nil Nil

Provision towards NPA (11.56) 297.16

Floating Provision for Advances 125.00 -

Provision made towards Income tax 198.66 188.00

Other Provision and Contingencies (with details)

Provision towards depreciation on investments (21.16) 21.49

Provision towards Standard Assets (0.05) 37.20

Provision towards Restructured Assets 0.45 3.60

Provision towards MSME & Covid Related Stress restructuring (7.90) (5.73)

 f) Pursuant to para 4.3 of II. Significant Accounting Policies, the Bank has not made any additional provision on Standard 
Assets during the year.

 g) In accordance with para 4.4 of II. Significant Accounting Policies, the Bank has set aside an amount of ` 125 crore by 
way of Floating Provision for advances.

 h) Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium :

(` in crores)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

i) Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium 53.58 50.41

ii) Arrears in payment of DICGC Premium Nil Nil
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 i) Disclosure of facilities granted to directors and their relatives.

  The Bank has complied with the RBI guidelines and no secured and unsecured facilities have been extended to or on 
behalf of the directors and their relatives or to firms / companies / concerns in which the directors or their relatives 
are interested.

 j) Payments under the Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 

  The Bank has not received information in respect of the registration under Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises 
Development, Act 2006 from its suppliers / service providers. Hence, information relating to the cases of delays, if 
any, in payments to such enterprises or of interest payments due to such delays could not be given.

14. Market Risk in Trading Book as on 31.03.2024:

 a) Qualitative Disclosures 

  Market Risk is the risk that the value of investments may undergo change over a given time period, simply because 
of economic changes or other events that impact the financial markets. In other words, Market Risk is calculated for 
both, adverse movement in the price of an individual security owing to factors related to the individual issuer as well 
as interest rate risk in the portfolio.

  Methodology: The Bank follows the Standardized Duration Approach for calculation of Market Risk. The Bank 
manages the Market Risk in the books on an ongoing basis and ensures that the capital requirement for Market Risk 
is being maintained on a continuous basis. i.e., at the end of each month (with effect from November 2023).

  The capital charge is applied to the market value of securities in the Bank’s trading book. Market Value is determined 
as per the extant RBI guidelines on valuation of investments. 

  Minimum Capital Requirement is worked out separately for

  1. ‘Specific Risk’ charge – for individual issuer related factors.

  2. ‘General Market Risk’ – for interest rate risk in the portfolio.

  Scope: The portfolios covered under the said approach include:

  1. Securities included under the Held for Trading (HFT) category

  2. Securities included under the Available for Sale (AFS) category

  3. Open Foreign Exchange Position Limits

  Infrastructure/ MIS & Reporting: The Investment Policy as approved by the Board of Directors provides detailed 
guidelines for all operational procedures, settlements, valuations, and risk controls pertaining to investments.  

  A separate mid-office is also in place which acts as an intermediary, monitoring compliance of regulatory guidelines 
and of the Banks’ Investment Policy and undertakes reporting to higher management.  

  Parameters for risk measurement: Risk Management and reporting is based on parameters such as Modified Duration, 
Net Open Position Limits, Gap Limits, etc.

 b) Quantitative Disclosure:  

    (` in crores)

Particulars 31.03.2024  31.03.2023

The Capital requirements for:

Interest Rate Risk 278.87 199.16

Equity Position Risk 3.55 0.06

Foreign Exchange Risk 5.40 4.38

As per RBI circular dated 28th March 2023 - RBI/2022-23/189 DOR.CAP.REC. No.109/09.18.201/2022-23, capital 
charge is calculated at 12% from March 2023 onwards.
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15. The Share Capital includes 768193 shares of ` 10/- each in respect of the persons who have not subscribed to additional 
shares to make their shareholding minimum of 50 shares as required under Bye-law No.6C and as a result, they are not 
entitled to their membership rights.

16. The Bank has taken Group Mediclaim Policy covering its directors. The Bank has paid premium of ` 2,57,177/- on this 
account. (Previous year - ` 2,67,703/-)

17. Provisions for liabilities on the outstanding reward points on credit cards based on an independent actuarial valuation as 
at 31st March 2024 is ` 18,076-/- (Previous year ` 9,40,529/-)

18. The Bank has received permission from Reserve Bank of India for exercising ‘’Call Option” on PNCPS maturing upto 
December 31, 2024 to the tune of ` 49,76,76,000/- (total PNCPS holding ` 54,44,45,000/-). The amount maturing upto 31st 
March 2024 is not considered for calculation of the Capital Adequacy Ratio as on 31.03.2024. 

19. In accordance with the approval granted by RBI vide its letter bearing ref no: HeefJe ë keWÀkeÀe - efJemesme /S5941/12.01.041/2023-24 
dated 26.10.2023, the Bank has launched the Long Term Subordinated Bonds (LTSB) issue of ` 400 crore. The amount 
subscribed till 31st March 2024 is ` 314.51 crore. The same is considered as Tier II Capital.

20. The Bank has subscribed to the paid up capital of National Urban Cooperative Finance and Development Corporation 
(NUCFDC) by way of 1,50,00,000 shares of ` 10/- each aggregating to ` 15,00,00,000/-. The same is reflected under 
Schedule 9 – Investments in the Balance Sheet. NUCFDC is the Umbrella Organization for Urban Co-operative Banks 
(UCBs).

21. Previous year’s figures are regrouped or rearranged, wherever necessary, to conform to the layout of the accounts of the 
current year

sd/-
A. A. Patil 

Managing Director         
      & CEO                                                               

sd/-
S. N. Sawaikar

Director

sd/-
K. V. Rangnekar

Director

sd/-
S. K. Sakhalkar
 Vice Chairman

sd/-
G. E. Thakur

Chairman

Mumbai : May 24, 2024

As per our report of even date
For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101851W 

sd/-
(Abhay V Kamat)
Partner
Membership No. 39585 
Mumbai : May 24, 2024

sd/-
(Sanat Ulhas Chitale)
Partner
Membership No. 143700
Mumbai : May 24, 2024
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
        (Amount in `)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Current Year 31.03.2024 Previous Year 31.03.2023
Net Profit as per P/L account  5,02,98,51,416  3,55,49,35,322 

Add: Adjustments for
Depreciation on Assets  84,73,01,690  78,54,74,266 
Fixed assets written off  2,62,960  2,01,681 
Amortisation of Investments  24,15,30,195  26,67,36,761 
Depreciation of Investments 0  21,48,79,270 
Provision for BDDR  36,67,63,964  3,08,58,17,355 
Floating Provision for Advances   1,25,00,00,000 0
Contingent provision against Standard Assets  8,90,00,000  37,20,39,000 
Reserve Restructured Assets  44,71,000  3,60,45,000 
Provision for Tax   1,63,00,00,000  1,88,00,00,000 
Deferred tax  35,65,89,873  4,78,59,19,682  (49,86,35,549)  6,14,25,57,784 
Less:  9,81,57,71,098  9,69,74,93,106 
Profit on Sale of Assets  17,44,791  37,10,098 
Profit on Sale of Securities  85,22,09,195  52,13,91,543 
Reversal of BDDR on ARC Sale  48,23,95,450 0
Provision towards a/c under Covid Relief written back  7,89,59,187  5,73,06,403 
Excess Provision for Depreciation in Investments reversed  21,16,03,516 0
Transfer from Contingent Provision Against Standard Assets  8,94,93,000  1,71,64,05,139  58,24,08,044 

 8,09,93,65,959  9,11,50,85,062 

Adjustments for
Decrease/(Increase) in Investments  (34,99,08,80,215)  (6,02,30,78,465)
Decrease/(Increase) in Advances  (15,10,33,13,333)  (23,54,63,78,562)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Assets  (1,08,96,69,579)  (55,91,40,262)
Increase/(Decrease) in Funds  (2,12,69,24,053)  (42,41,49,944)
Increase/(Decrease) in Deposits  49,55,55,35,352  16,31,22,52,998 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities  (1,09,06,20,347)  (4,84,58,72,175)  1,82,81,48,032  (12,41,23,46,203)
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities before Tax    3,25,34,93,784  (3,29,72,61,141)
Income Tax paid (Net)  (1,49,00,00,000)  (1,88,00,00,000)
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities after Tax   (A)  1,76,34,93,784  (5,17,72,61,141)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of  Property, plant & Equipment  (99,23,79,983)  (1,25,00,13,859)
Sale Proceeds of Property, Plant & Equipment  32,82,836  63,49,901 
Net Cash generated from Investing Activities                    (B)  (98,90,97,147)  (1,24,36,63,958)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital  31,75,32,910  33,12,59,450 
Refund of Share Capital  (7,99,69,560)  (11,22,03,700)
Proceeds from Borrowing 15,64,59,10,64,257 18,69,78,67,29,975 
Repayment of Borrowing  (15,68,44,05,08,961)  

(18,69,26,41,32,716)
Dividend Paid  (39,30,18,353)  (52,58,90,736)
Net Cash generated from Financing Activities                   (C)  (4,00,48,99,707)  21,57,62,273 
Net increase in Cash & Cash equivalents                  (A+B+C)  (3,23,05,03,070)  (6,20,51,62,826)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  44,41,57,81,485  50,62,09,44,311 
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year  41,18,52,78,415  44,41,57,81,485 
Cash & Cash Equivalents Current Year

31.03.2024
Previous Year

31.03.2023
Cash  24,47,90,72,905  24,17,79,57,253 
Balance with other banks (excluding Term Deposits maturing beyond 
3 months)

  8,99,01,67,352  6,52,10,22,877 

Money at Call & Short Notice  7,71,60,38,158  13,71,68,01,355 
 41,18,52,78,415  44,41,57,81,485 

1 Cash and Cash Equivalents include highly liquid short term investments for short period in form of Cash, balances held in current accounts 
with other Banks(including Term Deposits maturing within 3 months) and Money at Call & Short Notice.

2 Cash flow Statement is prepared by using indirect method as mentioned in AS 3.

As per our report of even date
For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101851W 

sd/-
(Abhay V Kamat)
Partner
Membership No. 39585 
Mumbai : May 24, 2024

sd/-
(Sanat Ulhas Chitale)
Partner
Membership No. 143700
Mumbai : May 24, 2024

sd/-
A. A. Patil 

Managing Director         
& CEO                                                              

sd/-
S. N. Sawaikar
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sd/-
K. V. Rangnekar

Director

sd/-
S. K. Sakhalkar
 Vice Chairman

sd/-
G. E. Thakur

Chairman
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INVOLVEMENT OF THE SMALL MAN
OUR MEMBERS

No. of Shares Held No. of Members Percentage

50-51 58,277 21.65

52-250 37,823 14.05

251-1500      70,923 26.35

1501-2500 1,02,124                37.95

Total  2,69,147 100.00

OUR DEPOSITORS

No. of Accounts Percentage

Upto `1,00,000 27,68,009 77.87

` 1,00,001 to ` 5,00,000 6,11,648 17.21

` 5,00,001 to  `10,00,000 1,06,286 2.99

`10,00,001 to ` 15,00,000 29,483 0.83

` 15,00,001 to ` 25,00,000                                                   18,476 0.52

` 25,00,001 to ` 50,00,000 12,237 0.35

` 50,00,001 to ` 1,00,00,000 4,962 0.14

Above ` 1,00,00,000 3,345 0.09

Total 35,54,446 100.00
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OUR BORROWERS

No. of Accounts Percentage

Upto ` 1,00,000 54,775 34.68

` 1,00,001 to ` 5,00,000 33,869 21.44

` 5,00,001 to ` 10,00,000 21,605 13.68

` 10,00,001  to ` 50,00,000 40,827 25.84

` 50,00,001  to ` 1,00,00,000 3,695 2.34

Above ` 1,00,00,000 3,190 2.02

Total 1,57,961 100.00
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PROGRESS - AT A GLANCE (YEAR 1920-2024)
(` in lakh)

Year No. of 
Members

Paid-up 
Capital

Reserve & 
Other Funds

Deposits Advances Total 
BusinessNo. of A/cs Amount No. of A/cs Amount

1920 190 0.06 - - 0.01 - 0.06 0.07
Silver Jubilee
1943 1,698 1.25 *1.00 4,293 23.48 - 3.23 26.71
Golden Jubilee
1968 15,207 14.43 *18.82 41,703 565.33 2,718 247.80 813.13
1975 29,978 44.88 *44.43 87,912 1,527.06 5,323 893.11 2,420.17
1976 32,830 51.52 *54.78 1,04,025 1,961.57 6,081 1,006.99 2,968.56
Diamond Jubilee
1978 39,104 76.91 130.40 1,44,520 3,189.41 10,557 1,373.30 4,562.71
1979 44,049 94.12 194.92 1,67,198 3,989.92 13,712 1,969.00 5,958.92
1980 50,694 120.60 261.94 1,93,033 4,911.84 18,603 3,025.17 7,937.01
1981 57,489 156.79 387.94 2,32,317 6,194.37 22,235 3,381.47 9,575.84
1982 64,240 192.63 488.99 2,75,121 8,106.71 24,591 5,106.81 13,213.52
1983 69,042 223.24 567.46 3,19,602 10,445.95 25,090 6,508.41 16,954.36
1984 75,977 262.24 624.58 3,58,366 12,991.46 26,728 7,676.78 20,668.24
1985 83,162 312.79 693.10 3,19,528 15,849.76 29,922 8,971.03 24,820.79
1986 90,606 366.09 840.96 4,18,708 19,373.40 33,177 11,322.06 30,695.46
1987 97,071 409.37 974.48 4,49,286 22,914.72 36,379 13,550.34 36,465.06
1988 1,02,384 462.70 1,184.18 4,75,335 28,451.01 37,747 16,163.43 44,614.44
1989 1,10,269 531.51 1,446.63 5,02,284 31,038.07 43,484 19,233.62 50,271.69
1990 1,21,740 630.21 1,952.28 5,44,548 37,447.63 51,428 23,709.05 61,156.68
1991 1,27,646 706.07 2,893.61 5,97,496 45,541.01 54,405 26,051.59 71,592.60
1992# 1,30,074 760.90 4,120.52 6,48,424 51,451.77 53,226 28,473.76 79,925.53
Platinum Jubilee
1993 1,29,284 820.94 4,778.02 7,11,219 63,211.46 54,151 34,424.40 97,635.86
1994 1,30,758 902.32 4,924.41 7,79,212 79,233.15 61,263 45,837.00 1,25,070.15
1995 1,31,569 986.22 6,295.41 8,45,341 91,120.13 73,138 59,682.67 1,50,802.80
1996 1,32,046 1,049.29 9,145.06 8,97,713 1,08,930.40 77,154 71,324.70 1,80,255.10
1997 1,32,909 1,157.12 12,575.32 9,14,713 1,38,141.97 79,654 88,087.80 2,26,229.77
1998 1,34,061 1,291.49 15,810.05 9,47,833 1,68,035.59 82,429 1,13,907.47 2,81,943.06
1999 1,36,007 1,519.43 19,458.27 10,00,141 2,03,181.86 84,531 1,38,380.24 3,41,562.10
2000 1,42,031 2,035.28 24,410.99 10,84,261 2,37,951.84 87,642 1,70,310.76 4,08,262.60
2001 **83,272 2,443.81 31,236.00 11,09,969 2,81,776.31 75,006 1,80,542.56 4,62,318.87
2002 **85,636 2,709.00 39,795.96 12,17,662 3,37,767.21 75,381 2,04,339.78 5,42,106.99
2003 **89,117 3,044.44 47,841.14 12,99,736 3,66,059.68 73,308 2,22,359.50 5,88,419.18
2004 **94,044 3,457.77 55,587.75 12,29,976 4,05,270.26 77,917 2,61,675.60 6,66,945.86
2005 **1,00,581 4,156.48 70,162.39 11,80,900 4,78,614.38 85,312 3,24,722.93 8,03,337.31
2006 **1,06,264 4,896.57 82,198.60 14,00,757 6,20,428.65 1,00,115 4,60,898.62 10,81,327.27
2007 **1,23,169 6,877.24 97,362.05 18,11,635 8,92,494.33 1,16,687 6,37,045.87 15,29,540.20
2008 **1,26,174 7,120.97 1,05,973.67 21,92,673 11,43,081.93 1,22,626 7,44,830.67 18,87,912.60
2009 **1,29,741 7,749.67 1,09,671.08 25,02,655 12,91,884.64 1,27,769 8,11,040.59 21,02,925.23
2010 **1,34,417 8,623.11 1,18,413.65 24,39,699 14,26,672.86 2,75,479 9,25,035.47 23,51,708.33
2011 **1,62,560 10,283.24 1,37,375.92 25,59,939 15,80,096.07 1,11,991 11,51,199.23 27,31,295.30
2012 **1,68,529 11,691.66 1,59,877.47 29,32,606 19,25,270.98 1,12,196 13,95,270.49 33,20,541.47
2013 **1,72,282 12,690.93 1,83,440.27 31,86,120 21,14,433.16 1,04,923 15,02,341.51 36,16,774.67
2014 **1,75,242 16,768.78 1,97,412.18 35,59,404 23,93,951.03 97,364 15,47,005.02 39,40,956.05
2015 **1,78,747 18,930.10 2,05,757.04 39,15,156 27,17,084.05 96,718 17,79,812.40 44,96,896.45
2016 **1,82,008 20,275.76 2,16,839.75 41,59,753 31,49,584.33 95,376 20,36,611.50 51,86,195.83
2017 **1,88,249 21,522.60 2,46,967.82 43,18,903 33,73,741.87 97,092 21,53,607.14 55,27,349.01
Centenary Year
2018 **1,99,616 23,674.57 2,63,228.49 41,98,064 35,05,665.84 1,02,326 23,46,911.29 58,52,577.13
2019 **2,13,836 26,396.89 2,97,341.24 41,57,976 36,01,487.01 1,09,004 25,79,749.27 61,81,236.28
2020 **2,25,245 28,599.00 3,23,605.42 35,12,260 38,08,349.30 1,28,084 25,33,864.01 63,42,213.31
2021 **2,37,262 30,481.63 3,63,251.52 35,09,274 40,85,530.14 1,36,201 26,24,170.05 67,09,700.19
2022 **2,46,663 32,309.09 3,87,629.56 33,66,150 42,87,053.40 1,51,745 28,70,249.50 71,57,302.90
2023 **2,58,926 34,499.65 4,41,399.40 34,23,023 44,50,175.93 1,61,976 31,05,713.28 75,55,889.21
2024 **2,69,147  $33,500.18 4,78,386.62 35,54,446 49,45,731.28 1,57961 32,56,746.42 82,02,477.70

* Including Interest Reserve
** Shareholders holding shares 50 and above
# Financial Year: Change of Bank’s accounting year since 1992 (April-March)
$ This does not include Perpetual Non - Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS) of ` 3375.10 lakhs which falls for redemption.
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(` in lakh)
Year Investments Working  

Capital
Net Profit Dividend  

Amount
Dividend (%) No. of  

Branches
1920 - 0.07 0.02 - - 1
Silver Jubilee
1943 19.95 26.15 0.15 0.07 6.25 2
Golden Jubilee
1968 290.37 623.05 2.52 1.30 9.00 9
1975 675.50 1,763.27 9.01 3.80 9.00 20
1976 1,005.92 2,222.87 15.47 5.80 12.00 20
Diamond Jubilee
1978 1,951.06 3,611.75 26.09 8.30 12.00 24
1979 2,188.60 4,535.81 30.52 10.25 12.00 26
1980 2,188.62 5,901.83 35.11 12.40 12.00 30
1981 3,182.74 7,728.06 51.16 16.50 12.00 34
1982 3,434.15 9,991.28 65.09 20.75 12.00 35
1983 4,275.89 15,767.14 70.57 24.75 12.00 37
1984 5,640.36 15,581.07 59.79 28.50 12.00 39
1985 7,040.29 19,311.54 69.94 33.90 12.00 41
1986 8,796.67 24,213.61 118.76 40.00 12.00 41
1987 10,231.78 26,570.23 145.47 46.02 12.00 42
1988 13,120.54 32,802.00 165.75 51.19 12.00 42
1989 9,231.86 36,532.31 196.01 58.07 12.00 42
1990 10,119.16 44,464.08 301.40 69.25 12.00 45
1991 13,092.37 55,242.28 430.46 78.90 12.00 47
1992# 17,560.62 64,032.95 468.33 81.75 15.00 50
Platinum Jubilee
1993 31,022.23 84,821.62 633.50 116.45 18.00 50
1994 34,974.74 1,06,411.84 679.96 126.40 15.00 52
1995 35,185.80 1,30,031.69 742.66 140.00 15.00 56
1996 42,042.27 1,61,866.40 865.54 151.00 15.00 58
1997 53,534.87 1,96,927.69 1,100.00 204.00 18.00 59
1998 63,459.20 2,47,374.86 1,239.01 185.00 15.00 61
1999 85,431.42 3,12,590.57 1,423.97 228.00 15.00 63
2000 95,639.19 2,95,608.33 1,734.09 314.90 18.00 69
2001 1,25,554.41 3,41,061.54 2,341.54 390.00 20.00 72
2002 1,65,198.50 4,06,281.05 2,600.00 492.05 20.00 75
2003 1,77,262.65 4,38,696.89 2,935.85 408.03 18.00 76
2004 1,56,615.16 4,93,749.72 6,225.26 553.47 18.00 75
2005 2,05,289.40 5,90,348.41 7,037.88 659.52 18.00 75
2006 1,98,977.97 7,63,100.74 10,120.29 789.99 18.00 86
2007 2,60,989.72 10,74,547.13 15,517.92 1,138.42 18.00 105
2008 4,35,006.22 13,87,410.43 20,226.06 1,285.00 20.00 153
2009 4,79,150.75 15,62,281.73 21,079.23 1,489.13 20.00 175
2010 5,32,139.11 17,07,105.88 11,967.42 1,590.62 20.00 200
2011 5,25,376.69 19,18,937.24 21,226.72 1,847.16 20.00 216
2012 5,62,698.78 22,43,562.49 23,556.92 2,181.58 20.00 226
2013 6,44,403.06 24,79,080.40 11,209.11 1,213.10 10.00 229
2014 7,80,474.21 28,13,279.55 14,709.37 1,292.80 10.00 267
2015 7,73,511.53 31,37,109.58 19,017.71 2,019.29 15.00 267
2016 9,38,847.77 35,94,150.08 21,119.15 2,139.02 15.00 283
2017 8,87,279.19 38,44,221.27 23,405.32 4,573.29 30.00 282
Centenary Year
2018 9,56,797.41 40,52,029.80 24,067.53 2,972.70 17.50 281
2019 11,01,369.00 42,91,512.10 29,128.52 3,370.31 17.50 284
2020 13,12,903.35 44,70,056.72 25,079.48 0.00 0.00 284
2021 14,02,070.71 47,66,982.94 27,024.48 4,670.00 20.00 283
2022 15,21,608.84 50,92,293.46 27,502.24 5,088.46 20.00 283
2023 15,84,084.31 53,53,900.52 35,169.53 4,116.35 15.00 289
2024 17,78,850.49 58,58,121.57 50,298.51 5,222.50 17.50 302
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AMENDMENT TO BYE-LAWS
PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO BYE LAWS 

Bye 
Law 
No.

Text in existing Bye-Laws Proposed Amendment Text after Amendment Remarks

4 The Registered Office of the 
Society is and shall be situated 
in Mumbai at Ekanath Thakur 
Bhavan, 953, Appasaheb 
Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, 
Mumbai 400 025.

To add the E-mail address. The Registered Office of the 
Bank is  and   shall   be   situated  
in  Mumbai at Ekanath    Thakur     
Bhavan,   953,  Appasaheb 
Marathe Marg,  Prabhadevi,         
Mumbai 400 025. Email id:- 
corporatecenter@saraswatbank.
com.

To bring in line with 
Section 10 and Section 
14 of the Multi-State 
Co-operative Societies 
(Amendment) Act 2023.

6 E (i) NEW Minimum Level of Products and 
Services to be availed by the 
member shall be as follows:

Maintained with the Bank during 
the previous financial year: - 

(a) i. Savings Account with 
average daily balance 
of ` 2,000/- or;

 ii. Current Account with 
average daily balance 
of ` 5,000/- or;

(b) Maintained Fixed 
deposit of minimum  
` 10,000/- or;

(c) Taken loan of any type 
for an amount of at least  
` 1,00,000/-

Minimum Level of Products and 
Services to be availed by the 
member shall be as follows:

Maintained with the Bank during 
the previous financial year: - 

(a) i. Savings Account with 
average daily balance 
 of ` 2,000/-or;

 ii. Current Account with 
average daily balance 
of ` 5,000/- or;

(b) Maintained Fixed 
deposit of  minimum  
` 10,000/- or;

(c) Taken loan of any type 
for an amount of at least  
` 1,00,000/-

To bring in line with 
Section 28 and 29 of the 
Multi State Co-operative 
Societies (Amendment) 
Act 2023.

24 A NEW A person shall not be eligible for 
being a member or continuing as 
a member of the Bank if- 

(a) his business is in conflict 
or competitive with the 
business of the Bank; or 

(b)    he fails to use the minimum 
level of the products 
or services for two 
consecutive years; or

(c) he has not attended three 
consecutive general 
meetings of the Bank and 
such absence has not been 
condoned by the members 
in the general meeting; or 

(d) he has made any default in 
payment of any amount to 
be paid to the Bank.

A person shall not be eligible for 
being a member or continuing as 
a member of the Bank if- 

(a) his business is in conflict 
or competitive with the 
business of the Bank; or 

(b)   he fails to use the minimum 
level of the products 
or services  for two 
consecutive years; or

(c) he has not attended three 
consecutive general 
meetings of the Bank and 
such absence has   not been 
condoned by the   members 
in the general meeting; or 

(d) he has made any default in 
payment of any amount to 
be paid to the Bank.

To bring in line with 
Section 29 of the Multi- 
State Co-operative 
Societies (Amendment) 
Act 2023.
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Bye 
Law 
No.

Text in existing Bye-Laws Proposed Amendment Text after Amendment Remarks

55 A Candidates contesting for 
directorship shall hold fifty fully 
paid shares on the last date of 
nomination and should have 
been member for a minimum 
period of twelve months 
immediately preceding the date 
of such election or appointment. 
The contesting Candidate should 
have an operative savings/
current/term deposit account 
of ` 50,000/- in the bank for 
a minimum period of twelve 
months continuously prior to 
the date of nomination and will 
continue till he/she remains as a 
Director of the Board.

A member who is indebted to 
the Society as Borrower except 
by way of advance against his 
deposits with the Bank shall not 
be eligible for election on the 
Board.

To add a para at the end “No 
person shall be eligible to be 
elected as a member of the 
Board, unless he is an active 
member of the general body of 
that Bank.”

Candidates contesting for 
directorship shall hold fifty fully 
paid shares on the last date of 
nomination and should have 
been member for a minimum         
period of twelve months 
immediately preceding the date 
of such election or appointment. 
The contesting Candidate should 
have an operative savings/
current/term deposit account 
of ` 50,000/- in the bank for 
a    minimum period of twelve 
months continuously prior to 
the date of nomination and will 
continue till he/she remains as a 
Director of the Board.

A member who is indebted to 
the Society as Borrower except 
by way of advance against his 
deposits with the Bank shall not 
be eligible for election   on the 
Board.

No person shall be eligible to 
be elected as a member of the 
Board, unless he is an active 
member of the general body of 
that Bank.

To bring in line with 
Section 45 J (1) 
of the Multi-State  
Co-operative Societies 
(Amendment) Act 2023.

58 If any casual vacancy occurs 
in the Board, it may be filled-
up by the continuing members 
thereof. Any person so chosen 
shall retain office so long as the 
vacating member would have 
retained the same if no vacancy 
had occurred. The continuing 
members of the Board may act 
notwithstanding any vacancy in 
their body.

To replace the existing text with 

“The Board may fill casual 
vacancies upto one-third of the  
number of elected members on 
the Board by nomination out 
of the same class of members 
in respect of which the casual 
vacancy has arisen, if the term 
of office of the Board is less than 
half of its original term:

Provided further that in case the 
number of such casual vacancies 
in the same term of the Board 
exceeds one-third of number of 
elected members of the Board, 
such vacancies shall be filled by 
elections.”

The Board may fill casual   
vacancies upto one-third of the 
number of elected members on  
the Board by nomination out 
of  the same class of members 
in respect of which the casual 
vacancy has arisen, if the term 
of office of the Board is less than    
half of its original term:

Provided further that in case the 
number of such casual vacancies 
in the same term of the Board 
exceeds one-third of number of 
elected members of the Board,  
such vacancies shall be filled by 
elections.

Existing bye-law is 
being replaced with new 
bye- law to bring in line 
with Section 45 (J) (5) 
(proviso) of the Multi- 
State Co-operative 
Societies (Amendment) 
Act 2023.
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Bye 
Law 
No.

Text in existing Bye-Laws Proposed Amendment Text after Amendment Remarks

61 The Board shall meet at least 
once a month for the transaction 
of business at a time and place 
to be fixed. The proceedings 
of the meetings of the Board 
shall be recorded in the minute 
book to be kept for the purpose. 
Five members shall constitute 
a quorum at the meetings of 
the Board of Directors and any 
question brought forward for 
discussion shall be decided by 
the majority. 

In case of equality of votes, 
the Chairperson will have a 
casting vote. A person ceases 
to be a member of the Board 
if he remains absent for three 
consecutive Board meetings or 
three consecutive general body 
meetings and such absence has 
not been condoned.

To replace the words “Five 
members” with the words “One 
third of its total number of 
elected members of the Board.”

The Board shall meet at least 
once a month for the transaction 
of business at a time and place 
to be fixed. The proceedings 
of the meetings of the Board 
shall be recorded in the minute 
book to be kept for the purpose. 
One third of its total number of 
elected members of the Board 
shall constitute a quorum at 
the meetings of the Board of 
Directors and any   question 
brought forward for discussion 
shall be decided   by the   majority. 

In case of equality of votes, 
the Chairperson will have a 
casting vote. A person ceases 
to be a member of the Board 
if he remains absent for three 
consecutive Board meetings or 
three consecutive general body 
meetings   and such absence has 
not been condoned.

To bring in line with 
Section 50 of the Multi- 
State Co-operative 
Societies (Amendment) 
Act 2023.

64 A The Board may constitute an  
Executive Committee and other 
committees or sub-Committees 
as may be considered necessary 
provided that other committees 
or sub-committees other than 
the Executive Committee shall 
not exceed three.

The Board may delegate any 
of their powers mentioned in 
Bye-Law no. 64 to an Executive 
Committee consisting of not 
more than six members of the 
Board of Directors including 
the Managing Director. Four 
members shall form the quorum 
for the meetings of the Executive 
Committee.

To replace the first para with 

“The Board may constitute 
an Executive Committee and 
other such committees or 
sub-Committees as may be 
considered necessary. Provided 
that the   Board shall constitute-

(a) An Audit and Ethics 

Committee;

(b) A Committee on Prevention 

of Sexual Harassment at 

Work Place.

The Board may decide the 
number of members in each 
Committee and its quorum.” 

The Board may constitute 
an   Executive  Committee  and  
other   such  committees  or  
sub-    Committees as may be 
considered necessary. Provided 
that the     Board shall constitute-

(a) An Audit and Ethics 

Committee;

(b) A Committee on Prevention 

of Sexual Harassment at 

Work Place.

The Board may decide the 
number of members in each 
Committee and its quorum. 
The Board may delegate any 
of their powers mentioned in 
Bye-Law no. 64 to an Executive 
Committee consisting of not 
more than six members of the  
Board of Directors including 
the   Managing Director. Four 
members shall form the quorum 
for the meetings of the Executive 
Committee.

To bring in line with 
Section 53 of the Multi- 
State Co-operative 
Societies (Amendment) 
Act 2023.

Our existing Bye-law 
restricts the formation of 
sub committees to three, 
Now this restriction is 
removed.



Business Overview Statutory Report Financial Statements

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) - Annual Report 2023-24 119

Bye 
Law 
No.

Text in existing Bye-Laws Proposed Amendment Text after Amendment Remarks

75 NEW The Bank shall designate 
a            Co-operative Information 
Officer,  who shall on receipt of 
application in the format and 
fees prescribed under the MSCS 
Rules, 2002, provide information 
to its  members about the affairs 
and management  of  the Bank 
and such  information  shall  
be as  per  the Reserve Bank’s  
Master    Direction on  Financial 
Statements - Presentation and 
Disclosures.

Provided that the Bank shall not 
reveal the information relating to 
any customer or member as per 
Bank’s obligation to maintain 
secrecy under the provisions of 
law.

The Bank shall designate 
a           Co-operative Information 
Officer,  who shall on receipt of 
application in the format and 
fees prescribed under the MSCS 
Rules, 2002, provide information 
to its  members about the affairs 
and management  of  the Bank 
and such  information  shall  
be as  per  the Reserve Bank’s  
Master    Direction  on  Financial 
Statements - Presentation and 
Disclosures.

Provided that the Bank shall not 
reveal the information relating to 
any customer or member as per 
Bank’s obligation to maintain 
secrecy under the provisions of 
law.

To bring in line with 
Section 106 of the Multi-
State Co-operative 
Societies (Amendment) 
Act 2023.
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STATE-WISE / REGION-WISE BRANCH NETWORK
Sr. 
No.

Name of the Branch Tel. No.

MUMBAI   

1 Andheri (East) (022) 26822522, 26822523

2 Andheri (East), J B Nagar 8657017715/16/17

3 Andheri (East), Marol 8657024313/14/15

4 Andheri (East), MIDC 8657052815/16/17

5 Andheri (East), Pump House 8657017712/13/14

6 Andheri (East), Saki Naka 8652731742/43/44

7 Andheri (West), Veera Desai Road 9136138514, 9136478542, 9136962526

8 Andheri (West), Barfiwala Road 8657564617/18

9 Andheri (West), Lokhandwala 8657043711/08/12

10 Antop Hill 8657062807/08

11 Ballard Estate (022) 22631114, 22621115

12 Bandra (East), Bandra Kurla Complex (022) 35253506-07-02

13 Bandra (East), Chetana College 7718896353, 7718896460

14 Bandra (West), National Library (022) 62399815, 62399810

15 Bhandup (West), L.B.S. Marg 8657010848/49/50

16 Borivali (East), Carter Road 8976968926/27/28

17 Borivali (West), Shimpoli 8657024304/05/06

18 Borivali (West), Chandavarkar Road (022) 28922725, 28940518, 28940537, 28912520

19 Borivali (West), I C Colony 8657007204/05/06

20 Borivali (West), Sai Baba Nagar (022) 28090029/30

21 Borivali Nancy Colony 8657016822/21/20

22 Carnac Bunder, Vyapar Bhavan (022) 23481265/66

23 Chembur (West), Sion Trombay Road 8657037901/2/3

24 Chembur (West), Tilak Nagar 8657034301/02/03

25 Chembur (East), Collector’s Colony. 8657043701/2/3

26 Chhatrapati Shivaji Terminus (CST) (022) 22061122, 22071121

27 Colaba 8657050270/71/72

28 Dadar (East), Dadasaheb Phalke Road (022) 24163144, 24161145, 24161144

29 Dadar (East), Hindu Colony 7021380611/083/1272

30 Dadar (West), Gadkari Chowk 8657560840/41/42

31 Dadar (West), Madhukendra off. N C Kelkar Road (022) 24221180, 24310885,24302190

32 Dadar (West), Portuguese Church  8657020405 /06/07

33 Dahisar (East), Maratha Colony 8657564607/8/9

34 Dahisar (West) 8657024301/02/03

35 Dharavi, R P Nagar 8657043704/5/6
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Sr. 
No.

Name of the Branch Tel. No.

36 Fort, D N Road (022) 22043006, 22047972, 22885005

37 Gamdevi 8657020411/12/13

38 Ghatkopar (East), Opp Ghatkopar Railway Station 8657560843/44/45

39 Ghatkopar (West), Barvenagar 022-25113189

40 Ghatkopar (West), L.B.S. Marg 8657037912/13/14

41 Ghatkopar (West), Maneklal Estate (022) 25166663/64

42 Girgaon, S V Sovani Path (022) 23841162/163/164/165

43 Goregaon (East), Hub 8657038901/02/03

44 Goregaon (East), Nagri Niwara 9702002043 / 9619009012

45 Goregaon (East), Walawalkar Wadi 8657038909/10/11

46 Goregaon (West) 8108101360/61/62

47 Goregaon (West), Link Road 8657024307/ 08/ 09

48 Govandi 8657019510/11/12

49 Jogeshwari (East), Majaswadi 8657856901/02/03

50 Jogeshwari HFS Rd 8657050273/74/75

51 Juhu, N S Road No.13 8657784806/7/8/9/10

52 Kalbadevi (022) 22079406 - 07

53 Kandivali (East), Thakur Complex (022) 28546881, 28546883

54 Kandivali (East), Thakur Village 8976774795,  9594290951,  8108616084

55 Kandivali (West), Dahanukarwadi 68327542, 68421200, 68420555

56 Kandivali (West), GIE - Govt. Indl. Estate 8657560849/50/51

57 Kandivali (West), Junction of S V Road & Jamnadas 
Adukia Road

8657019504/05/06

58 Kandivali (West), M.G.Road 8828825334, 8828825335

59 Kandivali (West), Charkop 8657019501/02

60 Khar (West), Pali Hill 8657038906/7/8

61 Khar, Linking Road 8657784812/13/14

62 Kurla East, Nehru Nagar 8657020408/09/10

63 Lower Parel, N M Joshi Marg 8976940400 , 8976940399

64 Mahim, Sitaladevi Temple Road 8657052811/12/13

65 Malad (East) 8657037906/7/8

66 Malad (West), Orlem 9152012403/04/05

67 Malad (West), Link Road 8652731755/56/54

68 Malad (West), Mamletdar Wadi (022) 69137700/01

69 Masjid Bunder 8657784821/22-23

70 Matunga (East), Telang Road 022)  24014624

71 Mazgaon (022) 23707475/76

72 Mulund (East), L T Road (022) 21636137, 24671277/76
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Sr. 
No.

Name of the Branch Tel. No.

73 Mulund (West), M G Road 8657035223/24/25

74 Mulund (West), RRT Road 8657007215/16/17

75 Mulund (West), Veena Nagar 8657010851/52/53

76 Mulund (West), Sarvoday Nagar 8169457068/69/70/71

77 Mumbai Central (022) 49630878, 49630870

78 Overseas Marine Lines (022) 49205656, 22096019

79 Parel (West), M D College 8652731737/38/39

80 Powai, Hiranandani (022) 25701726, 25702268

81 Powai, Opp. I.I.T. 8657062801/2/3

82 Prabhadevi, Opp Ravindra Natya Mandir (022) 24223780, 24228328, 24223782

83 Santacruz (East) (022) 26175134

84 Santacruz (East), Kalina (022) 26654361/62

85 Santacruz (West), Station Road 8657007210/11/12

86 Sion (West), Swami Vallabhadas Road (022) 24086353

87 SME Lower Parel (022) 69068801/4/5

88 SME - Vikhroli L.B.S Marg 69940001/2/3

89 SME - Vileparle, Dr. N.S. Phadke Marg (022) 69569999/9912/9913

90 Vidyavihar (West) 86327524/27/34

91 Vikhroli (East), Behind Vikhroli Bus Depot 8657023510/11/14

92 Vikhroli (West), Station Road 8828805610/11/12

93 Vile Parle (East), Nehru Road (022) 26171227, 26131225, 26173223

94 Vile Parle (West), Besant Road 86527317147/48/49

95 Wadala, R A Kidwai Road (022) 24183696

96 Worli, Dr. A. B. Road (022) 24221209/10

THANE DISTRICT

97 Ambernath (East) (0251) 2609292, 2609797

98 Badlapur (East) Branch (0251) 2697711

99 Bhayander (West) Dr. Ambekar Marg (022) 28186905/900

100 Bhayander (East) 8657019507/08/09

101 Bhiwandi , Gauri Pada (02522) 230060/61

102 Dombivali (East), Bhagat Singh Road (0251) 2990152/0143

103 Dombivali (West), M G Cross Marg (0251) 2489022/2493013, 

104 Dombivali MIDC 8657052821

105 Kalwa, Station Road 8657010854/55/56

106 Kalyan (East), Kolshewadi (0251) 2363862/63

107 Kalyan (West), Shil Road (0251) 2971661/62

108 Kalyan, Khadakpada (0251) 2302208/09
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Sr. 
No.

Name of the Branch Tel. No.

109 Kalyan, (West), Murbad Road (0251) 2200081, 2205037

110 Mira Road, Royal Complex 8657052808/7/9

111 Thane (West), Panchpakhadi 8828805613/14/15

112 Thane (East), Kopri (022) 25325016/23

113 Thane (West), Brahmand 8976958599/600

114 Thane (West), Hiranandani 8657062804/05

115 Thane (West), Jambhali Naka 8828805616/17/18

116 Thane (West), Kasarvadvali (022) 49687559 / 49687507

117 Thane (West), Khopat (022) 25372175/76

118 Thane (West), Naupada (022) 25332754

119 Thane (West), Vartak Nagar (022) 25390772, 25399974/25381214

120 Thane (West), Vijay Nagari 8657856993

121 Thane (West), Wagle Estate 8657007218/19/20

122 Titwala (East) 8657023501/02/03

123 Ulhasnagar (0251) 2732716/17 

NAVI MUMBAI

124 Airoli, Sector – 7 (022) 27602656/55

125 APMC, Vashi (022) 27831160/61

126 CBD Belapur, Sector - 11 (022) 27560083/84

127 Ghansoli 8657050276/86

128 Koparkhairane, Sector - 20 (022) 27551328/29

129 Nerul (East), Sector - 21 8657564613/12/10

130 Nerul (West), Sector - 4 (022) 27729922/3657

131 Sanpada, Sector - 4 8657784818/16/17

132 Seawoods 8657062813/14

133 Turbhe (022) 27842234/35

134 Vashi, Sector -12 8657035227/28/29

135 Vashi, Sector -17 (022) 27890192, 27893188,  27898195

PALGHAR

136 Boisar, Ameya Park 8087694666/ 8983094566

137 Palghar, Kacheri Road 8657019513/14/15

138 Vasai (East), Vasai Nallasopara Link Road 8087056054/55

139 Vasai (West) 8657560838/39/37

140 Virar (East), Bazar Ward 8657856907/08/09
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141 Virar (West), Agashi Road 7276055161, 7276083276

142 Virar (West), Arnala (0250) 2588311

PUNE

143 Akurdi (020) 27662133/2157/2087

144 Aundh (020) 25890332/31, 25886169

145 Baner Road (020) 27292957/58

146 Bavdhan (020) 22951512/2434

147 Bhosari (020) 29530543/44

148 Bhusari Colony, Kothrud (020) 29525291/92

149 Bibwewadi (020) 24231467, 24213217

150 Budhwar Peth (020) 24462131, 24455226

151 Chakan (02135) 249331/30

152 Chinchwad (020) 27351313/1414

153 Dahanukar Colony (020) 25462500/9648

154 Fergusson College Road (020) 25652491/92

155 Fatima Nagar (020) 26861046, 26860181

156 Ganesh Khind Road (020) 25582249,9975236161

157 Ganesh Nagar (020) 25435066/77

158 Hadapsar (020) 26999081/4424

159 Hinjewadi (020) 22933567/66

160 Karve Road 69013400, 69013467,  69013468

161 Katraj (020) 24364847/48

162 Keshav Nagar 8657037909/10/11

163 Kharadi (020) 27014026/27

164 Kondhava (020) 26831073/74

165 Koregaon Park 8657020417/18/19

166 Moshi 8657560848/47/46

167 Narayan Peth (020) 24465178/205

168 Narhe (020) 24390115/14

169 Pashan (020) 25870092/0492

170 Paud Road (020) 25449122/29

171 Pimple Nilakh (020) 48647070/9090

172 Pimple Saudagar (020) 27206600/01

173 Pimpri (020) 27474671/5856, 27468900

174 Punawale 8657023507/08/09

175 Rajguru Nagar (02135) 223377/88

176 Ranjangaon (2138) 299007

177 Ravet 8657052824/25/26

178 Sahakar Nagar (020) 24221211/1411
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179 Shivane (020) 25294914/15

180 Sinhagad Road 8657038912/13/14

181 SME - Pune (020) 41422200/11-14

182 Somwar Peth (020) 26063721

183 Talegaon (02114) 224004/5

184 Thermax Chowk 8657020414/15/16

185 Tilak Road (020) 24444257/8941

186 Undri (020) 26909075/83

187 Vamnicom (020) 25701220

188 Viman Nagar (020) 26630226/27

189 Vishrantwadi (020) 26696172/73, 9420528162

190 Wagholi 8087001175

191 Wakad (020) 29705755/66

192 Warje (020) 25215154/55

AHMEDNAGAR

193 MIDC (0241) 2777602/03

194 Savedi Road (0241) 2341121/20

NAGPUR

195 Chhapru Nagar (0712) 2730266/60

196 Gandhibaug (0712) 2721769, 2722694, 2725157

197 Hingana Road (07104) 237022/26

198 Kalamana Market (0712) 2680325/544

199 Pratap Nagar (0712) 2243260

200 Wardha Road (0712) 2252903/04, 2250046

AKOLA

201 Akola (0724) 2436611

AURANGABAD

202 CIDCO (0240) 2243006/07/020

203 Gajanan Maharaj Temple (0240) 2243012/13

204 Khadkeshwar (0240) 2243000/01/19

205 MGM, Medical College (0240) 2243008/ 2368373

206 MIT- Hospital (0240) 2243027/009

207 Station Road (0240) 2243011/23/10

208 T V Centre, Aurangabad (0240) 2243028/29

209 Waluj (0240) 2243005/04/21
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SOLAPUR
210 Solapur (0217) 2727225-26/ 2320514

RAIGAD
211 Alibaug (02141) 225951-53
212 Kamothe, Sector - 7 8657007207/08/09
213 Khanda Colony, New Panvel (022) 27453183/84
214 Kharghar, Sector - 7 (022) 27746911/22
215 Mahad (02145) 223822/23
216 New Panvel 8657023504/05/06
217 Pen (02143) 255584/85
218 Panvel, M.C.C.H   (022) 27467944/45
219 Panvel, S.N.Road 8657052819/20
220 Roha (02194) 232352/53
221 Uran, Karanja Road 8657564614/15/16
222 Ulwe 9833918247

JALGAON
223 Baliram Peth - Jalgaon (0257) 2233613/14
224 Jalgaon (0257) 2234382/83

SATARA
225 Karad (02164) 225505/07
226 Satara (02162) 227355, 227455

NASHIK
227 CIDCO (0253) 2390432
228 Gangapur Road (0253) 2314538/39
229 Jail Road (0253) 2416430
230 Mahatma Nagar (0253) 2357461, 2360434
231 Main Road (0253) 2502220/21
232 Musalgaon (02551) 240752
233 Sharanpur (0253) 2581293, 2317677

RATNAGIRI
234 Chiplun (02355) 257138, 255201
235 Lanja (02351) 230195/96
236 Lavel (02356) 299097
237 Rajapur (02353) 232344/45
238 Ratnagiri (02352) 223690/91

SINDHUDURG
239 Devgad (02364) 261828/29
240 Kankavli - Rameshwar Plaza (02367) 230241/42
241 Kudal (02362) 221150/51
242 Malvan (02365) 252114/45
243 Sawantwadi (02363) 274413/14
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244 Vaibhavwadi (02367) 237585/86

245 Vengurla (02366) 262509/10, 262104

SANGLI

246 Mahavirnagar (0233) 2624267, 2622106

247 Shastri Chowk (0233) 2332294 

248 Miraj Laxmi Market (0233) 2223138

249 Shivaji Nagar (0233) 2375899

250 Kupwad (0233) 2346878

251 Vita (02347) 276230

KOLHAPUR

252 Ichalkarnji (0230) 2432597

253 Mahapalika (0231) 2644208

254 Mangalwar Peth (0231) 2621319/20

255 New Shahupuri (0231) 2651753/54 

256 Rajarampuri (0231) 2521681/550, 2527012

GUJARAT

AHMEDABAD

257 Anand Nagar (079) 29609351/52

258 Bapu Nagar (079) 22777754 / 55

259 C.G.Road (079) 26401387/ 88/26420313

260 Ghatlodia (079) 27402740/41

261 Isanpur (079) 25810004/5

262 Mani Nagar (079) 25461004/5

263 Naranpura (079) 27492958/3026

VADODARA

264 Karelibaug (0265) 2481299/49

265 Fatehganj (0265) 2750586/7

266 Manjalpur (0265) 2643506/7

267 Alkapuri (0265) 2329001/2

SURAT 

268 Adajan (0261) 2780168/186

269 Ring Road - Surat (0261) 2335230, 2335231

270 Varachha Road - Surat (0261) 2552092/93/94, 2562090

VAPI

271 Vapi (0260) 2425663/64

KARNATAKA

BELGAUM

272 Samadevi (0831) 2420433, 2403468

273 Tilakwadi (0831) 2468544/630
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HUBLI
274 Hubli (0836) 2256015, 2356468

BENGALURU
275 Banashankari (080) 26763781, 26763815
276 Chamrajpeth (080) 26601213, 26600050
277 Gandhinagar (080) 22341151/2
278 Jayanagar (080) 26532275/6
279 Koramangala (080) 25502275, 25502276
280 Malleshwaram (080) 23466656/7

DAVANGERE
281 Davangere (08192) 233452/53

DHARWAD
282 Dharwad (0836) 2443396/97

MANGALORE
283 Bhavanthi Street (0824) 2440636/7
284 Chilimbi (0824) 2452143/4
285 M.G.Road (0824) 2495671/2

MYSORE
286 Mysore (0821) 2542266, 2544666

TUMKUR
287 Tumkur (0816) 2277667/68

UDUPI 
288 Udupi (0820) 2526010, 2529010

GOA
289 Bicholim (0832) 2360460
290 Mapusa (0832) 2264064/268
291 Margao (0832) 2732321,  2732594
292 Panjim (0832) 2228023, 2425662/210
293 Ponda (0832) 2318556/726
294 Porvorim (0832) 2412502/03
295 Sanvordem (0832) 2654044/2650244
296 SME - Goa (0832) 2437021/22/23
297 Sankhali (0832) 2365677/78
298 Vasco (0832) 2515170, 2515553,  2517732

MADHYA PRADESH
299 Indore (RNT Marg) (0731) 2528791-94/96 
300 Indore, Annapurna Road (0731) 2473232/243233

DELHI
301 Connaught Place 011-23412100,  23414100
302 Lajpat Nagar 011-26422100,  42643016-20
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